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Board of Directors

Non-executive Directors

Dr David Pang

Aged 66 Chairman

Appointed in December 2007

Dr Pang was appointed Non-executive Director of the Company in

December 2007 and became the Non-executive Chairman in January

2009 He has been director of Kerry Holdings Limited substantial

shareholder of the Company since 15 March 2007 Dr Pang

also serves on the board of Visa Inc listed on the New York Stock

Exchange He previously held senior global business management

positions with multinational corporations and taught at universities in

North America and Asia Dr Pang served as Chief Executive Officer

of Airport Authority Hong Kong from January 2001 to February 2007

after successful career with the conglomerate El DuPont where

he was Corporate Vice President in charge of DuPont worldwide

nonwovens business and Chairman DuPont Greater China During his

career with Dupont Dr Pang held number of progressively senior

positions across various DuPont businesses and with responsibilities

spanning the Asia Pacific North America Europe and South America

since 1980

Mr Roberto Ongpin

Aged 73 Deputy Chairman

Appointed in October1993

Mr Ongpin was appointed as the Deputy Chairman of the Company

in October 1993 He is Non-executive Director of Shangri-La Asia

Limited listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited He is

also the Chairman of PhilWeb Corporation ISM Communications

Corporation and Atok-Big Wedge Co Inc and Director of San Miguel

Corporation Petron Corporation and Araneta Properties Inc all

of which are listed companies on the Philippine Stock Exchange

Inc He is also Director of Forum Energy PLC listed company on

the London Stock Exchange In addition he is also Chairman of the

following companies Acentic GmbH Eastern Telecommunications

Philippines Inc ETPI Alphaland Corporation and Developing

Countries Investment Corp He was director of E2-Capital Holdings

Limited presently known as ClAM Group Limited listed on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited until June 2008 Prior to 1979

Mr Ongpin was the Chairman and Managing Partner of the SGV Group

the largest accounting and consulting firm in Asia He was the Minister

of Trade and Industry of the Republic of the Philippines from 1979 to

1986 He has an MBA from Harvard University and is Certified Public

Accountant Philippines

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng

Aged 71

Appointed in June1994

Tan Sri Dr Khoo is the Chairman and Chief Executive of The MUI Group

which is business corporation with diversified operations in the Asia

Pacific the United States of America USA and the United Kingdom

UK He is the Chairman and Chief Executive of Malayan United

Industries Berhad and MUI Properties Berhad both listed in Kuala

Lumpur Dr Khoo is also the Chairman of Laura Ashley Holdings

plc listed in London Corus Hotels Limited UK and Morning Star

Resources Limited listed in Hong Kong He is also director of Pan

Malaysian Industries Berhad listed in Kuala Lumpur and The Bank of

East Asia Limited listed in Hong Kong Dr Khoo is trustee of the

Regent University Virginia USA and board member of Northwest

University Seattle USA He also serves as Council Member of the

Malaysian-British Business Council the Malaysia-China Business

Council and the Asia Business Council

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean

Aged 54

Appointed in October1993

Mr Kuok was appointed Chairman of the Company in January 1998

and became an Executive Director in January 2000 and assumed the

role of Executive Chairman in August 2000 until his re-designation

as Non-executive Director in January 2009 He is director of Kerry

Group Limited the ultimate holding company of the Company and

Kerry Holdings Limited substantial shareholder of the Company

Mr Kuok is Chairman of Shangri-La Asia Limited listed in Hong

Kong and Singapore He is also director of Shangri-La Hotel

Public Company Limited and The Post Publishing Public Company

Limited both listed in Thailand and Wilmar International Limited

listed in Singapore Mr Kuok is also an Independent Non-executive

Director of The Bank of East Asia Limited listed in Hong Kong He is

graduate in Economics from Nottingham University UK Mr Kuok

is the brother of Ms Kuok Hui Kwong the Managing Director and

Chief Executive Officer of the Company

scxlp Aiunial upon 2009 23
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Board of Directors

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Hon Ronald Arculli

GBS CVO ODE JR

Aged 71

Appointed in June 1996

Mr Arculli is the Independent Non-executive Chairman of Hong Kong

Exchanges and Clearing Limited listed in Hong Kong He was the

Chairman of The Hong Kong jockey Club from 2002 to August 2006

Mr Arculli is practising solicitor and was an elected member of

the Legislative Council until the end of the legislative session at the

end of iune 2000 He had served on the Legislative Council and

the Provisional Legislative Council since 1988 representing the

Real Estate and Construction functional constituency since 1991

Mr Arculli has served and continues to serve on numerous

Government committees and advisory bodies including West

Kowloon Cultural District Authority and the Honours Committee of

the HKSAR Government He is currently Member of the Executive

Council of Hong Kong Mr Arculli is an Independent Non-executive

Director of Hang Lung Properties Limited and Non-executive

Director of HKR International Limited Hongkong Electric Holdings

Limited Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited Sino Hotels Holdings

Limited Sino Land Company Limited and Tsim Sha Tsui Properties

Limited all listed in Hong Kong He was an Independent Non-

executive Director of Shanghai Century Acquisition Corporation

listed on the American Stock Exchange from October 2005 to May

2008

Dr Fred Hu Zu Liu

Aged 47

Appointed in March 2010

Dr Hu is Chairman of Greater China at Goldman Sachs Before

joining Goldman Sachs in 1997 Dr Hu was staff member at the

International Monetary Fund IMF in Washington D.C where he

was engaged in macroeconomic research and policy consultations

for number of member country governments including China

Dr Hu has advised the Chinese government on financial reform

pension reform and macroeconomic policies and has worked

closely with Chinas leading companies including Bank of China

Bank of Communications China Development Bank ICBC Ping

An and ZTE on business strategy capital raising and cross-border

merger and acquisitions At Goldman Sachs he has led several of

the worlds largest and most significant transactions and has been

instrumental in building the firms franchise in the region Dr Hu

is member of the Strategic Development Committee chaired by

the Chief Executive of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

member of the Advisory Committee for the Hong Kong Securities

and Futures Commission and is also member of the Asia Pacific

Council of the Nature Conservancy He also sits on the advisory board

for China Huarong Asset Management Company Shanghai Pudong

Development Bank and the Harvard China Fund Dr Hu has served

since 1996 as co-director and professor at the National Center for

Economic Research NCER at Tsinghua university where he teaches

graduate course in international finance and macroeconomics

Dr Hu has published widely on economics and financial markets

He is member of the editorial board for several academic journals

including the International Economic Review and is columnist

for Caijing Chinas leading financial and business magazine Dr Hu

earned an MS in Engineering Science from Tsinghua university and

an MA and PhD in Economics from Harvard university

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0

0DM GBS OBG MA Cantab Economics Law Hon OSc Imperial Hon

DBA Napier Hon D.Hum.Litt Trinity USA Hon DSocSc Lingnan Hon

LLD Hong Kong Hon LLD Warwick Hon LLD Cantab FCA FCPA

FCPA Aust ECIB FHKIB FBCS CITP FCIArb JP Officier de LOrdre de Ia

Couronne Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of/ta/ian Solidarity The

Order of the Rising Sun Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon Off icier de Ia Legion

dHonneur

Aged 71

Appointed in April1990

Sir David is Chairman and Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia

Limited listed in Hong Kong and director of numerous other

companies in Hong Kong and overseas Sir David is Member of

the
Legislative

Council of Hong Kong He is the Chairman of The

Chinese Banks Association Limited and the Hong Kong Management

Association He is also member of the Banking Advisory Committee

and the Council of the Treasury Markets Association Sir David is an

independent director of China Overseas Land Investment Limited

COSCO Pacific Limited Guangdong Investment Limited The Hong Kong

and China Gas Company Limited The Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels

Limited PCCW Limited San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited and

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited all listed in Hong Kong He is

director of AFFIN Holdings Berhad and Criteria CaixaCorp S.A listed in

Malaysia and Spain respectively Sir David was an independent director

of China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited listed in Hong

Kong and director of Dow 1ones Company Inc listed on the New

York Stock Exchange He was Member of the Executive Council of

Hong Kong
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Independent Non-executive Directors continued

Mr Wong Kai Man

BBS JR

Aged 59

Appointed inApdl 2007

Mr Wong is an accountant with 32 years of audit initial public otter

and computer audit experience He was member of the Growth

Enterprise Market Listing Committee of The Stuck Exchange ot Hung

Kong Limited from 1999 to 2003 He retired as an audit partner

from PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong on 30 June 2005 and is

currently the director of two charity foundations Victor and William

Fung Foundation Ltd and Li Fung 1906 Foundation Limited

and an Honorary Associate Professor of the School of Business of

the University of Hong Kong He is currently an Independent Nun

execufive Director of China Construction Bank Corporation listed

in Hong Kong and Shanghai Shangri-La Asia Limited listed in

Hong Kong and Singapore and SUNeVision Holdings Ltd listed

in Hong Kong He is Non-executive Director of the Securities

and Futures Commission In addition he serves in number of

government committees and the board of certain non-governmental

organisations Mr Wong obtained his Bachelor of Science in

Physics from the University of Hong Kong and Master of Business

Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and is

fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accounfanfs United

Kingdom and fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants

uifl Executive Director
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Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Aged 32 Managing Director and Chiet Executive Officer

Appointed in February 2004

Ms Kuok was appointed an Executive Director of SCMP Group

in February 2004 and became the Managing Director and Chief

Executive Officer in January 2009 She is responsible for overseeing

the management of the Groups businesses and operations She is

also board director of The Post Publishing Public Company Limited

publisher of the Bangkok Post and listed in Thailand Prior to

joining SCMP Group in October 2003 Ms Kuok worked as an analyst

in the investment banking unit of JP Morgan Ms Kuok received her

undergraduate degree from Harvard University She is the sister of

Mr Kuok Khnun Ean director of the Company
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Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Man aging Director and Chief Execotive Officer

Ms Kook was appointed as Execotive Director of SCMP Group

in February 2004 and became the Managing Director and Chief

Executive Officer in January 2009 She is responsible for overseeing

the management of the Groups businesses and operations She is

also board director of The Post Publishing Public Company Limited

publisher of the Bangkok Post and listed in Thailand Prior to joining

SCMP Group in October 2003 Ms Kook worked as an analyst in

the investment banking unit of JP Morgan Ms Kook received her

undergraduate degree from Harvard University

Mr Eric Levin

Chief Financial Of ficer

Mr Levin was appointed as Chief Financial Officer in September 2009

responsible for the corporate financials information technology

corporate administration and content resources Prior to this

appointment Mr Levin was the CEO and founder of City On Demand

and CFO of Home Box Office in U.S.A Mr Levin received his Bachelor

of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of

Pennsylvania and attended the Booth School of Business in Chicago

for his Master of Business Administration degree in Finance and

Economics

Mr Reginald Chua

Editor-In-Chief

Mr Chua joined the SCMP Group in July 2009 responsible for the

editorial direction and newsroom operations as Editor-in-Chief

He graduated with Master Degree in Journalism from Colombia

University and Bachelor Degree in Mathematics from the University

of Chicago Previously Mr Chua worked for The Wall Street Ioom7al

for 1G years in Manila Hanoi Hong Kong and later in the New York

office During the tenure as Editor of the Journals Asian edition the

publication won numerous editorial awards Mr Choa also covered

the Philippines for Singapores Shaifs Times worked at Reuters

in Singapore and was television and radio journalist at the then-

Singapore Broadcasting Corp
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The Board of Directors the Board and Management are committed

to upholding the Groups obligations to shareholders we regard the

promotion and protection of shareholders interests as one of our

priorities and keys to success

Gver the years the Group has put in place sound corporate

governance practices to ensure it adheres to the highest ethical and

business standards The key test of corporate governance practices is

if fhey align the interests of management with those of shareholders

to adequately protect and promote shareholders interests The Group

constantly reviews these guidelines and policies and implements new

ones to ensure they remain relevant and practical in todays fast

changing business environment and market expectations

During the year the Groups corporate governance practices have

complied with all the code provisions of the Code on Corporate

Governance Practices Stock Exchange Code as set out in

Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited Listing Rules The Group also

adheres to the recommended best practices of the Stock Exchange

Code insofar as they are relevant and practicable

The Group believes fhat its current corporate governance practices

which combine practices which have served the Group well for many

years and new practices set out in the Stock Exchange Code provide

the Group with sound and sensible framework for balancing the

business of the Group and the interests of its shareholders The Group

will continue to evaluate its corporate governance practices in light of

its business needs regulatory changes and new corporate governance

philosophies

Set out below are our current framework of governance and

explanations about how the provisions of the Stock Exchange Code

have been applied

SUME Group Auuual Report 200928
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The Board of Directors

The Board recognises its responsibility to represent the interests of

shareholders As at the date of this Annual Report the Board has eight

Directors an Execotive Director and seven Non-executive Directors

including three Independent Non-executive Directors Independent

Non-executive Directors represent more than one-third of the Board

Non-executive Directors

Dr David Pang Chairman

Mr Roberto Dngpin Deputy Chairman

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng

Mr Kook Khoon Fan

Independent Noo-executive Directors

The Hon Ronald Arcolli

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0

Mr Wong Kai Man

Executive Director

Ms Kook Hui Kwong Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

The biographies of all the Directors including their relationships are

set out on pages 22 to 26 of this Annual Report

The Board is chaired by the Non-executive Chairman Dr David

Pang Ms Kook Hui Kwong Managing Director and Chief Executive

Officer oversees the management of the Droops business with the

assistance of the Droops senior management team

Each Director brings wide range and years of business experience

to the Board The Directors combined knowledge expertise and

experience are extremely valuable in overseeing the Droops business

The Board sets the strategic direction and oversees the performance

of the Droops business and management The following key matters

must be approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf

of the Company

Strategic direction

Budgets

Audited financial statements

Interim and final results

Interim and annual reports

Significant investments

Major acquisitions and disposals

Maor financings borrowings and guarantees

Material contracts

Risk management

In addition the Board discusses major operating issues evaluates

opportunities and business risks and considers corporate

communications and human resources issues Decisions and conduct

of matters other than those specifically reserved to the Board are

delegated to Management
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The Board will review the arrangements hetween the responsibilities

ot the Board ard the matters delegated to Management trom time to

time to ensure that they remain appropriate to the need ot the Group

and its business

Board Proceedings

The Board holds four regular meetings annually usually quarterly

and also meets at such other times as are necessary Agenda ot

Board meetings are approved by the Chairman and presented to the

Directors tor comments The Board is provided with adequate timely

and reliable intormation about the Groups business and developments

betore each Board meeting at which the Directors actively participate

and hold intormed discussions All Directors are asked to review

and comment on the Board minutes within reasonable time atter

the meetings to maintain accurate records ot Board discussions and

decisions

The number ot Board meetings held and meetings attended by each ot

the Directors during the year were

Iixg
flnrwt
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flflujtjflfl iiItt

Nor-executive Oirector

Indeperdent Non-executive Oirector

Note

Mr Peter Lee Tiny Chang passed away and ceased to be director on

t7 Gctnber 2DGP

All the Directors have access to the advice and services ot the

Company Secretary to ensure all board procedures are followed

Betore each Board meeting the Directors update the Board regarding

oftices held in public and private companies and organisations There

are also written procedures tor the Directors to obtain independent

professional advice at the Companys expense

The Board has also adopted specitic procedures tor meetings to be

convened among Non-executive Directors including the Independent

Non-executive Directors in the absence ot any Executive Director

SCMP Group Annual Report 2009
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during 2009

tt Dr David Pang

Roberto Dngpin9ht Mr Roberto Dngpin0

The Hon Ronald Arculli

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay PengYC Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Lei Mr Kuok Khoon Ean

tijt P4 Mr Peter Lee Ting Chang Note

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok p0F

Mr Wong Kai Man
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The Board confirms fhe term of appointment and functions of all Non-

executive Directors and Board Committee members with formal letters

of appointment

Directors who are appointed to fill vacancies are subject to re-election

at the first annual general meeting of the Company after his or

her appointment In addition every Director including every Non-

executive Director shall retire from office no later than the third

annual general meeting after he was last elected or re-elected Dne

third of the Directors be they Executive Directors or Non-executive

Directors are required to retire by rotation from office at every annual

general meeting under the Companys Bye-Laws retiring Director is

eligible for re-election

Directors Remuneration

The Directors fees and all other reimbursements and emoluments

paid or payable to the Directors during the year are set out on an

individual and named basis in note t8 to the financial statements of

this Annual Report on page 103

The remuneration policy of the Group is set out on page t04 of this

Annual Report

Securities Transactions of Directors and Senior Executives

The Board of Directors had adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers Model Code as set out in

Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Companys code for securities

transactions by its Directors and senior executives

All Directors of the Company have confirmed their compliance with

the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year

Interests in the Companys shares including share options held by the

Directors as at 31 December 2009 are set out in the Directors Report

section of this Annual Report on pages 49 to 52

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Board has received from each of the Independent Non-executive

Directors confirmation of his independence according to the

guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

The Board is of the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors

of the Company are independent and is grateful for the contribution

and independent advice and guidance that they have been giving to

the Board and the Board Committees

SCM Group Aooual Report 2009 31
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Other matters relating to the Board

In relation to tinanrial reporting all Directors acknowledge their

responsibilities tor preparing the accounts ot the Group

The Group has appropriate insurance in place to cover the liabilities of

the Directors and senior executives ot the Group

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Board is chaired by the Non-executive Chairman Dr David Pang

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong is the Managing Director and Chief Executive

Dtticer ot the Company The Non-executive Chairman is responsible tor

the management of the Board to ensure that the Board is tunctioning

properly whilst the Managing Director and Chiet Executive Dtticer is

responsible tor overseeing the management ot the Groups businesses

and operations Their respective responsibilities are clearly established

and set out in writing

Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Remuneration and Nomination

Committees with mandates to deal with certain corporate governance

aspects ot the Group The remits of these Committees are published

on the Companys website xxww.scmpgroup.com

From time to time the Board also establishes other board committees

to deal with specitic aspects ot its business

Each Committee is appointed with written terms of reterence and each

member of the Committee has formal letter of appointment setting

out key terms and conditions relating to his appointment

Each Committee meets as frequently as required by business

developments and the operation of the Group Committee members

are provided with adequate and timely information before each

meeting or discussion All Committee members are asked to review

and comment on the minutes of their meetings within reasonable

time after the meetings

The procedures and arrangements relating to the meetings of the

Board are applied to meetings of the Board Committees whenever it is

appropriate
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The Audit Committee was established in 1998 Currently the

members ot the Committee are Messrs David Li Kwok P0 as

Committee Chairman Ronald Arculli and Wong Kai Man who are all

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Committee members have professional qualifications and

experience in financial matters that enable the Committee to exercise

its powers effectively and provide the Board with independent views

and recommendations in relation to financial matters

The principal roles of the Audit Committee are to ensure that the

Company has formal and transparent arrangements for considering

matters relating to the Groups financial reporting and internal

controls and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the

Companys internal and external auditors

The duties of the Audit Committee as set out in its terms of reference

adhere to the code provisions of the Stock Exchange Code

The Audit Committee holds two regular meetings annually and also

meets at such other times as are necessary Any Audit Committee

member may convene meeting of the Committee The external

auditor may also request the Committee Chairman to convene

meeting of the Audit Committee The Audit Committee may invite

the external auditor and/or members of Management to attend any

of the meetings Special meetings may be called at the discretion

of the Committee Chairman or at the request of Management to

review
significant internal control or financial issues The Committee

Chairman reports to the Board at least twice year on the

Committees activities and highlights any significant issues

The number of meetings of the Audit Committee held and attended by

each of the Audit Committee members during the year were

Notes

lifln
Meetings held

during 2009

DL The Hon sir Dasid Li Kwok Po was appointed the cowwittee chairwax

with ettert frow 24 Aneest 2009

ML Peter Lee Ting chang passed away and reased to he rowwittee

wewher on 17 Ortober 2009

St MP Group Annual Report 2009
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JI Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0 Note

iei The Hon Ronald Arculli

Ut et P142 Mr Peter Lee Ting Chang Notedt Mr Wong Kai Man

33



t1jtft Corporate Governance

r3 ti eL 9t
Jol jntLIXIq

Fri tIC vIX fl

tin

fl4âIJN

Key matters reviewed by the Audit Committee during the year were

Audited financial statements

Final and interim results

Report trom the external auditor on the audit ot the Groups

accounts

Re-appointment of the external auditor

External auditors audit service plan

Internal control report

Internal audit report

Compliance report

Malpractice report

Information technology work plan report

Amendments to terms of reference to the Audit Committee

During the year the Board has not taken any view that is different

from that of the Audit Committee nor rejected any recommendation

presented by the Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2DDD majority

of its current members are Independent Non-executive Directors

Currently the members of the Committee are Messrs Wong Kai Man as

Committee Chairman Ronald Arculli and Kuok Khoon Ean

The Committee determines the remuneration packages of Executive

Directors and senior management of the Group The Committee also

gives recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Nom

executive Directors The Committee reviews human resources policies

of the Group including retirement benefits and share options under

the Companys Share Dpfion Scheme

The duties of the Remuneration Committee as set out in its terms of

reference adhere to the code provisions of the Stock Exchange Code

The Committee meets once year and at such other time as is

necessary Any Committee member may convene meeting of the

Remuneration Committee
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The number of meetings ot the Remuneration Cnmmittee held and

attended by each ot the Remuneration Committee members during

the year were

Mr wong Kai Man was appointed as cowwitten member and the

Committee Chairman with effect truw tt December 2009

Mr Petnr Lee Ting Chang panned away and reannd tn be rnmwittee

member and the Committee Chairman on t7 October 2009

Key matters reviewed by the Remuneration Committee during the year

were

Groups remuneration policy

Remuneration policy of Managing Director and Chief Executive

Officer and senior management

Remuneration package of Managing Director and Chief Executive

Officer and senior management

Remuneration of Non-executive Directors

Performance and membership of the Groups retirement plans

Groups remuneration competitiveness and human resources

initiatives

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2005 majority of its

current members are Independent Nun-executive Directors Currently

the members of the Committee are Messrs Ronald Arculli as

Committee Chairman David Pang and Wong Kai Man

Prior to the establishment of the Nomination Committee the Board

was responsible for agreeing to the appointment of its members

and nominating them for election and re-election by the Companys

shareholders

The remit of the Nomination Committee is to identify candidates

for appointment to the Board and to review the size structure and

composition of the Board Before an appointment is made the

Nomination Committee evaluates the balance of skills knowledge and

experience on the Board and in the light of this evaluation prepares

description of the role and capabilities required for particular

appointment If deemed appropriate external consultants may be

used to identify suitable candidates

StMP Group Auuual Report 2009
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5559o5 N4fiIt Mr Wong Kai Man Note

5551 The Hon Ronald Arculli

13LM11 Mr Kuok Khuon Ean

15511 ff512 Mr Peter Lee Ting Chang Note
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The duties of the Nomination Committee as set out in its terms of

reference adhere to the recommended host practices of the Stock

Exchange Code

The Nomination Committee meets at such time as the Committee

Chairman shall require Any Committee member may convene

meeting of the Nomination Committee

NnQ The number of meetings of the Nomination Committee held and

attended by each of the Nomination Committee members during the

year were

wna wenn
Meeting Meeting held

Directors attended during 2009

ij The Hon Ronald Arculli Note

4t2 Mr Peter Lee Ting Chang Notett Dr David Pang

1i3 Mr Wong Kal Man Note

ltili NotesWV HT0 The Hon Ronald Arcelli was appointed the committee chairman with

etfert from 11 December 2009

TJ tG0TttiLt.H Mr Peter Lee Ting chang passed away and reased to be committee

tIt member and the Committee chairman on t7 October 2009

Mr Wong Kai Man was appointed as committee member with effect

trom tt December 2009

During the year the Nomination Committee reviewed the size

structure and composition of the Board and made recommendations

to the Board on the appointment of new director and re-election of

retiring directors of the Company

tiIt Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is chaired by the Managing Director and

Chief Executive Dfficer and composed of senior executives of the

Group and heads of the Groups divisions Meetings are held regularly

to

Ensure business activities are coordinated and profitable

Evaluate business and operating risks

Review and propose strategic plans to achieve long-term growth

and profitability

Discuss malor operating issues

Review and approve malor expenditures

Approve partnerships ventures and significant disposal of assets
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Internal Controls

The Group has established internal controls in all material aspects

of its business including financial operational compliance and risk

management functions These internal controls are intended to

safeguard the shareholders investments and the Groups assets

To the extent relevant the Groups internal control framework uses

aspects from the United Kingdoms Turnbull Guidance and the internal

control and risk management framework proposed by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants checklist based on the

checklist proposed by the United Kingdoms Turnbull Guidance has

been drawn up by the Company to assist the Directors in their review

of the Groups internal control system

The responsibilities for maintaining the Groups internal controls

are divided between the Board and Management The Board is

responsible for setting and reviewing internal control policies to

monitor the Groups internal control systems The Board delegates

the implementation of these policies to Management Management is

responsible for identifying and evaluating the risks faced by the Group

and for designing operating and monitoring an effective internal

control system which implements the policies adopted by the Board

The Company established an internal audit function in 2GG5 Audit

plans risk assessments and regular internal audit reports are

presented to and reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board of

Directors

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the Groups systems

of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness Preliminary

reviews of the Groups financial controls internal control and risk

management systems prior to formal reviews by the Board have

been delegated to the Audit Committee in accordance with its terms

of reference The Audit Committee reviews the Groups financial

controls internal control and risk management systems at its regular

Audit Committee meetings It should be noted however that while

sound and well-designed system of internal control helps to provide

reasonable safeguards to assist the Group in achieving its business

objectives the system itself cannot provide protection with certainty

against the Group failing to meet its business objectives or against

all material errors losses fraud or breaches of laws or regulations

For this reason the Boards review of the internal controls should not

be treated as an absolute assurance that one of the risks mentioned

above would not materialise

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Groups material

controls including financial operational and compliance controls

and risk management functions as well as the adequacy of resources

qualifications and experience of staff of its accounting and financial

reporting function and their training programmes and budget during

the year and considered the Groups system of internal controls to be

effective

SCM Group Auuual Report 2009 37



4ttft Corporate Governance

2G1Q

tt6061 rt iJ

iThcPQJ

flJft
flflfli3fl2HflUfl Pft

t0iIEfl rft
iJ sftf$

tftbItnl

External Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers was first appointed as the Groups external

auditor in 2001

During the year PricewaterhouseCoopers provided the following audit

and non-audit services to the Group

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$000

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and offer themselves for

re-appointment at the annual general meeting of the Company to be

held in May 2010

statement by PricewaterhouseCoopers about their reporting

responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in

the Independent Auditors Report section of this Annual Report on

pages 60 to 61

Code of Conduct

we pride ourselves on our integrity and ethical standards Our

reputation is priceless business asset and fundamentally depends

on the fair and honest practices of all employees we have adopted

Company Code of Conduct Code of Conduct to ensure that all

Directors managers and employees act with integrity Employees

are expected to share the responsibility of maintaining the Groups

reputation and their own by performing their duties with obectivity

accuracy fairness and by strict compliance with all relevant laws of

any applicable urisdiction and the Code of Conduct Journalists are

also expected to comply with the Hong Kong Journalists Associations

Code of Ethics

The Group has adopted Protocol on Malpractice Reporting and

Investigation which sets out specific procedures facilitating whistle

blowing reports and investigation thereof

38 SCMP Group Annual Report 2009
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Shareholder Relations Shareholders Rights

All of the Companys shares are ordinary shares carrying equal voting

rights As at the date of this Annual Report sufficient shares of thc

Company were on public float as required by the Listing Rules

The Board and Management recognise their responsibility to look

after the interests of the shareholders of the Company Shareholder

relations play an integral part in corporate governance The Group

keeps shareholders informed of its performance operations and

significant business developments by adopting transparent and

timely corporate disclosure policy which complies with the Listing

Rules and provides all shareholders equal access to such information

We report on financial and operating performance to shareholders

twice each year through annual and interim reports We give

shareholders the opportunity to raise concerns or propose

recommendations to the Board at the Companys annual general

meetings representative ot the Companys external auditor is

requested to attend the annual general meetings to answer questions

about the external audit and the audit report Shareholders may vis

our website www.scmpgroup.com for up-to-date financial and other

information about the Group and its activities

The Legal and Corporate Secretarial Department and Corporate

Communications Department respond to enquiries from shareholders

and other interested parties throughout the year They also preserrt

to the Board any enquiry addressed to the Board by any shareholder

Their contact details are set out in the Corporate Information

section of this Annual Report on page 126 and our website

www.scmpgroup.com

The Company promotes fair disclosure of information to all investors

and care is taken to ensure that analyst briefings and other disclosures

made by the Company comply with the Listing Rules prohibition

against selective disclosure of price sensitive information In additirrn

to statutory reporting obligations the Group provides timely

information about corporate atfairs by issuing press releases through

the Corporate Communications Department

From t99G to 2GG9 all annual and special general meetings of

shareholders held by the Company were attended by the then

incumbent chairman of the Board

Shareholders have specific rights to convene special general meetings

under the Companys Bye-Laws shareholder or shareholders

holding not less than one-tenth of the Companys shares may require

the Directors to convene special general meeting of the Company by

depositing signed requisition at the registered office of the Company

stating the purpose of the meeting tip to the date of this Annual

Report no shareholder has requested the Company to convene

special general meeting
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Any shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth ot the

total voting rights ot all the shareholders having the right to vote at

general meeting or not less than one hundred shareholders may

by written requisition given to the Company not less than six weeks

in case ot requisition requiring notice ot resolution or one week

in case of any other requisition before the general meeting move

resolution at the general meeting

The Company held an annual general meeting in May 2009 during

which matters including the payment ot final dividend re-election

ot retiring Directors authorisation ot the Board to fix Directors tee

re-appointment of external auditor and grant ot general mandate

for the issuance and repurchase ot Company shares by the Group

were presented for shareholders approval During the annual

general meeting details of the poll voting procedures and the
rights

ot shareholders to demand poll were set out in the circular to

shareholders and read out at the meeting All proposed resolutions

were voted by poll and approved by the shareholders present at the

meeting The results ot the shareholders votes were published on the

website ot the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the

Companys website

The Companys next annual general meeting will be held on 24 May

2010 at Island Ballroom Level Island Shangri-La Hotel Pacitic

Place Supreme Court Road Hong Kong
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Operating Results of the Group

The Groups consolidated operating results for the years ended

31 December 2009 and 2008 were as follows

LE-i-Hih$
For the year ended 31 December

2009 2008

Represents an increase/decrease in excess of 100%

Profit attributable to shareholders for the year dropped 20% to

$138.2 million Our businesses were affected by the downturn in

local economy for most of the year which started to improve in the

fourth quarter Revenue for the full year went down 29% to $740.7

million and operating profit from principal activities dropped 8O% to

$45.6 million mainly due to significant drop in newspaper advertising

revenues

SCM Onup Annual Repuit 2009

1HK$ mi//ions except per share amounts Change

I41 continuing operations

Revenue 740.7 1037.8 29

I02t5 Staff costs 323.6 355.4

Production costs 126.7 164.9 23

Rental and utilities 37.8 41.2

Advertising and promotions 34.9 38.0

Other operating expenses 115.3 156.9 27

Operating costs before depreciation and amortisation 638.3 756.4 16$$ Depreciation and amortisation 56.8 53.8

Operating profit from principal activities 45.6 227.6 80

-tfiJIA Other income 4.7 5.7 18

t9

Fair value gain/loss on investment properties 134.9 81.2

Operating profit 185.2 152.1 22

Net interest income 1.1 2.2 50

idP1/j Share of losses/profits of associates 3.4 1.2

Deferred tax on fair value changes of investment properties 22.3 13.4

Taxation 12.5 35.0 64

Profit from continuing operations 148.1 133.9 11

Discontinued operations

Net gain from discontinued operations 51.4 100

Profit for the year 148.1 185.3 20

Minority interests 9.9 12.5 21

RQ1J Profit attributable to shareholders 138.2 172.8 20

ftIi Earnings per share HK cents 8.9 11.1 20
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Revenue

23%38.2Th671L9f6%$712
i3O%ifb 45$

The consolidated revenLie for the years ended 31 December 2009 and

2008 by business segment and for the Group were as follows

ZTit$
2009 2008 Change

Staff costs decreased 9% or $31.8 million mainly due to lower bonus

provision and lower salary costs Average headcount for the year

decreased 12% as compared to last year owing to the disposal or

suspension of non-core businesses and staff retrenchment exercises

Production costs decreased 23% or $38.2 million resulting from

lower newsprint consumption and the suspension of book publishing

business last year Average 45gsm newsprint cost for the year rose

6% from US$671 to US$712 per metric ton which was fully offset by

30% reduction in usage The latest market price of 45gsm newsprint

is US$515 per metric ton Other operating expenses were generally

lower than last year as result of various cost saving initiatives driven

by management

42 SCMP Group Annual Report 2009

HK$ mi//ions

Newspaper publishing 590.5 851.3 31
Magazine publishing 125.6 154.5 19

Property 24.4 27.5 11

Book publishing and others 0.2 4.5 96

Total revenue from continuing operations 740.7 1037.8 29

Operating Costs and Expenses

Operating costs and expenses for the years ended 31 December 2009

and 2008 were as follows

HK$ millions 2009 2008 %ChangeIVContinuing operations

TOQ2c Staff costs 323.6 3554

J7t Production costs 126.7 164.9 23
Rental and utilities 37.8 41.2

Advertising and promotions 34.9 38.0

Other operating expenses 115.3 156.9 27
t0tM Depreciation and amortisation 56.8 53.8

Total operating costs and expenses 695.1 810.2 14



EBITDA and Operating profit

Management Discussion and Analysis

Earnings before interest tax depreciation and amortisation EBIIDA

and operating profit from principal activities for the years ended

31 December 2009 and 2008 by business segment and for the Group

were as follows

HK$ mi/lions

EBlTDAJI
Contribution to EBITDA

TTit
2009 2008

T31%590.5

JJkx14%
43

Contribution to

operating profit

from principal activities

change 2009 2008

Revenue dropped 31% to $590.5 million due to decline in advertising

sales as result of the soft economy

The weakness in Hong Kongs economy has been challenging for our

advertising business Display advertising volume and yield dropped

Recruitment activity remained quiet throughout the year and

recruitment advertising revenue dropped Notices revenue increased

14% mainly driven by strong IPO activities in the second half of

the year total of 60 P05 were raised in 2009 with 43 raised iii

September to December which accounted for 80% of the full year

revenue

SCMP Group Annuai Report 2009

SIjjL4IJ

J%5ijEBIJDA

change

Newspaper publishing 74.8 234.7 68 21.2 182.4 88

Magazine publishing 8.5 24.6 65 7.1 23.1 69

$t Property 18.1 22.6 20 16.3 22.6 28IthBook publishing and others 1.0 0.5 1.0 0.5

Total from continuing operations 102.4 281.4 64 45.6 227.6 80

dlljO100% Represents an increase in excess of 100%

Financial Review by Business

Newspaper Publishing

fliE
For the year ended 31 December

H/f$ millions 2009 2008 changc

Revenue 590.5 851.3 3t

EBITDA 74.8 234.7 68

Operating profit from principal activities 21.2 182.4 88

Net profit attributable to shareholders 20.9 164.3 87

7trlj EBITDA margin 13% 28%

Operating margin from principal activities 4% 21%
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ii11%
8%

SCMP

Based on the un-audited circulation figures for the second half of the

year average circulation of South China Morning Post and Sunday

Morning Post dropped 1% and 8% respectively when compared to

same period last year The swine flu in Hong Kong caused short term

impact on circulation in the hospitality segment in particular

$SMP

HK$ millions

P%100%

YL 8.9

Magazine Publishing

For the year ended 31 December

2008

Represent5 decrease in excess 01100%

Magazine division recorded net loss of $8.9 million in 2009 mainly

due to continued investment on the China titles and lower advertising

revenues resulting from the downturn in local economy While

advertising sales of all titles were affected by the financial crisis the

womens titles in Hong Kong continued to be profitable

StP Group Annual Reporl 2009

104552 102102 103516 102644

/iPI1 Audited except 2H 2009

2005 2000 2001 2008 0009

2009

Revenue 125.6 154.5 191i EBITDA 8.5 24.6 65

Operating profit from principal activities 7.1 23.1 69/Ij Net loss/profit attributable to shareholders 8.9 2.1

in

Change
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Property

For the year ended 31 Decemberfl Tfl$
HK$ millions 2009 2008 Change

Revenue 24.4 27.5 11

EBITDA 18.1 22.6 20

Operating protit from principal activities 16.3 22.6 28

Net profit/floss attributable to shareholders 126.7 44.6

/7lI0%5M1OO% Represents an increase/n excess of 100%

Net profit included revaluation gain net of deferred tax ot $112.7

112.7 /ft million in 2009 while there was revaluation loss of $67.8 million in

n\tf/r$T 17.5%T 2008 Operating profit from principal activities dropped mainly due tc

tax credit in 2008 resulting from the change of tax rate from 17.5%

to 16.5% and property which has been occupied for own use since

the lease expired in October 2008

ftEWt Liquidity and Capital Resources

5k The Groups main source of liquidity is recurring cash flows from

1tE5kM5k the publishing business which is supplemented from time to time by

rrrY /31 ES Wal banking facilities The Groups financial position as at 31 December

2009 and 2008 were as follows

zWTit
TiES flkft

HK$ millions 31 December 2009 31 December 2008 Change

T.315kT/35k5k5k Cash and cash equivalents 254.1 272.0

lk5kW5k Shareholders funds 2091.4 1910.3

ftESr Ratios

W5kitb5k Gearing

5tkt Current ratio 3.5 2.5

The Groups cash and cash equivalents are held predominantly in Hong

Kong dollars and the Group has no significant exposure to foreigi

exchange fluctuations

W5ki.ES 311ES The Group had no gearing as at 31 December 2009 The ratio of

current assets to current liabilities was 3.5 times

The Group managed to maintain very strong cash position and

expects its cash and cash equivalents cash generated from operatiors

and funds available from external sources to be adequate to meet irs

working capital requirements to finance planned capital expenditures

and to pay dividends
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fl7Q7jfrfl2522M

L48.4r7EdlIA
LA/fl$41.1flJL

tflILnA
51.4m

4ffl31.2flIttfl

fljn$ $fl7
Mf

1Lfi3bfl

Operating Activities

The newspaper publishing business was the major source ot the

Groups cash flow from operating activities Net cash generated from

operating activities for the year was $70.7 million compared with

$252.2 million for last year The lower cash inflow was caused by the

drop in advertising income

Investment Activities

Net cash outflow from investing activities for the year was $48.4

million compared with ao inflow of $41.1 million for 2008 The major

cash outflow items for 2009 include investments in corporate bonds of

$23.7 million and capital expenditure of $33.9 million which was spent

mainly on the office relocation project during the year In 2008 the

Group has disposed of its interests in music publishing and video and

film post-production businesses and realised cash proceeds of $51.4

million

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the year was $40.2 million

of which $31.2 million was for the payment of the 2008 final dividend

to the Companys shareholders and $9.0 million to minority

shareholder

Outlook

The year 2010 is starting with continued uncertainty and we cannot

predict when and to what degree the economy will fully recover

However we continue to he focused on driving our business

forward both by exploring new business opportunities as well as

by strengthening our core news media business Relationships with

our clients both readers and advertisers remain of paramount

importance and we will continue to focus on deepening those ties We

consistently seek ways to drive deeper engagement with our audience

through ongoing enhancements to our products as well as new

avenues for distributing our content to meet the evolving habits of our

readers At the same time we are also evaluating additional products

to continue to deliver increased value and service to our audience
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the

audited financial statements of SCMP Group limited the Company

and its subsidiaries collectively the Group for the year ended

31 December 2GD9

Principal activities and segment information

The Company is an investment holding company The principal

activities of the Group during the year comprised the publishing

printing and distribution of the South China Morning Post Sunday

Morning Post and other print and digital publications The Group was

also involved in property investment

An analysis of the Groups performance for the year by operating

segments is set out in note to the financial statements

Major suppliers and customers

During the year whilst the Group purchased more than 3D% of

its goods from its five largest suppliers sales to the five largest

customers accounted for less than 3Q% of the total sales for the year

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to

the Groups major suppliers and customers are as follows

Silchester International Investors International Value Equity Trust

shareholder who owned more than 5% of the Companys share capital

as at 31 December 2DD9 informed the Company that during the year

it held less than 5% interest in related company of one of the five

largest suppliers

Save from the above and as far as the Directors are aware neithei

the Directors their associates nor shareholders who own more than

5% of the Companys share capital as at 31 December 2DD9 had any

interest in the five largest suppliers and customers

Financial results

The
profit of the Group for the year and the state of affairs of the

Company and the Group as at 3t December 2DD9 are set out in the

financial statements on pages 62 to 66

Dividend

During the year no interim dividend 2D08 HK6 cents per share was

paid The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend

for the year 2DD8 HK2 cents per share
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28.97% the largest supplier 28.97%

65.42% five largest suppliers combined 65.42%

Sales

4.45% the largest customer 4.45%

18.49% five largest customers combined 18.49%
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Five year financial summary

The summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 125

Property plant and equipment and investment

properties

Movements in the property plant and equipment and details of

investment properties of the Group are disclosed in note and note

to the financial statements respectively

Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Companys principal subsidiaries as at

31 December 2009 are set out in note 32 to the financial statements

Associates

2Ic Ei Particulars of the Groups principal associates as at 31 December 2009

are set out in note 32 to the financial statements

Share capital

Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company are

set out in note 14 to the financial statements

Distributable reserves

E.E Details of the reserves of the Company available for distribution to

shareholders as at 31 December 2009 are set out in note 15 to the

financial statements

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights
under the Companys Bye

Laws or the laws in Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on pro rate basis to existing shareholders

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Company are disclosed in note 15 to

the financial statements Movements in the reserves of the Group are

disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

64

Charitable donations

During the year the Group made charitable donations totaling

HK$179012

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of

this report were

Non-executive Directors

Dr David Pang Chairman

Roberto ongpin ii Mr Roberto Ongpin Deputy Chairman

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean

SCMP Group Aiiiiuaf RtpOtt 200948
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42i Company

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Hon Ronald Arcu Iii

Mr Peter Lee Ting Chang doceased on 17 October 2009

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0

Mr Wong Kai Man

Executive Director

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong Managing Director and Cbiet Executive Otticer

The Board ot Directors the Board and statt of the Company

expressed our deepest regrets on the passing of Mr Peter Lee Ting

Chang Mr Lee was devoted and tireless member of the Board

who consistently held us to the highest standards of journalism and

business professionalism He made major contributions to the Board

as well as to our various committees including the Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee and Nominafion Committee The Board

would like to record note of special thanks and appreciation to

Mr Lee for all his effort and contributions during his tenure with the

Company

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Companys Bye-Laws Messrs

Roberto Ongpin Kuok Khoon Fan and Wong Kai Man shall retire

by rotation and are eligible for re-election at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting of the Company

The Board approved the appointment of Dr Fred Hu Zu Liu as an

Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from

23 March 2010 In accordance with Bye-Law 102W of the Companys

Bye-Laws Dr Hu shall hold office until the conclusion of the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company and is eligible

for re-election at the meeting

Directors interests in shares underlying shares and

debentures

As at 31 December 2009 the Directors of the Company had the

following interests or short positions in shares underlying shares ansi

debentures of the Company and its associated corporations within

the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance the

SF0 as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section

352 of the SF0 or as notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stoch

Exchange the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies the Model

Code or as otherwise notified to the Company

fl
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interests

Number of ordinary

shares held

ER1IAQflth
Approximate of

issued share capital
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33333 Mr Kuok Khoon Fan 23 Corporate 340000 0.02%

333 Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0 Personal 4778000 0.31%
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ii fl5 Associated Corporations

flitIA
Number of ordinary shares held

fl/ flft

ILkU Jfl Zfifl Numberof underlying Approximate

Name of Associated IIPIS Personal Corporate Family/Other ordinary shares held lit of issued

Corporation
Name of Director interests interests interests under equity derivatives Total share capital

Kelly Group
Limited 3TLttMr Kook Kbooo Eon 51973807 51973807 3.4073

73731Ms Kook Hoi Kwoog 238999882 23899988 l.56%6

W7331 L5tMr Kook Kbooo Eat 1283082 1283082 0.09%

Kerry Properties Limited FiiMsKook Roi Kwoog 50000 1252048 400000 1702048 0.12%

Notes

sEL7373733L737311%73Allerlon Limited73173273H1di73 This represeots deemed corporate ioteresto held by Mr Kook Khoon Eon

Allerlon LimitedWSP73t73E1%7373df873 through Allerlon Limited ohich is wholly owned by Mr Kook ond his

spouse

tLL73t7373737373Ek73732ioOoooO7383d%P7373i%73 This inclodes 1000000 shores held by the spouse of Ms Kook Hni Kwong

73737373A73734j73k3737322899988P%8373 ond 22099900 shores held by Ms Kook through discretionary trust of

which she is contingent beneficiory

t1L73gP73737373737333737373737321d732732t173 This represents interests held by Ms Kook Hoi Kwong through

discretionary frost of which she is contingent beneficiary

7373$p737373737373873W737373P%731t07373 This represents interests in shore options held by the spouse of

73M73337373 rA8g83173731Mi%738i Ms Kook Hul Kwong to subscribe for the relevont underlying ordnory

ljhJj 73 shores of Kerry Properties Limited detoils of which ore set out in the

section headed Directors rghts to ocquire shores or debentures below

73 73 73 73 15 73 73 73 73 73 73 73 Ic 73 73
iii

73 Approsimate percentoge calculated hosed on the 1560945596 ordinory

t56o94559683Eko73i%83k73 shores of the Company in issue os of 31 December 2009

d3k37373LtJ5tRt1tKerry Groop LimitedIcC7373ft73C73 73 Approaimate percentage calculated hosed on the 1527684420 ordinory

731s2760442853E117373173091173 shores of Kerry Group Limited in issue os of 31 December 2009

5173 b%737373737373P%73n73731L73C73 73H Approximote percentage cmcolofed hosed on the 1428953442 ordinory

21428953442037373157317309173 shores of Kerry Properties cimited in issue os ot 3t December 2009

All fhe inferesfs sfafed ohove represenf long posifions in fhe shares of

fhe Company or its ossociofed corporofions
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Apart from the aforesaid as at 31 December 2009 none of the

Directors of the Company had any interest or short position in any

shares underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any

associated corporations within the meaning of the SF0 as recorded

in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SF0 or as

otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code

Directors rights to acquire shares or debentures

Company

T-5Jlj
ii -OliLij

None of the Directors including their spouses and children

under 18 years of age had been granted by the Company or had

exercised any rights to subscribe for shares or debentures of the

Company during the year ended 31 December 2009

ii Associated Corporation

The spouse of Ms Kuok Hui Kwong was granted share options

KPL Options to subscribe for shares in Kerry Properties

Limited an associated corporation of the Company within the

meaning of the SF0 during the year ended 31 December 2009

Details are set out as follows

i11R

Exercise

price/share

HK$

SCMl Group Annual Report 2009

WTitnU
Numberof

Number of KPL Options Number of

KPL Options granted KPL Options

th held as at during the held as at

Date of grant 01/01/2009 year 31/12/2009 Exercise period

02/04/2008 300000 300000 47.70 // 75000 02/04/2009 01/04/2018

Tranche

75000 02/04/2010 01/04/2018

Tranche II

J// EEl 150000 02/04/2011 01/04/2018

Tranche Ill

06/02/2009 100000 100000 17.58 lE9 50000 06/02/2010 05/02/2019

Tranche

50000 06/02/2011 05/02/2019

Tranche II

300000 100000 400000
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Save as stated above none of the Directors including their spouses

and children under 18 years of age had been granted any rights

to subscribe for shares or debentures of any of the associated

corporations of the Company within the meaning of the SF0 and

had not exercised any such rights during the year ended 31 December

2009

Apart from the aforesaid at no time during the year ended

31 December 2009 was the Company its subsidiaries its fellow

subsidiaries or its holding companies party to any arrangement to

enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of

shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate

Substantial interests in share capital

As at 31 December 2009 the following persons other than the

Directors of the Company had interests or short positions in the

shares and underlying shares of the Company representing 5% or

more of the voting power at any general meeting of the Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the

SF0

Silchester International Investors

Limited

Silchester International Investors

International Value Equity Trust

The Bank of East Asia Limited

Capacity/Nature of interests

/L6

Interest of controlled corporations

Hi Hi Hi

Interest of control led corporations

Hi Hi Hi tJ Hi
Interest of control led corporations

Beneficial owner

Hi Hi

Investment manager

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Hi Hi Hi Hi

Investment manager

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

Hi Hi Hi Hi

Investment manager

Beneficial owner

Long position/

Short position

1155061308

Long position

1155061308

Long position

1078717308

Long position

1078717308

Long position

2194850006

Long position

1143316347.8 HiHi

Long position

77194595

Long position

1341710

Long position

75000000

Short position

75000000

Long position

3048000 Hit

Long position

75000000

Short position

Approximate

of issued

share capital1

SCMP Group Annual Report 2009

Name

Number of

ordinary

shares held

Kerry Group Limited

Kerry Holdings Limited

Kerry 1989 CI Limited

Kerry Media Limited

iPMorgan Chase Co

74.00%

74.00%

69.11%

69.11%

14.06%

7.32%

4.95%

0.09%

4.80%

4.80%

0.20%

4.80%
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Kerry Group Limitedhfi Li Li Li1155G613G8Li Li Li ii Li Li

930O6t3O8LiPLh.kLi225O0OOO0t9J9rLit Li$IILiML

Kerry Holdings LimitedLi LiLi1155061308P1L9j2MLi t4iiiLihft

fitKerry Group LimitedLitLim

Kerry 1989 Cl LimitedLi LiLi1G78717308Lit9j3sMLi ttsJ1

yhtikKerry Group LimitedLiKerry Holdings LimitedLi

Kerry Media LimitedLit4LiAl078717308Li LitiLi

tJitKerry Group Limited Kerry Holdings LimitedfKerry 1989 Cl
LimitedLi2ILiLi

Lit
LiL UhIEnLigtkE Li nLH-ITYInH-tH silchester

loternatiosal Investors LimitedLi22O985000 LitfLiLiLi LiLi

LLiELit9rLLil4.16%

$k%XhELiXE TLiLfl.0HH Silchester

Istersatiosal Isvestors Isternational Valae Equity TrustLitlo831634

LiLiLiLiLiIL hePrLLLLi Lintrrt17tG%

Silrhester lstersatiooal Isvestorn Istersatiosal Value Equity TrusthhLi

LiLibJsijLsilchester Isternatiosal Investors Limited

5hLiLi
LiLiLLLi77264595LiLiLiMLitLi ALLELiLtL
4.95% Lit

10 LiflttLi.0EI tHLi
t56G945596LiBLiILik3j

fl9j\ LiLiJ-LinE3
Li Li Li Li Li LA Li Li Li Li Lit Li Li Li Li

Lift

ftff

Notes

The interests is the tt5506t3D8 shares held by Kerry Group Limited

romprise both the interests is 93GG6t3G8 shares asd the isterests is

225GGGGDO shares trom equity deriuatives

The isterests is the 1155061308 shares held by Kerry holdings Limited

are duplicated in the isterests reported above for Kerry Group Limited

The isterests is the t0787t73G8 shares held by Kerry 1989 CI Limited

are duplicated is the respective isterests reported above for Kerry Group

Limited and Kerry holdisgs Limited

The isterests is the 1078717308 shares held by Kerry Media Limited

are duplicated is the respective isterests reported above tsr Kerry Group

Limited Kerry Holdisgs Limited asd Kerry 1989 tC.I Limited

lsvestmest masager acting os behalf of chests and not cossected with

the Compasy

The Compasy has bees sotified isformally that as at 31 December 2GG9

Shichester Istersatiosal lsvestors Limited was isterested is 22098500C

shares frepresestisg approsimately 14.16% of the Compasys issued share

capital asd this iscrease in shareholdisg was sot required to be disclose

under Part XV of the SEQ

The Company has bees notified informally that as at 31 December 2009

Silchester International Investors International Value Equity Trust wa

interested in 110831634 shares frepresenting approsimately 7.10% of tho

Companys issaed share capital and this decrease in shareholding was nor

required to be disclosed under Part XV of the SF0

The interests held by silchester International Investors International Value

Equity Trust are duplicated in the interests reported above for Silchester

International Investors Limited

The Company has been notified informally that as at 31 December 20%
The Bank of East Asia Limited was interested in 77264595 shares

representing appronimately 4.95% of the Companys issued share capita

and this increase is shareholding was not required to be disclosed under

Part XV of the SF0

10 Apqrosimate percentage calculated based on the 1560945596 ordinay

shares of the Company is issue as at 31 December 2009

Save as stated above as at 31 December 2009 the Company had not

been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares and

underlying shares of the Company which had been recorded in the

register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SF0

St MV SntIj Annual Report 2009 53



Directors Report

J$OQIItFL

ft3tMMfllMAftWPftfltM1flt

tAMftQtHf rtIJTH-IH rftMHMJ MAAM
tRIVE

MMMPMj1 rAAMJ UfttiAPHM71c

j2H
UAAH1ftHftftftftftiiMWMM4iM

Mi Mftft MMMP 3tPTM

ftM1MtW MMiflUftM MAflhW MM
AMMMMMMA HM1-

tEgi-I-ic

nHthMMA
MM4czM

ía ftP ti ii AM 11 -i Ia ía

APt MAMA HEAPtHt
IAA1D% MAMA
156094559ftt PPM MAMMA MEA APjlo%

APE Ill 131a Pt Pt AM PPM Ut Pa

AUPA AtaE MAMMA MAMAMAIP
AM

MtM1AE1aMfl
MAMA AAAt31JtIJ1IIMA

MAMMA PEAk IMMEPMIMA PPM PIMPEPk

EtIT AMA

Share option scheme

It is part of the Groups policy to reward employees tor their past

cootributioos to the Group aod motivate them to optimize their tuture

cootrihutioos and enable the Group to attract and retain individuals

with experience and
ability

During the year the Company had share option scheme the

Scheme which was approved at the annual general meeting of

the Company held on 25 May 2006 the Adoptioo Date Under

the Scheme the Board may grant options to subscribe for shares of

the Company to any full-time employee or Executive Director of the

Company or any of its subsidiaries the Executive

The subscription price of the options pursuant to the Scheme shall

not be less than whichever is the highest of the nominal value of

share of the Company the closing price of share of the Compaoy

as stated in the daily quotatioo sheet of the Stock Exchange on the

date of the Boards approval of grant of the option the Offer Date

and Hi the average of the closing prices of share of the Company

in the Stock Exchanges daily quotation sheets for the five business

days immediately preceding the Offer Date An offer of the grant of an

option shall remain open for acceptance by the Executive concerned

at no consideration for period of 28 days from the date on which an

option is offered to the Executive

Under the Scheme no option may be exercised earlier than one year

after it has been granted or later than ten years after the Adoption

Dace i.e 25 May 2016 The remaining life of the Scheme is up to

25 May 2016 The maximum number of shares of the Company which

may be issued upoo exercise of all options to be graoted under the

Scheme when aggregated with shares to be issued upon exercise of

options granted uoder aoy other share option scheme of the Company

may not exceed 1D% of the shares of the Company in issue as at

25 May 2006 As at the date of this report the total number of shares

available for issue under the Scheme was 156094559 represeoting

approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at

the date of this report

The maximum number of shares of the Company issued and to be

issued upon exercise of the options granted to any one Executive

including exercised and outstanding options under the Scheme in any

12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in

issue from time to time

None of the substantial shareholders of the Company has beeo granted

any share option under the Scheme None of the suppliers of goods

or services to the Group has been granted any share option under the

Scheme No participant of the Scheme has been granted share options

io excess of the maximum entitlement of each participant

During the year no share option was granted exercised cancelled or

lapsed under the Scheme No share option was outstanding under the

Scheme as at 31 December 2009
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Directors interest in competing business

None of the Directors of the Company has any interest in business

which competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group

during the year

Directors interests in contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Groups business to which

the Company or any of its subsidiaries was party and in which

Director of the Company had material interest whether directly or

indirectly subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year

Directors service contracts

No Director proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group

which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was

entered into or existed during the year

Connected transactions

During the year the Company and its subsidiaries had certain related

party transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements

which also constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules

Certain subsidiaries of the Company had the following connected

transactions and continuing connected transactions with subsidiarie

of Kerry Group Limited substantial shareholder of the Company

defined in the Listing Rules Details of the transactions are set out

below

Transactions in respect of the financial year ended

31 December 2009

Connected Transactions

An agreement dated t7 February 2GG9 made

botween South China Morning Post Publishers Limited

SCMPP wholly-owned subsidiary of the Compan

and Kerry Properties Limited Korry Properties whico

is subsidiary of Kerry Group Limited whereby SCMPR

was engaged to publish three issues of The Dress

Circle magazine for Kerry Properties
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Under the above agreement A1a the service fee

was determined based on the editorial cost project

management cost printing and other production costs

involved in providing the services maximum total

service fee of HK$230GGDD approximate average

HK$7667DD for each issue was payable by Kerry

Properties to SCMPP

Two issues of the magazine were published in May

2GG9 and December 2DG9 respectively The aggregate

sum received or receivable for providing the services

amounted to HK$128GDGG during the year

Dn June 2GD9 the Company through SCMP 1994

Limited SCM 1994 its wholly-owned subsidiary

acquired guaranteed notes the Connected Debt

Securities issued by Gain Silver Finance Limited

subsidiary of Kerry Properties of the amount of

US$15GDDGD from third party vendors in the

secondary market at the consideration inclusive

of accrued interest transaction fees and expenses

of US$1526656 equivalent to approximately

HK$11847DGD

During the year SCMP 1994 further acquired

additional Connected Debt Securities of the amount

of US$15G0DDD from third party vendors in the

secondary market at the consideration inclusive

of accrued interest transaction tees and expenses

of US$153D2D3 equivalent to approximately

K$11872UDD

The consideration for the Connected Debt Securities

was determined with reference to market prices

quoted by independent third parties such as banks

debt securities dealers and institutional investors

having regard to the prevailing benchmark credit

spread market liquidity and counterparty risk where

applicable accrued coupons of the Connected Debt

Securities

As at 31 December 2DD9 SCMP 1994 held total

amount of US$3UGGDDD in face value of the

Connected Debt Securities

Continuing Connected Transaction

An agreement dated 19 December 2DD8 made between

SCMPP and Kerry Holdings Limited Kerry Holdings

subsidiary of Kerry Group Limited whereby SCMPP agreed

to provide advertising services to Kerry Holdings and Kerry

Group Limited and its subsidiaries and associates as defined

in the Listing Pules Kerry Group for the period from

January 2GG9 to 31 December 2DG9
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The service tees payable pursuant to the above agreement

were payable in cash or by cheque by the end ot the month

tollowing the month in which SCMPP issued invoices

The aggregate amount ot service tees received or receivable

pursuant to the above agreement tor the tinancial year

ended 31 December 2009 amounted to HK$2255926

In accordance with Rule 14A.37 Chapter 144 ot the Listing

Rules the Directors including Independent Non-executive

Directors ot the Company have reviewed the above

continuing connected transaction the Transaction and

contirm that the Transaction was entered into

in the ordinary and usual course ot business ot the

Group

on normal commercial terms and

in accordance with the relevant agreement on terms

that are tair and reasonable and in the interests ot the

shareholders ot the Company as whole

The Auditor ot the Company has also reviewed the

Transaction and contirmed to the Directors in writing that

the Transaction has been approved by the Board ot

Directors ot the Company

the Transaction is in accordance with the pricing polic

ot the Group

the Transaction has been entered into in accordance

with the relevant agreement governing the Transaction

and

the aggregate amount received under the above

agreement tor the tinancial year ended 31 December

2009 does not exceed the annual cap of HK$6 million

as stated in the Companys announcement dated

19 December 20DB

Transactions in respect of the financial year ending

31 December 2010

Connected Transactions

An agreement dated 10 March 2010 made betwee

SCMPP with Ubagan Limited Ubagan an associate

as defined in the Listing Rules of Kerry Properties

whereby SCMPP will publish marketing brochure for

Ubagan
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Under the above agreement 81a the service tee was

determined based on the project management cost

and production cost involved in providing the services

maximum total service tee ot HK$1500000 will be

payable by Ubagan to SCMPP

An agreement dated 10 March 2010 made between

SCMPP and Kerry Communication Limited Kerry

Communication subsidiary of Kerry Properties

whereby 5CMPP will publish three issues of The Dress

Circle magazine for Kerry Communication

Under the above agreement B1b the service fee

was determined based on the editorial cost project

management cost printing and other production costs

involved in providing the services maximum total

service fee of HK$2300000 approximate average

HK$766700 for each issue will be payable by Kerry

Communication to SCMPP

Continuing Connected Transaction

An agreement dated 11 january 2010 made between 5CMPP

and Kerry Holdings whereby SCMPP agreed to provide

advertising services to Kerry Holdings and other companies

in the Kerry Group for the period from january 2010 to

31 December 2010

The service fees payable pursuant to the above agreement

are payable in cash or by cheque by the end of the month

following the month in which SCMPP issued invoices

The Company expects that the maximum aggregate amount

of service fees receivable under this agreement for the

financial year ending 31 December 2010 will be HK$6 million

as stated in the Companys announcement dated 11 january

2010

All the above connected transactions and continuing connected

transactions have been disclosed in accordance with Rules 14A.32 and

14A.35 Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules respectively
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Purchase sale or redemption of the Companys shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased sold or

redeemed any of the Companys shares during the year

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted the Model Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers the Model

Code as set out in Appendix 1D of the Listing Rules as the code for

securities transactions by Directors ot the Company All Directors

of the Company have confirmed their compliance with the required

standard set out in the Model Code during the year

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of

corporate governance Details of the Companys corporate governance

practices are set out in the Corporate Governance section of this

Annual Report on pages 28 to 40

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited bt

PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible offer

themselves for re-appointment

EVIl

On behalf of the Board

David Pang

Chairman

Hong Kong 22 March 2DtD
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PricewaterhouseCoopers

22nd Floor Princes Building

Central Hong Kong

Telephone 852 2289 8888

Facsimile 852 2810 9888

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SCMP GROUP LIMITED

incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

We have audited the consolidated tinancial statements ot SCMP Group

Limited the Company and its subsidiaries together the Group set

out on pages 62 to 124 which comprise the consolidated and company

balance sheets as at 31 December 2DD9 and the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income the consolidated statement of

changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the

year then ended and summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory notes

Directors responsibility for the financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation

and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial

statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Drdinance This responsibility includes designing

implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the

preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements

that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or

error selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated

financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion

solely to you as body in accordance with section 90 of the

Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose We do not

assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards

on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants Those standards require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement
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An audit involves pertorming procedures to obtain audit evidence

about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated tinancia

statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors

judgment including the assessment ot the risks ot materia

misstatement ot the consolidated tinancial statements whether

due to traud or error In making those risk assessments the auditor

considers internal control relevant to the entitys preparation and true

and fair presentation ot the consolidated tinancial statements in order

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances

but not tor the purpose ot expressing an opinion on the eftectiveness

of the entitys internal control An audit also includes evaluating the

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates made by the Directors as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give true and

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as ar

31 December 2009 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for

the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

Pricewaterhousecoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong 22 March 2010
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Audited Financial

Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheet

EI Asat3l December2009

2009 2008

Notes HK$OOO HK$000

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment 495661 502580

investment properties 1008100 986100

Lease premium for land 113121 13969

Intangible assets 19165 24729

interests in associates 10 46451 53334

Available-for-sale financial assets 11 200995 105.074

Defined benefit plans assets 26a 52198 60104

1935691 1745890

Current assets

Inventories 12 18557 38904

Accounts receivable 13 156719 187428

Prepayments deposits and

other receivables 15764 23411

Tax recoverable 3508

Cash and cash equivalents 27c 254112 272015

448660 521758

Total assets 2384351 2267648

11 EQUITY

Capital and reserves

J2 Share capital 14 156095 156095

Reserves 1935277 1722944

Proposed dividend 31219

15a 1935277 1.754.163

Shareholders funds 2091372 1.910.258

Minority interests 21037 20114

Total equity 2112409 1930372

IfI LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities 16 145308 125861

145308 125861

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 17 99450 142466

Subscriptions in advance 23104 24550

Current income tax liabilities 4080 44399

126634 211415

ijTotal liabilities 271942 337276

Total equity and liabilities 2384351 2267648

Net current assets 322026 310343

Total assets less current liabilities 2257717 2056233

The notes on pages 67 to 124 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements

Dr David Pang Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Chairman Director
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1111 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

jJJYear ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008

Notes HK$OOO HK$000R1 continuing operations

Revenue 740667 1037774

ffl.tlA Other income 4669 5684

T04 Staff costs 18 323559 355409

Cost of production materials 126671 164919

Rental and utilities 37828 41177

tJ$$$ Depreciation and amortisation 56762 53807

Advertising and promotion 34899 38036
Other operating expenses 115325 156829

Fair value gain/floss on investment properties 134919 81150

1IJ Operating profit 19 185211 152131

Finance income 1110 3195

Finance costs 1054

IA Finance income net 20 1110 2141/ij Share of losses/profits of associates 3434 1187

Profit before income tax 182887 155459

Income tax expense 21 34813 21557

Profit for the year from continuing operations 148074 133902

EfliLDiscontinued operations 22

Profit for the year from discontinued operations 51413

Profit for the year 148074 185315

ftkI Other comprehensive income/Ioss

Fair value gain arising

from reclassification of leasehold land to investment properties 8436

Fair value gain/floss on

available-for-sale financial assets 72031 188422

Currency translation difference 2151 3049
Income tax relating to components of

other comprehensive income 1351A/ZIJ
Other comprehensive income/Ioss for the year net of tax 74182 184386

Total comprehensive income for the year 222256 929

1JProfit attributable to

Shareholders of the Company 23 138151 172768

Minority interests 9923 12547

148074 185315A/m
Total comprehensive income/loss attributable to

Shareholders of the Company 212333 11618

Minority interests 9923 12547

222256 925

flJEarnings per sharej$$ Basic and diluted 25

Continuing operations 8.85Ii cents 7.78fL1J cent

Discontinued operations 3.29W cents

8.85Ii cents 11.07W cent

fl Dividends 24 124876

The notes on pages 67 to 124 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EI chJ Year ended 31 December 2009

pTr$$
Balance at January 2008

Comprehensive income

iPi Profit for the
yearZIA Other comprehensive income

Available-for-sale financial assets

Fair value loss taken to equity

hhJ l/
Translaf ior reserve released on disposal of

subsidiary

Eochaoge
difference an consalidation

kflU

Fair value
gain arising

from reclassification of

leasehold land Jo iraesfmerf properties

Deferred faxafior directly charged Jo equity

Attributable to shareholders of the company

uII
l1 Ai Investment Asset 1iI

Share Share Contributed revaluation revaluation Translation Retained

capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total

HK$OOo HK$000 HK$OOO HK$000 HK$OOO HK$oOO HK$000 HK$OOO

188422 188422 188422

1594 594 594

2455 2455 2455

8436 8436 8436

1351 1351 11351

________________________

Total other comprehensive income/Pass 1188422 7085 3049 184386 184386iJA/ Ii

Total comprehensive income/Ooss 188422 7085 3049 172768 11618 12547 929mi
Transactions with shareholders

Dividends 249752 249752 9000 258752

Total transactions with shareholders 249752 249752 9000 258752

TJ1- _________________________

Balance at 31 December 2008 156095 40971 865672 37301 10709 29407 828997 1910258 20114 1930372

if

Balance at January 2009 156095 40971 865672 37301 10709 29487 828997 1910258 20114 1930372

IA Comprehensive income

4rP Profif for fhe year 138151 138151 9923 148074

fllAOther comprehensive incomeil
Available-for-sale financial assets

Fair value gain taken to equity 72031 72031 72031

Exchange difference on consolidation 2151 2151 2151

oAb$Pf
Total other comprehensive income 72031 2151 74182 74102Aa
Total comprehensive income 72031 2151 138151 212333 9923 222256

fl1
Transactions with shareholders

Dividends 31219 31219 9000 40219

Total transactions with shareholders 31219 31219 19000 40219

Tjt-t-1-
Balanceat3lDecemberlOO9 156095 40971 865672 109332 10709 27336 935929 2091372 21037 2112409

Ml Group Annual Rport 2009

156095 40971 865672 225723

Minority Total

interests equity

HK$OOO HK$OOO

3624 26438 905981 2171628 16567 2.188195

172768 172768 12547 185315

The notes on pages 67 to 124 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

jjYear ended 31 December 2009

2009 2008

Notes HK$OOO HK$000

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 27a 129899 278478

Hong Kong profits tax paid 59145 26121

Overseas tax paid 48 160

Net cash generated from operating activities 70706 252197

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property plant and equipment and intangible assets 33913 17785fAWl
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets 23719

E1jlnterest received 1181 3279

EDividends received from

1i19i Listed investments 2160 2566

441 Associates 3462 1559WJ
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 967 71

iJ1 41

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 27b 1472 51421

Net cash used in/generated from investing activities 48390 41111

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid to minority shareholder of subsidiary 9000 9000
41 41

Dividends paid to the Companys shareholders 24 31219 249752

Interest paid 10544t4 Net cash used in financing activities 40219 259806

41fi
Net decrease/increase in cash and cash equivalents 17903 33502

41 Cash and cash equivalents at January 272015 238513

21
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 254112 272015

41ftAnalysis of cash and cash equivalents

41Cash and bank balances 27c 254112 272015

The notes on pages 67 to 124 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements
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BalanceSheet

Asat3l December2009

l1 EQUITY

Capital and reserves

J92c Share capital

Reserves

JI9 Proposed dividend

67124 The notes on pages 67 to

consolidated financial statements

124 are an integral part of these

Dr David Pang

1i
Chairman

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Director

SCMP Group Annual Report 2009

Notes

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$000

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Interests in subsidiaries 1353528 1384747

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 27c 812 610

Total assets 1354340 1385357

14

Total equity 1354340 1385357

15b

156095 156095

1198245 1198043

31219

1198245 1229262
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Corporate information

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company

with limited liability Its principal place ot business is Morning Post

Centre 22 Dai Fat Street Tai P0 Industrial Estate New Territories

Hong Kong

The Company acted as an investment holding company during the

year The principal activities of the Group during the year comprised

the publishing printing and distribution ot the South China Morning

Post Suoday Moroing Post and other print
and

digital publications

and properties investment

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

financial statements are set out below These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise

stated

Basis of preparation

M3tflRMi
tfflIs1c

flMflfl

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards HKFRS They have been

prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the

revaluation of investment properties certain leasehold buildings and

available-fur-sale financial assets as further explained below

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

l1$RIj

1flJ

iti4NtflJ
bJ .t

tft
ffiftwt

The Group has adopted the following new and amended HKFRSs

as of January 2009

HKAS revised Presentation of financial statements

HKAS revised prohibits the presentation of items of income and

expenses that is non-owner changes in equity in the statement

of changes in equity requiring non-owner changes in equity to be

presented separately from owner changes in equity in statement

of comprehensive income As result the Group presents in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity all owner changes in

equity whereas all non-owner changes in equicy are presented in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income Comparative

information has been re-presented so that it also is in conformit

with the revised standard Since the change in accounting policy onl

impacts presentation aspects there is no impact on earnings pei

share
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HKAS 23 revised Borrowing costs

The revised standard requires an entity to capitalise borrowing costs

directly
attributable to the acquisition construction or production of

qualifying asset that takes substantial period of time to get ready

for use or sale as part of the cost of that asset The Group previously

recognised all borrowing costs as an expense immediately The change

in accounting policy had no impact on earnings per share as the Group

was not involved in the acquisition construction or production of any

qualifying assets during the years presented

HKFRS Financial instruments disclosures

The amendment to HKFRS requires enhanced disclosures about fair

value measurement and liquidity risk In particular the amendment

requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of fair value

measurement hierarchy As the change in accounting policy only

results in additional disclosures there is no impact on earnings per

share

HKFRS Operating segments

RKFRS replaces HKAS 14 Segment reporting It requires

management approach under which segment information is

presented on the same basis as that used for infernal reporting

purposes This has resulted in changes in the reportable segments

presented as the previously reported segment of newspapers

magazines and other publications has been split into newspaper

segment and magazine segment

Operating segments are reported in manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker

HKICPAs improvements to HKFRS published in October 2008

HKICPAs improvements to HKFRS published in October 2008 sets out

number of amendments to HKFRS5 It includes an amendment to

HKAS 28 Investments in associates The amendment clarified that an

investment in an associate is treated as single asset for the purpose

of impairment testing and any impairment loss is not allocated to

specific assets included within the investment for example goodwill

Reversals of impairment are recorded as an adustment to the

investment balance to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

associate increases Following the amendment the Group now treats

its investments in each associate as single asset for the purpose

of impairment testing Any resulting impairment loss or subsequent

reversal will not be allocated to goodwill
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The following standards and amendments to existing standards

have been published and effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after January 2010 or later periods and the

Group has not early adopted them

HKIFRIC 17 Distribution of non-cash assets to owners effective on

or after July 2009 The interpretation is part of the HKICPAs annual

improvements project published in May 2009 This interpretation

provides guidance on accounting for arrangements whereby an entit

distributes non-cash assets to shareholders either as distribution ot

reserves or as dividends HKFRS has also been amended to require

that assets are classified as held for distribution only when they are

available for distribution in their present condition and the distribution

is highly probable The Group and Company will apply HKIFRIC 17

from January 2010 It is not expected to have material impact or

the Groups or Companys financial statements

HKAS 27 revised Consolidated and separate financial statements

eftective from July 2009 The revised standard requires the effect

of all transactions with minority interest to be recorded in equity it

there is no change in control and fhese transactions will no longer

result in goodwill or gains and losses The standard also specifies

the accounting when control is lost Any remaining interest in the

entity is re-measured to fair value and gain or loss is recognised

in profit or loss The Group will apply HKAS 27 revised prospectively

to transactions with minority interest from January 2010 It is not

expected to have material impact on the Groups or Companys

financial statements

HKFR5 revised Business combinations effective from July

2009 The revised standard continues to apply the acquisition

method to business combinations with some significant changes For

example all payments to purchase business aro to be recorded at

fair value at the acquisition date with contingent payments classified

as debt subsequently re-measured through the profit or loss There

is choice on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure the nor-

controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the nor-

controlling interests proportionate share of the acquirees net assets

All acquisition-related costs should be expensed The Group will apply

HKFRS revised prospectively to all business combinations from

January 2010

HKAS 38 amendment Intangible Assets effective from July

2009 The amendment is part of the HKICPAs annual improvements

project published in May 2009 and the Group and Company will apply

HKAS 38 amendment from the date HKFRS revised is adopted

The amendment clarifies guidance in measuring the fair value of an

intangible asset acquired in business combination and it permits the

grouping of intangible assets as single asset if each asset has similar

useful economic lives The amendmenf will not result in material

impact on the Groups or Companys financial statements
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HKFRS amendment Measurement of non-current assefs or

disposal Groups classified as held for sale The amendment is part

of the HKICPAs annual improvements project published in May 2009

The amendment provides clarification fhat HKFRS specifies the

disclosures required in respecf of non-current assets or disposal

Groups classified as held for sale or discontinued operations It also

clarifies that the general requirement of HKAS still apply particularly

paragraph 15 to achieve fair presentation and paragraph 125

sources of estimation uncertainty of HKAS The Group and

Company will apply HKFRS amendment from January 2010 It is

not expected to have material impact on the Groups or Companys

financial statements

HKAS amendment Presentation of financial statements The

amendment is part of the HKICPAs annual improvements project

published in May 2009 The amendment provides clarification that the

potential settlement of liability by the issue of equity is not relevant

to its classification as current or non-current By amending the

definition of current liability the amendment permits liability to be

classified as non-current provided that the entity has an unconditional

right to defer settlement by transfer of cash or other assets for at least

t2 months after the accounting period notwithstanding the fact that

the entity could be required by the counterparty to settle in shares

at any time The Group and Company will apply HKAS amendment

from January 2010 It is not expected to have material impact on

the Groups or Companys financial statements

HKFPS amendments Group cash-settled share-based payment

transactions effective from January 2010 In addition to

incorporating HKIFRIC-lnt Scope of HKFRS and HKIFRIC-lnt 11

HKFRS Group and treasury share transactions the amendments

expand on the guidance in IFRIC ii to address the classification of

Group arrangements that were not covered by the interpretation

The new guidance is not expected to have material impact on the

Groups financial statements

HKFRS Financial instruments The standard requires financial

assets to be classified into two measurement categories those to

be measured subsequently at fair value and those to be measured

subsequently at amortised cost The decision is to be made at initial

recognition The classification depends on the entitys business model

for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow

characteristics of the instrument This standard will be effective from

January 2013 The Group is in the process ot assessing the standard

and is not yet in position to state whether it has material impact

on the Groups financial statements
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Basis ot consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements

of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 3t December

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power tu

govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits

from their activities This power is deemed to exist when the Group

has shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights in an

entity

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is

transferred to the Group They are de-consolidated from the date that

control ceases

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the

acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group The cost of an acquisition

is measured as the fair value of the assets given equity instruments

issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange

plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition Identifiable assets

acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in

business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the

acquisition date The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Groups

interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets liabilities and

contingent liabilities acquired is recognised as goodwill If the cost

of acquisition is less than the Groups share of the net fair value of

acquirees identifiable assets liabilities and contingent liabilities the

difference is recognised directly in the Groups profit or loss

Inter-company transactions balances and unrealised gains on

transactions between group companies are eliminated

Interests in subsidiaries in the Companys balance sheet are stated at

cost less accumulated impairment losses- The results of subsidiaries

are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received

and receivable

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies policy of treating transactions with minority

interest as transactions with parties external to the group Disposas

to minority interest result in gains and losses for the Group and are

recognised in the Groups profit or loss Purchases from minority

interest result in goodwill being the difference between any

consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying

value of net assets of the subsidiary
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Hi Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has signiticant

influence hut not control generally accompanying shareholding ot

between 20% and 50% of the voting rights Interests in associates

are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are initially

recognised at cost The Groups interests in associates includes

goodwill identified on acquisition net of any accumulated impairment

loss

The Groups share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and post-

acquisition movements in reserves of associates is included in the

Groups profit or loss and consolidated reserves respectively The

cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the

carrying amount ot the investment When the Groups share of losses

in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate including

any other unsecured receivables the Group does not recognise further

losses unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf

of the associate

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker

The chief operating decision-maker who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments has

been identified as the Groups Managing Oirector and Chief Executive

Officer

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Groups

entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates the functional currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars HK$ which is the Companys functional and the Groups

presentation currency

ii Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional

currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the

transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the

settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year

end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or loss except when

deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges
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Translation ditterences on investments in equity instruments classified

as available for sale tinancial assets are included in the investment

revaluation reserve

Changes in the tair value ot monetary securities denominated ir

foreign currency classitied as available for sale are analysed between

translation ditferences resulting trom changes in the amortised cost of

the security and other changes in the carrying amount ot the security

Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost are

recognised in protit or loss and other changes in carrying amount are

recognised in equity

Ni Group companies

On consolidation the balance sheet of subsidiaries and associates

denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of

exchange ruling at the balance sheet date whilst the statement ot

comprehensive income is translated at an average rate The resulting

translation differences are included in the translation reserve

When any of these subsidiaries or associates is sold any translation

differences previously recognised in respect of such subsidiary of

associate are transferred to the profit or loss as part of the gain or

loss on sale

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of

foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity

and translated at the closing rate

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of

the Groups activities

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the future economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when these benefits can be

measured reliably on the following bases

on the sale of goods when the significant risks and rewards of

ownership have been transferred to the buyer provided that the

Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the

degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control

over the goods sold

newspaper advertisements and other services based on the

period in which such services are rendered

iii rental income in the period in which the properties are let out

and on the straight-line basis over the lease terms
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Property plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment other than assets in progress

are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses The cost ot an asset comprises its

purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset

to its working condition and location for its intended use Cost may

also include transfers from hedging reserve of any gains/losses on

qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property

plant and equipment

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or

recognised as separate asset as appropriate only when it is

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item

will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured

reliably All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the financial

period in which they are incurred

Fair value gains on property plant and equipment are dealt with in

the asset revaluation reserve Fair value losses are charged to the

profit or loss to the extent that they exceed fair value gains arising

previously on the individual assets subsequent fair value increase is

recognised as income to the extent that it reverses fair value loss of

the same asset previously charged to the profit or loss

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate

cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over estimated

useful lives Leasehold buildings are depreciated over period of 25

to 50 years Dther fixed assets other than leasehold improvements

are depreciated over to 2D years Leasehold improvements which

are included as part of other fixed assets are depreciated over the

lease term of to 5D years or their estimated useful lives whichever

is shorter No depreciation/amortisation is provided for assets in

progress

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted

if appropriate at each balance sheet date

An assets carrying amount is written down immediately to its

recoverable amount if the assets carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held to earn rentals

or for capital appreciation or both They comprise land held under

operating leases and buildings held under finance leases Land held

under operating leases is classified and accounted for as investment

property when the definition of investment property is met
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Investment properties are measured initially at costs including related

transaction costs Atter initial recognition investment properties are

carried at fair values with changes in fair values recognised in the

protit or loss The methods used to determine the tair values ot the

investment properties are set out in note to the tinancial statements

Subsequent expenditure on an investment property is included in the

assets carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic

benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost ot

the item can be measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance

costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied it is reclassifiec

as property plant and equipment and its fair value at the date ot

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property

because its use has changed any difference resulting between the

carrying amount and the fair value of this property at the date of

transfer is recognised as movement in the asset revaluation reserve

However if fair value gain reverses previous impairment loss the

gain is recognised in the profit or loss

Leases

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of

assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases

Payments made under operating leases including lease premium for

land held for own use net of any incentives received from the lessor

are charged to the profit or loss on straight-line basis over the lease

periods

ii Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases Finance leases

are capitalised at the leases commencement at the lower of the fair

value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum

lease payments Investment properties acquired under finance leases

are carried at their fair value
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Ci Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates

represents the excess of cost of the acquisition over the Groups

interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets liabilities and

contingent liabilities acquired Goodwill is stated at cost less

accumulated impairment losses

Goodwill acquired in relation to subsidiaries is allocated to cash

generating units and is presented as an intangible asset in the

consolidated balance sheet Goodwill acquired in relation to associates

is included in the carrying amounts of the associates

Goodwill is tested at least annually for impairment and carried at cost

less accumulated impairment losses Gains and losses on the disposal

of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the

entity sold

ii ii Publishing titles

Publishing titles with finite useful life are stated at cost less

accumulated aniortisation and accumulated impairment losses

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate

the cost of the publishing titles over their estimated useful lives

Publishing titles with an indefinite useful life are tested at least

annually for impairment They are stated at cost less accumulated

impairment losses

Publishing titles that have been fully amortised in prior years have not

been restated They are included in the financial statements at zero

carrying amounts

iii iii Software cost

Computer software licences are capitalised based on their purchase

price and direct cost of preparing the assets for their intended use

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes

are recognised as an expense as incurred Development costs that

are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and

unique software products controlled by the Group are recognised as

intangible assets when the following criteria are met

it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that

it will be available for use

management intends to complete the software product and use

or sell it

there is an ability to use or sell the software product
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it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate

probable future economic benefits

adequate technical financial and other resources to complete

the development and to use or sell the software product are

available and

the expenditure attributable to the software product during its

development can be reliably measured

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software

product include the software development employee costs and an

appropriate portion of relevant overheads

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are

recognised as an expense as incurred Development costs previously

recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in

subsequent period

Software costs recognised as assets are amortised using the straight-

line method over their estimated useful lives ranging from five to

seven years

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite life are tested at least

annually for impairment Intangible assets with finite life and other

property plant and equipment are tested for impairment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount

may not be recoverable If any such indication exists the recoverable

amount of the assets is estimated and where relevant an impairment

loss is recognised to reduce the carrying amount of the assets to their

recoverable amount Such impairment losses are recognised in the

profit or loss except where an item of property plant and equipment

has been revalued and the impairment loss does not exceed the

balance in the asset revaluation reserve in which case the impairment

loss is recognised as reduction in the asset revaluation reserve

Financial assets

The group classifies its financial assets in either one of the following

categories loans and receivables and available for sale The

classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets

were acquired Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed cr

determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market The

Groups loans and receivables comprise accounts receivables and

cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet

SCM up Aiintial lpoit 2009 77



Audited Financial Statements

Mt lit Notes to the Financial Statements

th

Utfl13zG1 bHPe
1AA jIj

ffiThuIEi

3n

IMJ
ftl II th

NI flo tffljjupQfl

vffimfflntxm U1

Nl iiM cIj

Accounts receivable are amounts due trom customers tor merchandise

sold or services performed in the ordinary course ot business if

collection of accounts receivables is expected in one year or less

or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer they are

classified as current assets If not they are presented as non-current

assets

Accounts receivables ace recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method less provision for impairment

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand deposits held at call

with banks other short-term highly liquid investments with original

maturities of three months or less Interest income on bank deposits

calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of finance

income

ii Available-for--sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are investments in equity and

debt instruments that are either designated in this category or not

classified in any of the other categories

Purchases and sales of available-for-sale financial assets are

recognised on the trade-date the date on which the Group commits

to purchase or sell the asset They are initially recognised at fair value

plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at fair value at each

balance sheet date Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale

financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income

When available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently sold or

impaired the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity

are included in the profit or loss as gains and losses from available-

for-sale financial assets

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of other

income when the groups right to receive payments is established

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective

interest method is recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as part of finance income
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Assets carried at amortised cost

The group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether

there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect

all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables When

such evidence exists an allowance for impairment is established

The amount of the allowance is the difference between the assets

carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows

discounted at the original effective interest rate Impairment loss is

recognised in the profit or loss

If in subsequent period the amount of the impairment loss

decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an

event occurring after the impairment was recognised such as an

improvement in the debtors credit rating the reversal of the

previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the profit or

loss

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the each balance sheet date whether there

is objective evidence that the available-for-sale financial assets are

impaired If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss measured

as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair

value less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously

recognised in profit or loss is removed from investment revaluation

reserve and recognised in the profit or loss Impairment losses

recognised in the profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed

through the profit or loss If in subsequent period the fair value

of debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the

increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss the impairment loss

is reversed through the profit or loss

fft Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Costs of inventories are stated at weighted average cost and in

the case of work in progress and finished goods comprise direct

materials direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less any

estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal
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Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equify The par value of fhe shares

issued and fully paid is recognised in fhe share capital account Any

excess of proceeds from new issue of shares net of any incremental

costs directly attributable to the new issue over the par value of the

shares issued is recognised in the share premium account

Accounts payable

Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods or services that

have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities it payment is

due within one year or less or in the normal operating cycle of the

business if longer It not they are presented as non-current liabilities

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has present legal or

constructive obligation as result of past events and it is probable

that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation

and reliable estimate of the amount can be made

contingent liabilities is possible obligation that arises from past

events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence

or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly

within the control of the Group It can also be present obligation

arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not

probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the

amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably

contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes

to the financial statements When change in the probability of an

outflow occurs so that outflow is probable it will then be recognised

as provision
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Employee retirement schemes

The Group operates tour statf retirement schemes comprising

defined benefit pension DB scheme defined contribution pension

DC scheme Mandatory Provident Fund MPF and Top-up

Top-up scheme for its employees the assets of which are held

separately from those of the Group in independently administered

funds The retirement schemes are generally funded by payments

from employees and by the relevant Group companies

Contributions to the DC MPF and Top-up schemes are charged to the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as incurred For the

DC and Top-up schemes the amounts charged to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income may be reduced by contributions

forfeited by employees who leave these schemes prior to vesting fully

in the contributions

The Groups contributions to the DB scheme are made based on

the periodic recommendations of independent qualified actuaries

Pension cost are assessed using the projected unit credit method the

cost of providing pensions is charged to the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income so as to spread the regular cost over

the service lives of employees in accordance with the advice of the

actuaries who carry out full valuation of the plans The pension

obligation is measured as the present value of the estimated future

cash outflows by reference to market yields of Government securities

which have similar terms as the related liabilities Actuarial gains and

losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income over the average remaining service lives of employees Past

service costs are recognised as an expense on straight-line basis

over the average period until the benefits become vested

Share-based compensation

The Company has share option scheme which is part ot

remuneration policy with rewards determined based upon the

performance of the Group and individual employees The fair value

of the employee services received in exchange for the grant ot

options is recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income and credited to the employee share-baser

compensation reserve The total amount to be expensed over the

vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of thE

options granted taking into account the vesting conditions At eact

balance sheet date the Group revises its estimates of the number ot

options that are expected to be vested and the impact taken to thr

profit or loss and corresponding adjustment to the employee share-

based compensation reserve

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction

costs are credited to share capital and share premium when the

options are exercised
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Current and deferred income tax

Income tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the

determination ot protit or loss tor the year in respect ot current tax

and deterred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deterred

tax Tax is recognised in the profit or loss except to the extent that

it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity In this case the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax

laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the

countries where the companys subsidiaries and associates operate

and generate taxable income Management periodically evaluates

positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which

applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation It establishes

provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability method on

temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial

statements Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and

laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance

sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deterred

income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is

settled

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is

probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised

Deterred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on

investments in subsidiaries and associates except where the timing

of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group

and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset whon there is

legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and when the deterred income taxes assets and liabilities

relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either

the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an

intention to settle the balances on net basis

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Companys shareholders is recognised as

liability in the Groups financial statements in the period in which the

dividends are approved by the Companys shareholders
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that have

significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below

Defined benefit plans assets

Determining the carrying amount of defined benefit plans assets

requires actuarial assumptions made in respect of discount rate

rate of return on plan assets and rate of future salary increases

Changes to these assumptions could have signiticant risk of causing

material adjustment to the carrying amount in the balance sheet

Details of these actuarial assumptions are set out in note 26a to the

financial statements

Fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties is performed in accordance

with the Valuation Standards on Valuation of Properties published

by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors The valuation is reviewed

annually by qualified valuers by considering the information from

variety of sources including

comparable sales transactions as available in the relevani

market and

rental income derived from the existing tenancies with due

provision for any reversionary income potential

Details of the valuation approach adopted for the Groups investmenT

properties are disclosed in Note to the financial statements

Revenue and segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identitied as the

Managing Director and Chief Executive Gfficer of the Group She

reviews the Groups internal reporting in order to assess performance

and allocate resources Management has determined the operating

segments based en these reports
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The Group has five reportable segments oewspaper magazine

property musir publishing and video and film post-production

Newspaper segment is engaged in the publication of South China

Morning Post Sunday Morning Post and other related print and

digital publications It derives its revenue mainly from advertising

and sales of newspapers Magazine segment is engaged in the

publication of various magazines in Chinese language and related

print and digital publications Its revenue is derived from advertising

and sales of magazines Property segment holds various commercial

and industrial properties in Hong Kong It also owns advertising

billboards for outdoor advertising It derives revenue through leasing

out its properties and billboards Music publishing segment derives

its revenues from the sale of music video and audio discs and its

music publishing rights Video and film post-production segment

is engaged in the provision of post-production services for movies

TV commercials and corporate videos During the year ended 31

December 2GG8 the Group has disposed of its entire interest in the

music publishing and video and film post-production businesses and

they have been presented as discontinued operations

The chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance of

the operating segments based on number of measures including

earnings before interest tax depreciation and amortisation EBITDA

and profit or loss after tax The Group considers that the measurement

principles for profit or loss after tax are most consistent with those

used in measuring the corresponding amounts in the Groups financial

statements Hence profit or loss after tax is used for reporting

segment profit or loss

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as

those described in the summary of significant accounting policies

except that interest in the profit or loss of associates is accounted

for on the basis of dividend received or receivable in segment profit

or loss while such interest is accounted for under the equity method

in the Groups consolidated financial statements investment in

associates is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses

in segment assets while such investment is accounted for under

the equity method in the Groups consolidated financial statements

and Ui the segment asset for Magazine includes publishing title

measured at recoverable amount Such publishing title has not been

rocognised in the consolidated financial statements as the publishing

title was internally generated by the Group

The Groups reportable segments are strategic business units that

offer different products and services They are managed separately

because each business requires different marketing strategies

Transactions between reportable segments are accounted for on arms

length basis
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Turnover consists of revenue from all of the Groups reportable

segments which comprise newspaper magazine property music

publishing and video and film post-production segments as well as

other segments whose contributions to the Groups revenue and profit

or loss are below the quantitative threshold for separate disclosures

The turnover for the year ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 were

HK$740667000 and HK$1045302000 respectively

Revenue from newspapers magazines and other publications included

revenue of HK$7859000 2008 HK$7654000 arising from

exchanges of goods or services with third parties

Substantially all the activities of the Group are based in Hong Kong

and below is segment information by reportable segments

Reportable segment profit or loss

SCMI Annual ROort 2009

Continuing operations

iE$i

For the
year

ended 31 December 2009

Discontinued operations

..

rnf Ef rni
Total from tfP Video and Total from

IZfl continuing Music film post- discontinued

Newspaper Magazine Property All other operations publishing production operations Total

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OoO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$oOO

Total segment revenue 590969 134085 24428 129 749611 74961

Inter-segment revenue 445 8499 8944 8944

Revenue from external customers 590524 125586 24428 129 740667 740667

IA Finance income 233 88 792 1113 1lli

iut
Depreciation and amortisation 53552 1457 1753 56762 56762

Income tax 3714 6515 24584 34813 34813

IJ
Reportable segment profit 21292 677 126715 4225 152909 152909

For the
year

ended 31 December 2008

iuTotal segment revenue 851431 160348 27667 4629 1044075 2275 5254 7529 1051604

Inter-segment revenue 151 58511 200 99 6301 632

Revenue from eoternal customers 851283 154497 27467 4530 1037774 2275 5253 7528 104532

tA Finance income 2533 584 78 3195 322

Finance cost 1354 1354 10E4

Depreciation and amurtisation 52060 1513 237 53807 16 56 62 538t9

Income tao 127230 8132 13776 121557 2157

8I/R
Repnrtabe segment prufif/lnss 161953 14224 44720 2817 134274 48358 3055 51413 185687
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ItiM Reportable segment information

Continuing operations Discontinued operations

fl E%
rnt

TiL$1- Total from i1ftI Video and Total from

continuing Music film post discontinued

For the year ended 31 December 2009 Newspaper Magazine Property All other operations publishing production operations Total

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$Ooo HK$oOO HK$OOO HK$oOO HK$ooo HK$OOO HK$OoO

Interests in associates 66491 6654 73145 73145

Capital expenditure 20550 931 13544 35025 35025

TTi1$LE9
Ifl4

Reportable segment assets as at

31 December 2009 948878 119561 1139019 210587 2418045 2418045

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Interests in assocates 66308 6654 72962 72962

Capital expenditure 16101 1499 150 17750 35 35 17785

0J
Reportable segment assets as at

31 December 2008 1053662 131985 989940 118689 2294276 2294276
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Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss to profit

for the year

LEflih
For the year ended 31 December

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$OO

Continuing operations

Profit for reportable segments 148684 131457

Profit for all other segments 4225 2817

152909 134274

Reconciling items t/i
Share of losses/prof its of associates under equity method of accounting 3434 1187

Dividend received from associates 1401 1559

4835 37
Profit from continuing operations 148074 13390

Discontinued operations

Profit for reportable segments 51413

Profit for the year 148074 185315

Reconciliation of reportable segment assets to tota assets

ihI
For the year ended 31 December

2009 2003

HK$OOO HK$000

Assets for all reportable segments 2207458 2175587

Assets for all other segments 210587 118689

2418045 2294276

Reconciling items

Interests in associates at cost less accumulated impairment losses 73145 72962tI
Interests in associates under equity method of accounting 46451 53334

Elimination of an internally generated publishing title 7000 7000

33694 26628

Total assets 2384351 2267648
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nmnnm Property plant and equipment

fl
Group

SUMP Group Annual lcjxwt 2009

un
Leasehold Other fixed Assets in 11
buildings assets progress Total

5TFJft

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

At January 2008

olcoQ11I Cost or valuation 308868 1028684 2249 1339801

411 flt1
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses 87511 718083 53 805647

flII\-
Net book value at January 2008 221357 310601 2196 534154

cIIAt_
Net book value at January 2008 22t357 310.601 2196 534154

3W Additions 8717 7086 15803

HI Disposals 66 66
II3ff2i Disposal ot subsidiaries 517 517

041 Transfer 5390 5390
i$h1111I44I Reclassification to investment properties 1530 1530
411 Depreciation 6427 38891 45318

Translation differences 54 54

flITAtHft2iflfl
Net book value at 31 December 2008 213400 285288 3892 502580

TI\tH At 31 December 2008

fM1 Cost or valuation 299411 883594 3892 1.186897

10411 Th1Mt
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses 86011 598306 684317

TIHH-H2fl1M
Net book value at 31 December 2008 213400 285288 3892 502580
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Groupfl nfl
Leasehold Other fixed Assets in

buildings assets progress Total

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

$flTfLH At January2009

stottM Cost or valuation 299411 883594 3892 1186897

iflitt
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses 86011 598306 684317

Net book value at January 2009 213400 285288 3892 50258tJ

flHM
Net book value at January 2009 213400 285288 3892 50258tJ

Additions 16160 15280 31440

Disposals 1564 1763 3327

Impairment loss 265 265

$$$ Transfer 16137 16137

s1

Reclassification from investment properties 12600 12600

tft Depreciation 6758 40621 47379

Translation ditferences 12

YL1JJIH lIfl
Net book value at 31 December 2009 219242 275143 1.276 495661

flTflHHAt31 December2009

Jk717QMCost or valuation 312011 879817 1276 1193104

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses 92769 604674 697443

Net book value at 31 December 2009 219242 275143 1276 495661
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Knight Frank Kan

91950O0 j168OA1I W4i
2254O0O IJliI

Other fixed assets include plant and machinery computer and office

equipment and leasehold improvements

Group

One of the Groups leasehold buildings was revalued in 1990 by

Knight Frank Kan Baillieu an independent professional valuer at

HK$9195000 being their open market value based on their existing

use No subsequent revaluation was carried out as the Group has

adopted the exemption provision of paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 of not

making regular revaluations by class of those assets stated at revalued

amounts based on revaluations which were reflected in prior years

financial statements Had such leasehold building been carried at cost

less accumulated depreciation the carrying value of such leasehold

building would have been stated at approximately HK$1907000

2008 HK$2254000

SUMI Group Annual Report 2009

tl
Leasehold Other fixed Assets in 11
buildings assets progress Total

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Analysis of cost and valuation as at 31 December 2009

fti2I At cost 302816 879817 1276 1183909

At valuation 1990 9195 9195

312011 879817 1276 1193104ift
Analysis of cost and valuation as at 31 December 2008

i2 At cost 290216 883594 3892 1177702

tYL At valuation 1990 9195 9195

299411 883594 3892 1186897
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l1 Investment properties

Group

75TB5T
Ground Floor Block Ko Fai Industrial Building Ko Fai Road Yau Tong

Kowloon Hong Kong

iii ti5
Clear Water Bay Studio Clear Water Bay Road Kung Wan Hang Hau

New Territories Hong Kong

iv

8th Floor of Block Sea View Estate Watson Road North Point Hong Kong

Offices and car parking

spaces

Vacant property

Industrial building

2009

HK$OOO

nI Medium

rtaH Medium

2008

HK$000

SCM1 Group Annual Report 2009

At january 986100 1040100

Additions 81 150I$ /5tTh
Reclassification to/from leasehold buildings and lease premium for land 113000 700CTh/ Fair value gain/Ioss 134919 81150

L0 EI At 31 December 1008100 986100

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group

Property IJ Type Lease term

tJ 120 2021421 2223
20th and 21st Floors and Car Parking Spaces Nos 21 22 and 23 on 4th Floor

Bank of America Tower 12 Harcourt Road Central Hong Kong

Long

1111

Workshop unit

n1 Medium
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The investment properties were valued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung

Limited DTZ an independent professional valuer The valuation

of investment properties is performed in accordance with the

Valuation Standards on Valuation of Properties published by the

Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors which defines market value as the

estimated amount for which property should exchange on the date

of valuation between willing buyer and willing seller in an arms

length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties each

acted knowledgeably prudently and without compulsion DTZ has

derived the valuation of the Groups investment properties by making

reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant

market or where appropriate by capitalising the rental income derived

from the existing tenancies with due provision for the reversionary

income potential of the properties

For the year ended 31 December 2009 direct operating expenses

of HK$306000 2008 HK$1061000 arising from investment

properties that generated rental income and HK$3698000 2008

HK$3740000 arising from investment properties that did not

generate rental income were charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2009 the Groups total future minimum rental

receivables under non-cancelable operating leases for its investment

properties are as follows

Group

2008

HK$000

SMl ionp Annual Repoit 2009

2009

HK$OOO

Not later than one year 17950 14751

Later than one year but not later than five years 7597 13267

25547 28018

.$fl Lease premium for land

Group

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

At January 13969 31588

Revaluation 8436

Reclassification from/to investment properties 100400 25470

I$ Amortisation 1248 585

At 31 December 113121 13969
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The Groups interests in leasehold land represent prepaid operating

lease payment and their net book value are analysed as follows

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

In Hong Kong held on

Leases of between 10 to 50 years 113121 13960

Intangible assets

GroupxfI
thJ4l1 Other

Publishing Software intangible Assets in tt
titles costs assets progress TotalTi

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

At January 2008

Cost 1820000 57097 514 1877611

Accumulated amortisation 1820000 28069 184806

Net book value 29028 514 29542

Net book value at January 2008 29028 514 29542

Additions 62 1770 183
$$t Reclassification/transfer 1158 1320 1158 1320

t$k Amortisation 7645 321 796
Translation differences

Net book value at 31 December 2008 22605 999 1125 24729

5E At 31 December 2008

fQ2j Cost 1820000 58317 1320 1125 188076
Accumulated amortisation 1820000 35712 321 1856033

Net book value 22605 999 1125 24729
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fl
Group

ZflJ4
H1JlS Etd Other flfl

Publishing Software intangible Assets in 1t
titles costs assets progress Total

flt flt5 fl
HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

At January 2009

t$ Cost 1820000 58317 1320 1125 1880762

tMM Accumulated amortisation 1820000 35712 321 1856033

Net book value 22605 999 1125 24729

Net book value at January 2009 22605 999 1125 24729
5t Additions 1625 1879 3504

ItW Disposal 178 776 954
Pft5/Nt Reclassification/transfer 1877 1877
M$ Amortisation 8109 26 8135

Translation ditterences 18 21________________
Net book value at 31 December 2009 17823 973 369 19165

fliT At 31 December 2009

h$ Cost 1820000 61513 1320 369 1883202

It$$ Accumulated amortisation 1820000 43690 347 1864037

Net book value 17823 973 369 19165

WJ21V Interests in subsidiaries

Company

2009 2008

fl5t
HK$OOO HK$000

tQtffl Unlisted shares at costs

Amounts due from subsidiaries 1353528 t384747

1353528 1.384747

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured interest-free and

will not be demanded for repayment

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 32 to the

financial statements
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10 10 Interests in associates

Group

2009 2008

HK$ooo HK$000

Associates

Share of net assets other than goodwill

Shares listed overseas 38231 42673

Unlisted shares 4810 5455

43041 48128

Goodwill 6319 6047

Amounts due to associates 2909 841

46451 53334

Fair value of shares held in listed associate in Thailand 115992 139331

The amounts due to associates are unsecured interest-free and will

not be demanded for repayment

Summarised financial information in respect of the Groups associates

is set out below

Group

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

Total assets 445499 465794

Total liabilities 254302 253612

Net assets 191197 212182

Groups share of associates net assets 43041 48128

Revenue 380191 409287

74J Hj Losses/profits for the year 19574 4814

i/i1 Groups share of associates losses/profits for the year 3434 1187

Details of the principal associates are set out in Note 32 to the

financial statements
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11 11 Available-for-sale financial assets

I1I

At market value Group

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

Equity shares listed in Hong Kong 176877 105074

Guaranteed notes denominated in 05$ listed in Singapore 24118

200995 105074

12 12 Inventories

Group

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

Raw materials 18557 38904

2j 71953000 Tk The cost of inventories recognised as expense during the year was

98268000 HK$71953000 2008 HK$98268000
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13 WIJ 13 Accounts receivable

Ju lyIjk The Group allows an average credit period of to 90 days to its trade

customers and an ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows

Group

2009 2008

fl ft
Balance Percentage Balance Percentage

93

HK$OOO HK$000 93

Current 89280 55.7 t08971 57.6f3E Less than 30 days past due 19557 12.2 12341 6.3

tHH77H 31 to 60 days past due 34209 21.4 4022t 21.3

stss\ Yt 61 to 90 days past due 11769 7.3 20344 10.3

Over 90 days past due 5375 3.4 7226 3.8

Total 160190 100.0 189103 100.0

J3Q sfflm Less Allowance for impairment 3471 t675

156719 t87428

The carrying amounts ot the accounts receivable are reasonable

approximation of their fair values

it HI ii-1H 89024000 5fr Accounts receivable that are neither past due nor impaired amounted

1088700002jt to HK$89024000 2008 HK$t08870000 These balances relate to

wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of

default

1H Below is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are past due as

at the reporting date but not impaired

fl
Group

2009 2008

flit
IIK$OOO HK$000

Less than 30 days past due 19353 t2248

i3fH st 31 to 60 days past due 33671 40120

tio YL 61 to 90 days past due 11458 20288

i$Jc Over 90 days past due 3213 5902

Total accounts receivable past due but not impaired 67695 78558

Accounts receivable past due but not impaired represent balances

that the Group considered to be fully recoverable based on pa
experience portion of these balances is secured by cash deposit

placed by customers or bank guarantees
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The movements in the allowance for impairment during the year are

as follows

Group

2008

HK$000

During the year the Company had share option scheme the

Scheme which was approved at the annual general meeting of the

Company held on 25 May 2006 the Adoption Date

Under the Scheme the Board of Directors of the Company may

grant options to subscribe for shares of the Company to any full-

time employee or Executive Director of the Company or any of its

subsidiaries the Executive No consideration is required to be paid

by the Executive upon acceptance of the options Under the Scheme

no option may be exercised earlier than one year after it has been

granted or later than ten years after the Adoption Date i.e 25 May

2016

During the year no share option was granted exercised cancelled or

lapsed under the Scheme No share option was outstanding under the

Scheme as at 31 December 2009

SMT Group Annual Report 2009

2009

HK$OOO

At January 1675 3190

Impairment provision made 3478 2095

Amounts written off as uncollectible 854 664

Impairment provision reversed 828 2946

At 31 December 3471 1675

The Group assesses its accounts receivable individually to determine

their recoverability and the allowance for impairment account is used

to record the provision made as result of such assessments The

ending balance of the allowance for impairment represents accounts

that were past due over an extended period of time and the Group

considers that they may not be recoverable

14 14 Share capital

Group and Company

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

Authorised

5000000000 shares of HK$0.10 each 500000 500000

Ei2lIssued and fully paid

1560945596 1560945596fj

1560945596 2008 1560945596 shares of HK$0.10 each 156095 156095

98



Audited Financial Statements

lit Nt Notes to the Financial Statements

is VM 15 Reserves

Group

H-I-- jI- Movements ot the Groups reserves tor the year ended 31 December

2009 and 2008 are presented in the consolidated statement

changes in equity on page 64

The contributed surplus ot the Group represents the excess ot the

nominal value of the shares of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal

value of the Companys shares issued in exchange therefor during the

Group reorganisation in 1990 less dividend distributions

iI Company

Q4M
share Contributed Retained

premium surplus profits Total

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$OOt

At january 2008 40971 1143550 19241 1203762

$HH Profit for the year 275252 275252

2007 final dividend distribution 156095 156095

nAHR95ThH 2008 interim dividend distribution 93657 93657

W\HcH At 3t December 2008 4097t 1143550 44741 122926

nrjtH At january 2009 40971 1143550 44741 122926

tHThl Profit for the year 202 202

WAH1HHH 2008 final dividend distribution 31219 31219AHtHHH 2009 interim dividend distribution

HfbHEH At 31 December 2009 40971 1143550 13724 1198245

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as result of the

EHHHH h4PftIIkM2 HI Group reorganisation in 1990 and represents the difference between

the nominal value of the Companys shares so allotted and the

consolidated net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries and associate

loss dividends distribution Under Bermudan law the contributed

surplus is distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances

ut 4o971000H In addition the Companys share premium of HK$40971000 2005

40971000H5t HK$40971000 can be distributed as fully paid-up bonus shares or

applied towards eliminating the retained losses of the Company
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16 16 Deferred income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities are calculated in full on temporary

16.5% differences under the liability method using principal taxation rate

of 16.5% 2008 16.5%

The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities account is as

follows

Group

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

At january 125861 151408

ltI1I2l

Charge/credit to profit for the year note 21 19447 26898

Charge to equity 1351

5I At 31 December 145308 125861

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities prior to

offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction during the

year are as follows

Group

Accelerated tax Fair value gains on Zfl
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation properties Others Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 20085t
HK$OOO HK$000 HK$OOO HK$000 HK$OOO HK$000 HK$OOO HK$000

At January 89909 99140 41537 56079 1472 1998 132918 157217

X/tof
Credit/charge to profit for the year 5841 9231 22204 15893 363 526 16000 25650

Charge to equity 1351 1351

At 31 December 84068 89909 63741 41537 1109 1472 148918 132918

GroupW4$W
Deferred income tax assets Provisions Tax losses Others Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008Hi Tb
HK$OOO HK$000 HK$OOO HK$000 HK$OOO HK$000 HK$OOO HK$000

At January 449 507 6608 5236 66 7057 5809ito
Charge/credit to profit for the year 124 58 3571 1372 66 3447 1248

At 31 December 573 449 3037 6608 3610 7057

SCMJ Group Annual Rcpoit 2009
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Group

2009 2003

HK$OOO HK$000

Deferred income tax liabilities 148918 132913

Deferred income tax assets 3610 7057

145308 125861

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry forwards

to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through

future taxable profits is probable The Group has unrecognised tax

245147000JL losses of HK$263373000 2008 HK$245147000 to carry forward

flT against future taxable income the expiry dates of these tax losses are

shown as follows

Group

2009 2008fE
HK$OOO HK$000

i5JExpiring within one year 3136 4309

Expiring in the second to fifth year 81698 53075

After the fifth year 178539 187763

263373 245147

17 17 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are the following

accounts payable by invoice date

Group

2009 2008

ft
Balance Percentage Balance Percentage

HK$OOO HK$000

to 30 days 16583 57.7 26643 77.1

171 31 to 60 days 6428 22.4 4121 11.9

77 61 to 90 days 2714 9.4 2208 6.4

iL Over 90 days 3026 10.5 1595 4.6

Total accounts payable 28751 100.0 34567 100.0

Accrued liabilities 70699 107899

1tT
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities 99450 142466

The carrying amounts of accounts payable are reasonable

approximation of their fair values

SM Group Annual Rulrt 2009
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18 II 18 Staff costs

Group

4tJIiIM4a
Staff costs for continuing operations including directors remuneration note

299482

3057

15033

350751

1812

16182

1040

15142

There was no arrangement under which Director waived or agreed

to waive any remuneration in respect of the year

102 SCMI Groop Aonual Report 2009

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$000

Wages and salaries

tinutilised leave pay

Pension costs defined contribution plans

Less Forfeited contributionsIlJNet pension costs defined contribution plans 14548A/i iIIt$26a
Pension income/expense defined benefit plan note 26a 6472 12296

323559 355409

Directors remuneration

The aggregate amounts of remuneration paid or payable to Directors

of the Company during the year are as follows

2009 2008

JR9
HK$OOO HK$000

Fees

Executive

Non-executive 1443 910

Other emoluments

Salaries allowances and benefits in kind 2646 1518

Retirement scheme contributions 60 60

Bonuses paid and payable 405

4149 2893

The remuneration of the above Directors fell within the following

band

2009 2008

bt 10O0000J HK$Nil HK$1000000

1500001L 20000007 HK$1500001 HK$2000000

2500001 30000005b HK$2500001 HK$3000000
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70Q00071a

21000Ojc

AE5E
30%

Directors tees paid or payable to Independent Non-executive Directors

during the year were approximately HK$943000 2008 HK$700000

Directors fees received or receivable by other Non-executive Directors

during the year amounted to HK$500000 2008 HK$210000

Save from the aforesaid there were no other emoluments paid or

payable to Non-executive Directors in 2009 For the year endei

31 December 2008 all Non-executive Directors of the Company

including Independent Non-executive Directors voluntarily waived

30% of their directors fees and where applicable emoluments

for serving on the Audit Committee Remuneration Committee and

Nomination Committee

No options were granted to Directors of the Company to acquire share

of the Company in 2008 and 2009

The details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year

ended 31 December 2009 are set out below

Non-executive Oirector

Independent Non-executive Oirector

SMP Group Annual Report 2009

Name of Director

WJ E1t
Salaries Et

I$1 allowances Retirement Bonuses

Directors and benefits scheme paid and

fees in kind contributions payable Total

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

David Pang0 150 ifO

Roberto Ongpin Roberto Ongpin 100 100

Ronald Arculli0 300 300

$f Khoo Kay Peng 100 100

Kuok Hui Kwong 2646 60 2706

Kuok Khoon Ean 150 150

Ij0 Peter Lee Ting Chang0 237 237

David Li Kwok Po 200 200

Wong Kai Man 206 206

1443 2646 60 4149
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tf 2Ift
iooooo 70Q00j tUli
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5QQQj 350Q0
nflftt 500Q07t nflf 35000

25 1tJ Th flt fJ 25 25141
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flflL
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The Executive Director serving on the Board has not drawn any

directors fee in the year The directors fee of each of the Non-

executive Directors including Independent Non-executive Directors

2009 HK$100000 2008 HK$70000 is tixed by the Board of

Directors pursuant to the authority granted by the shareholders

at the Companys annual general meeting Each Non-executive

Director including Independent Non-executive Director serving

on the Audit Committee the Remuneration Committee and the

Nomination Committee receives an additional fee Audit Committee

2009 HK$100000 2008 HK$70000 Remuneration Committee

2009 HK$50000 2008 HK$35000 Nomination Committee 2009

HK$50000 2008 HK$35000 The directors remunerations are

determined with reerence to directors remunerations paid by other

companies in Hong Kong which are of comparable size and business

nature In addition to the aforesaid the emolument payable to the

Executive Director is also determined with reference to the individuals

performance and the Companys financial performance

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals during the year include one 2008

one of the Directors details of whose remuneration are set out

above The details of the remuneration ot the remaining tour 2008

tour highest paid individuals are set out below

2008

K$DDO

The Companys remuneration policy is established to attract motivate

and retain high performing individuals so that they are committed to

the success of our business thereby enhancing shareholder value

The Company has share option scheme The Remuneration

Committee approves the granting of share options and reports

such grants to the Board of Directors The grant is made based on

individuals performance and contributions

104 SCM Group Annual Report 2009

2009an
HK$OOO

Mt $tJt Salaries allowances and benefits in kind 6310 6096

gla212525 Retirement scheme contributions 177 180

B5tY41 2221 Bonuses paid and payable 712

21M1t Compensation for loss of office 37

6487 7025

5525 MMMIA2It25251T2Fj5I The remuneration of the four 2008 four highest paid individuals fell

within the following bands

2009 2008

isoo00itt 2D00ODOtt HK$1500001 HK$2000000
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19 19 operating profit

Operating profit from continuing operations is stated after charging

and crediting

Group

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

Charging

Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 16387 18109

Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 3314

Auditors remuneration 2356 2836

1A CreditinglADividend income from listed investments 2160 3342

Net rental income from investment properties 16735 27248

Gain on disposal of property plant and equipment

20 R1IA 20 Finance income net

Group

2009 2008

I7Continuing operations HK$OOO HK$000

RlA Finance income

Interest income on bank deposits 318 3195

Interest income on available-for-sale financial assets 792

1110 3195

Finance cost

Interest expense on bank loans and overdraft 1054

1110 2141
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MflMt IY
16.5%fl

21 Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has beeo provided for at the rate of 16.5%

2008 16.5% on the estimated assessable profit for the year Taxation

on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable

profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries

in which Group operates

Group

2008

HK$000

SMT Group Auuual Report 2009

2009

HK$OOO

Current income tax

Hong Kong profits tax 15318 48294

Overseas taxation 48 161

f88 Oeferred income tax

lii8h Resulting from decrease in tax rate 8531

88tV
Oeferred tax with respect to fair value gain/floss on investment properties 22262 13390

Other deferred tax credits 2815 4977

34813 21557

The taxation on the Groups profit before income tax differs from the

N4 2i 8Hh/ theoretical amount that would arise using the faxation rate applicable/t to the places of operation of the Company and its subsidiaries as

follows

Group

2009 2008

flf5t fl
HK$OOO HK$000

Profit before income tax

from continuing operations 182887 155459

from discontinued operations 51413

Profit before income tax 182887 206872fl\ 16.5% Calculated at taxation rate of 16.5% 2008 16.5% 30176 34134

/U$t Income not subject to taxation 3479 10684

Recognition of previously unrecognised temporary difference 45 55

Effect of different taxation rates in other countries 2039 2718PAIutilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 470

Over provision in prior year 203 63

fl
Temporary difference recognised on undistributed profit in associates 364 461

Effect of change in taxation rate 8531

Tax losses not recognised 8883 7849ItH Expenses not deductiblo for taxation purposes 1242 1423

Withholding tax 140 156

Temporary difference not recognised 972 507Pfttax expense 34813 21557
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22 E7 22 Discontinued operations

During the year ended 31 December 2008 the Group disposed of

its entire interest in the video and film post-production operation

and music publishing operation Accordingly the results of these

operations were presented as discontinued operations in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income An analysis of the

results of the discontinued operations is as follows

Group

Revenue 7528

Other income 267

IJ2I Staff costs 5074

Cost of production materials 2753

Rental and utilities 52e

Depreciation and amortisation

Advertising and promotion 21

1IOther operating expenses 361

IJLA Net interest income

Loss of discontinued operations 995

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations 52408

Profit for the year from discontinued operations 51413

Staff costs for discontinued operations

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$OO

4800

Profit of discontinued operations is stated after charging

2009 2008

HK$OOO HKjOOC

Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 97

SCM1 Group Annual Report 2009

2009

HK$OOO

2008

HK$000

Wages and salaries

Unutilised leave pay

Pension costs defined contribution plans

Less Forfeited contributions

Net pension costs defined contribution plans

76

____ 19$j

198

5074
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Cash flows from discontinued operations are as follows

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

Net cash used in operating activities 3459

Net cash used in investing activities 28

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 3487

AJ Proceeds from the disposal of the discontinued operations received

5l42l000JL in the year ended 31 December 2009 was HK$1472000 2008

HK$51421000

23 flQ4iJ 23 Profit attributable to shareholders

J1 dj138151000 ri 172768000k The profit of HK$138151000 2008 HK$172768000 attributable toTA shareholders included profit of HK$202000 2008 HK$275252000

2752520007E dealt with in the Companys own financial statements

24 24 Dividends

Dividends attributable to the year

Company

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

I6W
Interim dividend paid nil 2008 HK6 cents per share 93657TA 2W
Final dividend proposed but not yet recognised nil 2008 HK2 cents per share 31219

124876

Dividends paid during the year

Company

2009 2008

IIK$OOO HK$000

6ftIJ Interim dividend in respect of 2008 HK6 cents per share 93657

2L1J Final dividend in respect of 2008 HK2 cents per share 31219

ioW Final dividend in respect of 2007 HK1O cents per share 156095

31219 249752

MP Giotip Annual Repoi1 2009108
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25 jj138151000
1727680007r

1560945596J 1560945596

tij

25 Earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on

the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of HK$138151000

2008 K$172768000 and 1560945596 2008 1560945596

shares in issue during the year

Profit attributable to shareholders

Group

2008

HK$001

26 IltFlIiF
jp

-I-J

IIJf127% 91%

As at 31 December 2009 there was no share options outstanding that

enable the holders to subscribe for shares 2008 nil in the Company

26 Employee retirement schemes

The Group continues to operate DB scheme DC scheme and

Top-up scheme These schemes are exempted recognised

occupational retirement schemes under the MPF Ordinance The

assets of these schemes are held separately from those of the Group

in two administered trust funds Schemes assets are managed by

independent professional investment managers The Group also

operates MPF scheme which is master trust scheme established

under trust arrangement

Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme is final salary defined benefit plan

Pension costs are assessed using the prolected unit credit method

The pension costs are charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income so as to spread the regular cost over the

service lives of employees full valuation based on the projected

unit credit method has been carried out by Watson Wyatt Hong Kong

Limited an independent qualified actuary and the pension costs are

charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in

accordance with their advice The actuarial valuations indicate that the

Groups obligations under this defined benefit scheme is 127% 2008

91% covered by plan assets held by the trustees

SCM Ajmiial Rtport 2009

2009

HK$OOO

Continuing operations 138151 121355

EDiscontinued operations 51413

138151 172768
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as

follows

Group

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

At January 285132 323.462

Current service cost 12264 14312

Iip2 Interest cost 3652 10674

Contributions by plan participants 2798 3588

$I1 Actuarial gains 13552 35832

EJBenefits paid 37261 31072

At 31 December 253033 285132

Changes in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows

Group

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

At January 259643 440856

Expected return on plan assets 18003 30323

Actuarial gains/losses 78612 184052

Contributions by plan participants 2798 3588

Transfer to other retirement funds 1434

Efi Benefits paid 37261 31072

EE At 31 December 320361 259643

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

Group

2009 2008f5
HK$OOO HK$000

Fair value of plan assets 320361 259643

Present value of funded obligations 253033 285.132

67328 25489

tinrecognised actuarial gain/loss 15130 85593

Net asset 52198 60104

MP Group Annual Report 2009110
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The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income are as follows

Group

2009 2008

HK$OOO HK$000

Current service cost 12264 14312

Interest cost 3652 10674

Expected return on plan assets 18003 30323
Net actuarial loss/gairi 8559 6959/A $I18

Total expense/income included in staff costs Note 18 6472 1229f

The plan assets are invested in unit trusts managed by independeni

investment managers The approximate asset allocation as at the

balance sheet date is as follows

Group

2009 2008

21T Equity instruments 74 67

Debt instruments 24 27

Cash

100 100

The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on market

expectation at the beginning of the period for returns net ot

administration costs over the entire life of the related obligations

The plan has benchmark asset mix of roughly 70% in global equities

and 30% in bonds and cash Based on current market expectation ot

fq$r
long-term returns the Group has decided to adopt an expected rate ot

return of 7%

The actual return on plan assets was gain of HK$96615000 2008

153729000 loss of HK$153729000

The principal actuarial assumptions were as follows

Group

2009 2008

96

Tf$i Discount rate 2.60 1.30

Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.00 7.00

Expected rate of future salary increases 4.00 4.00
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IjIjt

fl1A L2ooooifr 5%

5oooo 1O%f
ff11

Ij-Ij

LXt
10%15%

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows

Based on an actuarial valuation of the plan as at April 2008 the

Group was recommended by the actuary to suspend contribution to

the GB scheme until 31 March 2011 The next actuarial valuation that

will determine the level of the Groups future contribution will be

conducted not later than April 2011

MPF scheme

The Group makes regular contributions of 5% of the employees

relevant income which is subject to cap of HK$20000 to the MPF

scheme MPF Contribution

Top-up scheme

The Group makes regular contribution of 10% of the employees

monthly basic salary which is subject to cap of HK$50000 Out of

the 10% contribution it is firstly applied to MPE Contribution and the

balance will be made to the Top-up Scheme

There were no material forfeited pension scheme contributions during

the current and prior year to reduce contributions in future years

Defined contribution scheme

The contributions to the defined contribution pension scheme are

currently at 10-15% of the employees monthly salaries

There were no material forfeited pension scheme contributions during

the current and prior year to reduce contributions in future years

Mi Group Annual Report 2009

2009 2008 2007 2006 200599 $ib J11 1t
HK$OOO HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Fair value of plan assets 320361 259643 440856 373104 317269

Present value of defined benefit obligation 253033 285132 323462 279674 235126

t/11th Surplus/Deficit 67328 25489 117394 93430 82143

-1 11m
Experience gains/losses on plan assets 78612 184052 61710 41797 6782-iI/t
Experience losses/gains on plan liabilities 25417 93608 29180 17357 2506
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27 fPf4E 27 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Peconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from

operations

Group

2009 2003

HK$OOO HK$000

Operating profit from

continuing operations 185211 152131

discontinued operations 51401

185211 203537

t/5 Fair value gain/loss on investment properties 134919 81150

Depreciation and amortisation 56762 53863

Dividend income from listed investments 2160 3341

Loss/gain on disposal of property plant and equipment 3314

Impairment loss of property plant and equipment 265

1A Pension expense/income 6472 12295

Ij1- Iii 1-i
Transfer of DB plan assets to other retirement funds 1434

Increase/decrease in amounts due to associates 2068 109
iF jl Decrease/increase in inventories 20347 1659095 Decrease in accounts receivable 30709 41171

Decrease/increase in prepayments deposits and other receivables 6058 8077
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 44216 7181

Decrease in subscriptions in advance 1446 1245
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 52403

Cash generated from operations 129899 278478

SCM Gioup itinital epol 2009
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Wt8i

28 Wflfl

Disposal of subsidiaries

2009

HK$OOO

Group

2008

HK$000

28 Capital risk management

The Groups primary objective wheo managiog capital is to safeguard

the Groups ability to cootinue its businesses as going concern so

that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits

for other stakeholders

The Group structures its capital with due consideration to risk

The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure in the light of

the changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics of the

underlying assets In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure

the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders

repurchase shares of the Company from shareholders issue new

shares or increase or reduce borrowings

SMP Group Auuual Report 2009

W2Wfl tSTnTh
Aggregate net asset at date of disposal excluding cash and cash equivalents

Wi Property plant and equipment 515

Inventories 762

Accounts receivable 2705

itt Prepayments deposits and other receivables 1071

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3.974

Translation reserve 594

485

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 52408

52893

tttSatisfied by

WPY Cash consideration 55472

Less Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 654
ifl5Q$ Direct cost incurred t925

Total net cash consideration 52893

Amount received in 2009 1472 1472

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 1472 51421

Cash and cash equivalents

fl
Group Company

2009 2008 2009 2008

flt fl99t
HK$OOO HK$000 HK$OOO HK$000

cQ Cash at bank and in hand 111987 108675 812 610

Short-term bank deposits 142125 163340

254112 272015 812 610
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Ji ifli

29 11ifl

31

ljiJ

tlJt

As at 31 December 2009 the Groups net debt-to-capital ratio is zere

2008 zero For the purpose of calculating the net debt-to-capital

ratio the Group defines net debt as total debt which includes ban

overdrafts less cash and bank balances and capital as all component

of equity

29 Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2009 the Group had future minimum lease

payment under non-cancelable operating leases for land and building

as follows

2009

HK$OOO

Group

2008

K$OOO

31 Financial risk management
The Groups activities expose it to variety of financial risks

particularly interest rate currency price liquidity and credit risks

Where appropriate the Groups risk management policies seek to

minimise potential adverse effects of these risks on the financial

performance of the Group The policies for managing these risks are

summarised below

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Groups cash flow interest rate risk arises from cash balance

placed with authorised financial institutions which generate interes

income for the Group The Group manages its interest rate risk by

placing such balances on various maturities and interest rate terms

SCMP Group Annual Report 2009

Not later than one year 3023 16585

Later than one year but not later than five years 2296 1088

5319 17673

30 30 Capital Commitments

Group

2009 20081L
HK$OOO HK$OO

tJ Capital commitments for property plant and equipment

Contracted but not provided for 5997 7898

Authorised but not contracted for 24821 50518

30818 58416
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1421250O0/t n\ 16334OO0Oft

0.16% TWA$ 0.92% ff1

Jt1J142100O/y-c TVA l633000ff/t

u13hEhtnHi1fl/i
fflUN

IThflf24118000
/ffj 1thff6.22%

ftkt17H
IflffJ1205000/5t/1290000ft

2flfl

53EHff100w1

At 31 December 2009 the Group had short-term baok deposits ot

HK$142125000 2008 HK$163340000 with an eftective interest

rate of 0.16% 20080.92% It is estimated that general increase

of 100 basis points in interest rates with all other variables held

constant would increase the Groups profit for the year and total

equity by approximately HK$1421000 2008 HK$1633000 As the

effective interest rate of the bank deposits as at the balance sheet

date is close to zero if is expected that decrease in market interest

rate would not have
significant impact to the Groups profit or loss

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that

the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date

and had been applied to the interest-bearing financial instruments

in existence at that date The 100 basis points increase or decrease

represents managements assessment of reasonably possible change

in interest rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet

date The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2008

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group has an investment in debt instruments classified as

available-for-sale financial assets The investment carries fixed

coupon payment and thus exposes the Group to fair value interest

rate risk The Group limits this risk by implementing strict investment

policy Any investment of significant amount must be approved by

the Managing Director and Ghief Executive Officer and the Board of

Directors

At 31 December 2009 the carrying amount of the debt instruments

was HK$24118000 implying yield of 6.22% It is estimated that

general increase/decrease of 100 basis points io yield with all other

variables held constant would decrease/increase the Groups total

equity by approximately HK$1205000/HK$1290000 respectively

The change in yield would not have any impact on the Groups profit

or loss as the investment has been classified as available-for-sale

financial assets

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that

the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date

and had been applied to the interest-bearing financial instruments

in existence at that date The 100 basis points increase or decrease

represents managements assessment of reasonably possible change

in interest rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet

date
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Currency risk

The currency risk of the Group arises mainly from its purchases of raw

material and capital expenditure and sales transactions denominated

in currencies other than its functional currency In addition the Group

also has foreign currency deposits that are exposed to currency risk

The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Renminbi and

Euros

The Group closely monitors the changes in foreign currency exchange

rates and hedging strategies will be adopted where appropriate

The Group did not adopt any hedging strategies during the year

currency risk was considered to be insignificant

The Groups exposure to currency risk at the balance sheet date is

summarised as follows

Group

2009 2008

Renminbi Euros Renminbi Euros

000 000 000 000

Accounts payable 123 13 72 19

Cash and cash equivalents 76 47 103

tJ Net exposure 47 34 31 19

The following table indicates the approximate changes in the Groups

profit for the year and retained profits and total equity in response

oij to reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to whkh

the Group has significant exposure at the balance sheet date

Group

2009 2008uJlJ
f/

Increase/ Increase

lncrease/ decrease Increase decrease

decrease in profit for Increase/ decrease in
profit for Increase

in foreign the year and decrease in foreign the year and decrease

exchange retained in total exchange retained in total

rates profits equity rates profits equity

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK000 HK$000

Renminbi 10% 10

10% 10

Euros 10% 31 31 10

10% 31 31 10
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The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the change

in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and

had been applied to each ot the Group entities exposure to currency

risk tor tinancial instruments in existence at that date and that all

other variables in particular interest rates remain constant

The stated changes represent managements assessment ot

reasonably possible changes in toreign exchange rates over the

period until the next annual balance sheet date In this respect it is

assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the

United States dollar would not be materially aftected by any changes

in movement in value of the United States dollar against other

currencies

Equity price risk

The Group has investments in shares of companies listed on the Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which are classified as available-

for-sale financial assets in the financial statements These shares are

mainly constituents of the Hang Seng Hong Kong Composite Index The

market values of these investments are affected by amongst others

changes in market prices as result of changes in global economic

conditions macro and micro economic factors affecting the country

where the investments are quoted and factors specific to the investee

companies

The fluctuations in market prices due to the above factors are

unforeseen The Group monitors changes in these factors and

responds to them as and when appropriate and necessary

At 31 December 2009 it is estimated that 10% increase/decrease

in Hang Seng Hong Kong Composite Index with all other variables

held constant the Groups investment revaluation reserve and total

equity would increase by approximately HK$19068000 and decrease

by HK$17251000 f2008 increase of HK$5811000 and decrease of

HK$32G95OGG respectively

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the

reasonably possible changes in the stock market index had occurred

at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the available-for-

sale financial assets in existence at that date It is also assumed that

the fair values of the Groups investments would change in accordance

with the historical correlation with the relevant stock market index and

that none of the Groups investments would be considered impaired as

result of reasonably possible decrease in the relevant stock market

index The stated changes represent managements assessment of

reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock market index over

the period until the next annual balance sheet date The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2008

SCMl Group Annual Report 2009
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty

in meeting its obligations associated with financial liabilities The

Groups objective in managing this risk is to maintain balance

between the continuity and the flexibility of funding through the use

of bank loans and overdraft In addition banking facilities have been

put in place for contingency purposes

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the

balance sheet date of the Groups financial liabilities which are based

on contractual undiscounfed cash flows including interest payments

computed using contractual rates or if floating based on rates as at

the balance sheet date and the earliest date on which the Group can

be required to pay

Within year or on demand 28751 34567

More than year but less than years

More than years but less than years

Total contractual undiscounted cash flow 28751 34567

Carrying amount 28751 34567

Nit

Jt

Ti

Credit risk

The Groups credit risk arises mainly from its bank deposits accounts

receivable and debt instrument To mitigate the risk arising frcm

banks the Group places its deposits with number of authorisad

financial institutions

The Group manages its credit risk associated with accounts receivable

through the application of credit approvals credit ratings and

monitoring procedures The Group also obtains bankers guarantees or

cash deposits as collateral from certain customers

Credit sales are only made to customers with appropriate credit

history or high credit standing while sales to new customers or

customers of low credit standing are usually made on an advance

payment or cash on delivery basis

In order to minimise the credit risk arising from investment in debt

instruments the Group only selects issuers with high credit ratings

SCMT Group Annual Report 2009
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The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of

any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of hank

balances accounts receivable and the debt instrument after deducting

any impairment allowance

At the balance sheet date there is no concentration of credit risk as

the Groups five largest customers accounted tor 29% 2008 35% of

total accounts receivable balance only

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Groups exposure to

credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set out in note 13 to

the financial statements

Fair value estimation

Effective January 2009 the Group adopted the amendment to HKFRS

for financial instruments that are measured in the balance sheet at

fair value this requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level

of the fair value measurement hierarchy

Quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities level

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level that are

observable for the asset or liability either directly that is as

prices or indirectly that is derived from prices level

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data that is unobservable inputs level

The financial assets that were measured at tair value as at 31

December 2009 are disclosed in note 11 All of the financial assets

are categorised in level The fair value is based on quoted market

prices at the balance sheet date market is regarded as active if

quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange

dealer broker industry group pricing service or regulatory agency

and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market

transactions on an arms length basis

SMl Annual Rcixwt 2009
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32 Pf4RJ1W1 32 Subsidiaries and Associates

Particulars of the Companys principal subsidiaries and the Groups

principal associates at 31 December 2009 are as follows

Subsidiaries

flflBJ flu
Place of incorporation Nominal value

registration and of issued Proportion held

operations registered 1W MW $tI
company Kind of legal entity share capital Direct Indirect Nature of business

Coastline International Limited I2jo 100%

The Commonwealth Drdinary US$2 Property holding

of The Bahamas

Lyton Investment Limited EJl 127c 100% 14y
The Commonwealth Drdinary US$2 Property holding

of The Bahamas

Macbeer Properties Limited 1jfr 100%

The British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Property holding

1lifl IL tk4l Ifflt 100%

Mai Xin Advertising Communications 3500000 Advertising agent

Boiling Co Ltd The Peoples Republic Registered capital

of China Wholly US$3500000

Foreign-owned

Enterprise

SCMP 1994 Limited 25t 100%

Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment holding

SCMP Hearst Publications Limited 70% Uf
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10000 Magazine publishing

SCMP Magazines Publishing HK Limited ffl100005t 100% lfhfl
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10000 Magazine publishing

tffiio0o0h 100%

SCMP Magazines Publishing Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10000 Publication and

advertising

SCMP.com Holdings LimiterO l$$ 100%

The British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Investment holding

ffl$ 100%

Shanghai Hu ying Advertising Co Ltd 21000O05t Advertising agent

The Peoples Republic Registered capital

of China Wholly US$2100000

Foreign-owned

Enterprise

SCM uoup AiiiuaI Repoit 2009
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Company

Shanghai Nan Hong Information Services

Co Ltd

g2/rnunn
fllkflZI
Place of incorporation

registration and

operations

Kind of legal entity

The Peoples Republic

ot China Wholly

Foreign-owned

Enterprise

ERfl/fl
flu

Nominal value

of issued

registered

share capital

55OO0O07c

Registered capital

US$5500000

Ordinary

HK$201000000

wits
Proportion held

14
Direct Indirect

100% LIR
Provision ot consulting

and advisory service

100% $t
Newspaper and

magazine publishing

South China Morning Post PIe Ltd $11 iu

Singapore

Iffi3ff Jl

Ordinary S$3

100% i1-t
Advertising agent

Sunny Bright Development Limited

tit fP

Sunny Success Development Limited

92
Ordinary HK$2

Ordinary HK$2

100% imiJTh

Property holding

100% tt4tt

Property holding

500O0O000
Ordinary

BahtSOO000000

21.3% EW
Newspaper and

magazine publishing

M$fl

On

The accounts ot these companies were not audited by

Price waterhousecoopers Hong Kong or other PricewaterhouseCoopers

International member tirms

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company and associates

ot the Group which in the opinion of the Directors principally

affected the results of the year or formed substantial portion of

the net assets of the Group To give details of other subsidiaries and

associates would in the opinion of the Directors result in particulars

of excessive length

SMP Group Annual Relxwt 2009

nfl
Nature of business

Limited

South China Morning Post Publishers Hong Kong 2O1OOOOO05t

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Associates

21Vfl ERIIRQfl ninwth
Place of Nominal value Percentage of

fàWJ4i incorporation of issued equity attributable

Company and operations share capital to the Group

Dymocks Franchise Systems China

Limited

The Post Publishing Public Company

Limited

Hong Kong

Thailand

afro

77O0OOO

Ordinary

HK$7700000

Mint
Nature of business

45% 0SJ
Bookshop operation

122
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33 NA
Kerry Media Limited

Kerry

Group Limited Kerry Media

LimitedJ01 I$Kerry Group Limited

Kerry Group2

Kerry Group Limitedt91
Group

33 Related Party Transactions

On 11 February 2008 Kerry Media Limited company incorporated

in the British Virgin Islands became the immediate holding company

of the Company Kerry Group Limited company incorporated in the

Cook Islands is the ultimate holding company of Kerry Media Limited

The directors regard Kerry Group Limited as the ultimate holding

company of the Company as of the balance sheet date

Transactions with Kerry Group

Significant transactions with Kerry Group Limited and its group cf

subsidiaries Kerry Group since its becoming the Groups holding

company are as follows

Group

2003

HK$000

SCM1 Group Annual Report 2009

2009

HK$OOO

Rendering of services

Advertising revenue 2256 2163

Magazine production service fee 1280 1701

3536 3869

Kerry Group5 2iit Balances arising from transactions with Kerry Group

Group

2009 2003

HK$OOO HK$000

Receivables arising from advertising services 430 13

Receivables arising from magazine production services 636 630

1066 763

Key management personnel compensation

Group

2009 2003

HK$OOO HK$000

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 16677 19199

Post-employment benefits 342 500

Termination benefits 239

17019 19933
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23719O0O 5t A3OOOOOO
Kerry Group Limited Pft1Gain Silver Finance

Rfl24118000 nfl\-hn1H-t-

34 flfl2LL1

Investment in guaranteed notes issued by related party

In June 2009 the Group acquired guaranteed notes ot US$3000000

in the secondary market at consideration ot US$3057000

equivalent to HK$23719000 The notes were issued by Gain Silver

Finance Limited an indirect subsidiary ot Kerry Group Limited on 25

August 2006 They hear coupon interest ot 6.375% and will mature

in 2016 The fair values of the notes were HK$24118000 as at 31

December 2009 31 December 2008 Nil

34 Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on

22 March 20t0

SMP Group Aunual Report 2009124



Five-year
Financial Summary

u-f-fls-f-MESELECTED FINANCIAL DATA Year ended 31 December

UI
in HK$ millions except per share amounts 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

OPERATING RESULTS

Ij Revenue 741 1045 1252 1213 1120

Operating profit from

principal activities 46 226 398 378 287

Fair value gain/loss

on investment properties 135 81 266 40 50

Operating profit 185 204 670 420 306

/ij Share of losses

profits of associates

Income tax expense 35 22 119 80 59

Net profit attributable to

shareholders 138 173 548 339 246

PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK

Operating profit

from
principal activities per share in HK cents 2.92 14.50 25.48 24.19 18.41

Basic earnings per share

in HK cents 8.85 11.07 35.11 21.69 15.73

Diluted

operating profit from principal activities

per share in HK cents N/A NA NA NA N6
Diluted earnings per share

in HK cents N/A N4 NA NiA

Dividend per share in HK cents 8.00 18.00 19.00 15.00

Net asset value per share

in HK$ 1.34 1.22 1.39 1.21 1.10

4$FINANCIAL POSITION

Property plant and equipment 496 503 534 567 623

Total assets 2384 2.268 2560 2293 2133

Bank loans 19 69
Total liabilities 272 337 372 398 407

Net assets attributable to

shareholders 2091 1910 2172 1883 1721

Number of shares in issue 1560945596 1.560945596 1560945596 1560945596 1560945596

th$ KEY RATIOS

Operating profit from

principal activities to revenue 6% 22% 32% 31% 26%

Return on average equity 7% 8% 27% 19% 14%

Return on average total assets 6% 7% 23% 15% 11%

Gearing

Current assets to

current liabilities 3.54 2.47 2.40 2.16 1.7k

t$IA FULL TIME EMPLOYEES 807 943 1032 1016 1044
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Information

www.scmpgroup.com

ii11/ Si

Eric Levin

852 2680 8852

investor.relationsscmp.com

in
852 2680 8163

communicationsscmp.com

in
852 2680 8805

corporatesecretariall5scmp.com
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Butterfield Fulcrum Group Bermuda Limited

Rosebank Centre 11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HMO8 Bermuda

Canons Court 22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM12 Bermuda

ii22iiuiit i/

852 2680 8888

852 2565 2565

852 2565 2222

Shareholder Information Online

www.scmpgroup.com

Our website has up-to-date information about our company including

tinancial intormation press releases and other corporate intormation

Investor Relations

Eric Levin

852 2680 8852

investor.relations5scmp.com

Corporate Communications

Anne Wong

852 2680 8163

communicationsscmp.com

Company Secretary

Vera Leung

852 2680 8805

corporatesecretarialscmp.com

Career Opportunities

We offer career opportunities in lournalism advertising circulation

marketing production human resources finance and information

technology Applicants can send their applications to careerscmp.com

Share Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

46/F Hopewell Centre

t83 Oueens Road East Hong Kong

Butterfield Fulcrum Group Bermuda Limited

Rosebank Centre 11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke HMO8 Bermuda

Registered Office

Canons Court 22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HMt2 Bermuda

Head Office and Principal Place of Business

Morning Post Centre 22 Oai Fat Street

Tai P0 Industrial Estate New Territories

Hong Kong

852 2680 8888

G/F-3/F Leighton Road Causeway Bay Hong Kong

852 2565 2565

852 2565 2222
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iiJ Corporate Information

0583.HK

61

2261614
852 2680 8888

SCMP Hearst Publications Limited

SCMP Maxim Limited

SCMP Magazines Publishing HK Limited

ii
852 2565 2565

61 61

61 161

tJ6128

Stock Listing

Listed on the main board of

the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Ticker 0583.HK

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting will be held

on 24 May 2010 at 1100 am at

Island Ballroom Level Island Shangri-La Hotel

Pacific Place Supreme Court Road Hong Kong

Company Listings

Newspaper Publishing

South China Morning Post Publishers Limited

Morning Post Centre 22 Dai Fat Street

Tai P0 Industrial Estate New Territories

Hong Kong

852 2680 8888

Magazine Publishing

SCMP Hearst Publications Limited

SCMP Maxim Limited

SCMP Magazines Publishing HK Limited

1/F Leighton Road Causeway Bay Hong Kong

852 2565 2565

Principal Banker

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Queens Road Central Hong Kong

Legal Advisers

Clifford Chance

28/F Jardine House

One Connaught Place Hong Kong

61 /J 18

Deacons

5/F Alexandra House

18 Chater Road

Central Hong Kong

Appleby

61

12
Appleby

8/F Bank of America Tower

12 Harcourt Road

Central Hong Kong
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cJi22

14li

Ei
Roberto Ongpin

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

22/F Princes Building

Central Hong Kong

Board of Directors

Non -Executive Directors

Dr David Pang Chairman

Roberto Ongpin Deputy Chairman

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng

Kuok Khoon Ean

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Hon Ronald Arculli

Dr Fred Hu Zu Liu appointed with effect from 23 March 2010

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0

Wong Kai Man

Executive Director

Kuok Hui Kwong

Audit Committee

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok P0 Chairman

The Hon Ronald Arculli

Wong Kai Man

Remuneration Committee

Wong Kai Man Chairman

The Hon Ronald Arculli

Kuok Khoon Ean

Nomination Committee

The Hon Ronald Arculli Chairman

Dr David Pang

Wong Kai Man
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DEFINITIONS

In this circula the following expressions shall have the following meanings unless the

context requires otherwise

2010 Share Option Scheme the new share option scheme to be adopted by the

Company at the Annual General Meeting the principal

terms of which are set out on pages 25 to 33 of this

circular

Adoption Date the date on which the 2010 Share Option Scheme is

adopted by resolution of the Company in general meeting

Affiliate Company Controlling Shareholder of the Company or subsidiary

or Associate of Controlling Shareholder

Allotment Date the date on which Shares are allotted to Grantee

pursuant to an Option granted and exercised hereunder

Annual General Meeting the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at

1100 am on Monday 24 May 2010 at Island Ballroom

Level Island Shangri-La Hotel Pacific Place Supreme

Court Road Hong Kong

Associate shall have the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing

Rules save that in the definition of Eligible Person and

elsewhere expressly provided in the provisions of the 2010

Share Option Scheme the percentage stated in the Listing

Rules definition of an associate as the amount specified

in the Takeovers Code shall instead be the Relevant

Percentage

Auditors the auditors of the Company at the relevant time

AGM Notice the notice convening the Annual General Meeting as set

out on pages 12 to 17 of this circular

Bankruptcy Ordinance the Bankruptcy Ordinance Chapter of the laws of Hong

Kong as amended from time to time

Board the board of directors of the Company or except as

provided in the 2010 Share Option Scheme duly

authorised committee thereof

Business Day shall have the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing

Rules



DEFINITIONS

Bye-Laws the Bye-Laws adopted by the Company on November

1996 as amended supplemented or modified from time to

time

Commencement Date in respect of any particular Option the date upon which

the Option is deemed to be granted and accepted in

accordance with the provisions of the 2010 Share Option

Scheme

Companies Ordinance the Companies Ordinance Chapter 32 of the laws of Hong

Kong as amended from time to time

Company SCMP Group Limited an exempted company incorporated

in Bermuda with limited liability the Shares of which are

listed on the Stock Exchange

Controlling Shareholder shall have the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing

Rules

Directors the directors of the Company

Eligible Person means any of the following persons

an Executive

director or proposed director including an

independent non-executive director of any member

of the Group

consultant business or joint venture partner

franchisee contractor agent or representative of

any member of the Group and

an Associate of any of the foregoing persons

Executive any executive director of manager of or other employee

holding an executive managerial supervisory or similar

position in any member of the Group an Employee

any proposed Employee any full-time or part-time

Employee or person for the time being seconded to

work full-time or part-time for any member of the Group

Existing Share Option Scheme the existing share option scheme adopted by the

Company on 25 May 2006



DEFINITIONS

Grantee any Eligible Person who accepts the offer of the grant
of

an Option in accordance with the terms of the 2010 Share

Option Scheme or in the case of an Eligible Person being

an individual and where the context so permits the legal

personal representatives entitled to any such Option in

consequence of the death of the Eligible Person

Group the Company its subsidiaries and Associates and

Invested Entities

HK$ Hong Kong dollars

Hong Kong Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the

Peoples Republic of China

Invested Entity corporation partnership incorporated or

unincorporated body or other entity in which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries holds an interest

Latest Practicable Date 12 April 2010 being the latest practicable date prior to

the printing of this circular for ascertaining certain

information contained in this circular

Listing Rules the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Stock Exchange as amended from time to time

Non-Executive Director non-executive director who retires pursuant to the

Retirement provisions of the Companys Bye-Laws as amended

from time to time and who notifies the Company that he

is not offering himself up for re-election at the

Companys annual general meeting

Offer Date the date of the Board resolution approving the grant of

Options which must be Business Day

Option an option to subscribe for Shares granted pursuant to the

2010 Share Option Scheme

Option Period in respect of any particular Option such period as the

Board may in its absolute discretion determine save that

such period shall not be longer than 10 years

commencing on the Commencement Date

Option Shares Shares to which any particular Option relates

3--



DEFINITIONS

Other Share Option Scheme any and all schemes of the Company other than the 2010

Share Option Scheme involving the grant of options over

new Shares or other new securities of the Company

Relevant Percentage shall mean the higher of

the percentage stated in the Listing Rules definition

of an associate as the amount specified in the

Takeovers Code as being the level for triggering

mandatory general offer and

the amount specified in Part XV of the Securities

and Futures Ordinance as amended from time to

time as being the amount of voting power person

is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of upon

which that person is taken to be interested in the

shares of corporation

Securities and Futures the Securities and Futures Ordinance Chapter 571 of the

Ordinance Laws of Hong Kong

Shares the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital

of the Company or if there has been subdivision

consolidation reclassification of or reconstruction of the

share capital of the Company shares forming part of the

ordinary share capital of the Company

Shareholders holders of Shares in issue

Stock Exchange The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Subscription Price the price per Share at which Grantee may subscribe for

Shares on the exercise of an Option pursuant to the

provisions of the 2010 Share Option Scheme

subsidiary means company which is for the time being and from

time to time subsidiary within the meaning of the

Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong Chapter 32 of the

Laws of Hong Kong or the Companies Act 1981 of

Bermuda as amended or the local companies law act

and/or ordinance where the subject company was

incorporated

Takeovers Code Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers approved by

the Securities and Futures Commission from time to time



LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

SCMP Group Limited

SCMP
Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 583

Directors

Non-executive Directors

Dr David Pang Chairman

Roberto Ongpin Deputy Chairman

Tan Sri Dr Khoo Kay Peng

Kuok Khoon Ean

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Hon Ronald Arculli

Dr Fred Hu Zu Liu

Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po

Wong Kai Man

Executive Director

Kuok Hui Kwong

Adoption of New Chinese Name

and

Registered Office

Canons Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

Principal Place of Business

Morning Post Centre

22 Dai Fat Street

Tai Po Industrial Estate

New Territories

Hong Kong

Adoption of the 2010 Share Option Scheme

and

Termination of the Existing Share Option Scheme

INTRODUCTION

and

Notice of Annual General Meeting

The purpose of this letter is to provide information to Shareholders regarding the

proposals to grant the Directors general mandates to issue and repurchase Shares to adopt

new Chinese name of the Company for identification purpose and to adopt the 2010 Share

For identification purpose only

To Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam

16 April 2010

Proposals for Grant of General Mandates

to Issue and Repurchase Shares

and



LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

Option Scheme and terminate the Existing Share Option Scheme at the Annual General

Meeting Set out in Appendix to this letter is the AGM Notice convening the Annual General

Meeting at which Shareholders will be requested to consider and if they think fit adopt

resolutions relating to the grant of general mandates to issue and repurchase Shares the

adoption of new Chinese name of the Company the adoption of the 2010 Share Option

Scheme and termination of the Existing Share Option Scheme and certain other resolutions as

ordinary businesses of the Annual General Meeting

GENERAL MANDATE TO ISSUE SHARES

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2009 the Directors

were granted general mandate to allot issue and deal with additional Shares up to maximum

of 20 per cent of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of the

relevant resolution Such general mandate will cease to be effective at the conclusion of the

Annual General Meeting

As part of the special businesses of the Annual General Meeting Shareholders are asked

to consider and if thought fit to pass an ordinary resolution as set out in resolution in the

AGM Notice to renew the mandate to give the Directors power to allot issue and deal with

additional Shares with an aggregate nominal amount not exceeding 20 per cent of the share

capital of the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of the resolution Based on the

1560945596 Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date and assuming no Shares are

issued or repurchased before the Annual General Meeting the Company would therefore be

allowed under this mandate to issue maximum of 312189119 Shares

Such general mandate if approved by the Shareholders will be effective during the

period from the date of the passing of the resolution until the conclusion of the next annual

general meeting of the Company or the expiration of the period within which the next annual

general meeting of the Company is required by the Bye-Laws of the Company or any

applicable law to be held or the revocation or variation of the resolution by an ordinary

resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting whichever is the earliest Subject to

Shareholders granting the Directors the general mandate to repurchase Shares as described

below Shareholders are also asked to extend the general mandate to issue Shares by an amount

representing the aggregate nominal amount of the Shares repurchased by the Company under

the general mandate to repurchase Shares such that the amount of Shares so repurchased does

not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company

in issue as at the date of the passing of the resolution

GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

At the last annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2009 the Directors

were granted general mandate to repurchase Shares up to an aggregate nominal amount not

exceeding 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of Shares in issue as at the date of the

passing of the relevant resolution Such general mandate will cease to be effective at the

conclusion of the Annual General Meeting
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As part
of the special businesses of the Annual General Meeting Shareholders are asked

to consider and if thought fit to pass an ordinary resolution as set out in resolution in the

AGM Notice to renew the mandate to give the Directors power to repurchase Shares up to an

aggregate nominal amount not exceeding 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of

Shares in issue as at the date of the passing of the resolution Based on the 1560945596

Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date and assuming no Shares are issued or

repurchased before the Annual General Meeting the Company would therefore be allowed

under this mandate to repurchase maximum of 156094559 Shares

In accordance with the Listing Rules Appendix to this letter serves as an explanatory

statement to provide Shareholders with all the information reasonably necessary to enable you

to make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against the resolution to be proposed

at the Annual General Meeting to renew the mandate to allow the Directors to repurchase

Shares

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Companys Bye-Laws every Director shall retire

from office no later than the third annual general meeting after he was last elected or re-elected

If the number of Directors so retiring is less than one-third or the number nearest one-third

if the total number of Directors is not three or multiple of three of the Directors for the time

being then additional Directors who have been longest in office since their last election or

re-election shall retire from office by rotation to make up the shortfall so that one-third or the

number nearest one-third if the total number of Directors is not three or multiple of three

of the Directors will retire at each annual general meeting

Mr Wong Kai Man was last re-elected in 2007 Mr Roberto Ongpin and Mr Kuok

Khoon Ean were last re-elected in 2008 They will retire from office and are eligible for

re-election at the Annual General Meeting All the said Directors offer themselves for

re-election

Mr Wong Kai Man is an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company The

Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from Mr Wong in accordance

with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

In addition Dr Fred Hu Zu Liu was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director

of the Company with effect from 23 March 2010 In accordance with Bye-Law 102B of the

Companys Bye-Laws Dr Hu shall hold office until the conclusion of the Annual General

Meeting and shall be eligible for re-election at the Annual General Meeting Dr Hu offers

himself for re-election

The Directors are of the opinion that Mr Wong and Dr Hu have been and continue to be

independent In reaching their opinion of the independence of Mr Wong and Dr Hu the

Directors were satisfied that there are no relationships or circumstances which are likely to

affect their judgement and any relationships or circumstances which could appear to do so were

considered not material The Directors recommend Shareholders to vote for the re-election of

Mr Wong and Dr Hu as Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
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Shareholders are requested to consider and vote on the re-election of Mr Wong Kai Man

Mr Roberto Ongpin Mr Kuok Khoon Ean and Dr Fred Hu Zu Liu separately and

individually under resolution of the AGM Notice The biographies and details of interests in

the Shares of the Directors to be re-elected at the Annual General Meeting are set out in

Appendix to this letter

ADOPTION OF NEW CHINESE NAME

The Company adopted the Chinese name SCMP for identification

purpose only according to the approval of Shareholders on 12 November 2001 In order to

better reflect the identity of the Company in Chinese the Directors propose to change the

Chinese name of the Company SCMP to as the new

Chinese name of the Company for identification purpose only

The proposed adoption of the new Chinese name of the Company will be subject to the

passing of special resolution by the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting under

resolution in the AGM Notice The Company will apply for registration of the new Chinese

name with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong under Part XI of the Companies

Ordinance if and when resolution in the AGM Notice is passed at the Annual General

Meeting The effective date of the adoption of the new Chinese name of the Company shall be

the date on which the new Chinese name of the Company is registered with the Registrar of

Companies in Hong Kong The Company will then apply with the Stock Exchange for new

Chinese stock short name for trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange Further

announcement will be made by the Company in relation to the effective dates of adoption of

the new Chinese name and the new Chinese stock short name

The adoption of the new Chinese name of the Company will not affect the rights of any

Shareholders All existing share certificates in issue bearing the present name of the Company

will after the adoption of the new Chinese name continue to be evidence of title to the Shares

and will be valid for trading settlement and delivery for the same number of Shares The

Company will not issue any replacement share certificates following the adoption of the new

Chinese name

ADOPTION OF THE 2010 SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND TERMINATION OF

THE EXISTING SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Existing Share Option Scheme was approved by Shareholders on 25 May 2006 No

option has been granted exercised cancelled or lapsed under the Existing Share Option

Scheme since its adoption by Shareholders The Existing Share Option Scheme will expire on

25 May 2016

As at the Latest Practicable Date the issued share capital of the Company is

1560945596 Shares Under the Existing Share Option Scheme the Company can grant

options to subscribe for up to 156094559 Shares representing 10 per cent of the issued share

capital of the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date As at the Latest Practicable Date no

option is outstanding under the Existing Share Option Scheme
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It is proposed that subject to the approval of the Shareholders for the adoption of the

2010 Share Option Scheme at the Annual General Meeting the Existing Share Option Scheme

shall be terminated with effect from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting such that

thereafter no further options shall be offered but the options which had been granted if any

during the life of the Existing Share Option Scheme shall continue to be valid and exercisable

in accordance with their terms of issue and in all other respects the provisions of the Existing

Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect and the 2010 Share Option Scheme

will take effect on the date of its adoption at the Annual General Meeting Operation of the

2010 Share Option Scheme will commence after all conditions precedent have been fulfilled

The Directors consider that in order to enable the Group to motivate Eligible Persons to

optimise their future contributions to the Group and/or to reward them for their past

contributions to attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with such

Eligible Persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to

the performance growth and success of the Group it is important that the Group should

continue to provide such Eligible Persons with an additional incentive by offering them an

opportunity to obtain an ownership interest in the Company and to reward them for

contributing to the long term success of the Group

The 2010 Share Option Scheme permits the Company to grant Options to wider category

of Eligible Persons and not just the existing eligible employees or executive directors as under

the Existing Share Option Scheme Under the provisions of the 2010 Share Option Scheme the

Board has discretion to set minimumperiod for which an Option has to be held before it may

be exercised This discretion allows the Board to provide incentives to an Eligible Person to

remain as an Eligible Person during the minimum period and thereby enable the Group to

continue to benefit from the services of such Eligible Person during such period This

discretion coupled with the power of the Board to impose any performance target as they may

consider appropriate before any Option can be exercised enables the Group to provide

incentives to the Eligible Persons to use their best endeavours in assisting the growth and the

development of the Group The flexibility given to the Directors to grant Options to Eligible

Persons other than the existing eligible employees or executive directors under the Existing

Share Option Scheme and to impose minimum periods for which the Options have to be held

and performance targets that have to be achieved before the Options can be exercised will

place the Group in better position to attract human resources that are valuable to the growth

and the development of the Group as whole compared to the Existing Share Option Scheme

It is therefore proposed that the 2010 Share Option Scheme for the benefit of the Eligible

Persons be adopted and the Existing Share Option Scheme be terminated simultaneously at the

Annual General Meeting summary of the principal terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme

is set out in Appendix to this letter copy of the 2010 Share Option Scheme will be available

for
inspection during normal business hours at the principal place of business of the Company

at Morning Post Centre 22 Dai Fat Street Tai Po Industrial Estate New Territories Hong

Kong during the 14-day period immediately preceding the Annual General Meeting and at the

Annual General Meeting itself
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all Options to be

granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme when aggregated with Shares to be issued upon

exercise of options to be granted under Other Share Option Scheme may not in aggregate

exceed 10 per cent of the Shares in issue as at the Adoption Date Assuming that there is no

change in the issued share capital of the Company between the period from the Latest

Practicable Date and the Adoption Date the number of Shares that may be issued pursuant to

the 2010 Share Option Scheme on the Adoption Date will be 156094559 Shares being 10 per

cent of the Companys issued share capital as at the Latest Practicable Date

The 2010 Share Option Scheme is in compliance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules

Application will be made to the Stock Exchange for the approval of the 2010 Share Option

Scheme and the subsequent granting of options thereunder and the listing of and permission to

deal in the Shares to be issued upon exercise of options granted under the 2010 Share Option

Scheme

As part of the special businesses of the Annual General Meeting Shareholders are asked

to consider and if thought fit to pass ordinary resolutions as set out in resolutions and 10 in

the AGM Notice to approve the 2010 Share Option Scheme to authorise the Directors to issue

and allot Shares upon exercise of options under the 2010 Share Option Scheme and to terminate

the Existing Share Option Scheme

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Set out in Appendix to this letter is the AGM Notice to convene the Annual General

Meeting to be held at Island Ballroom Level Island Shangri-La Hotel Pacific Place

Supreme Court Road Hong Kong on Monday 24 May 2010 at 1100 am to consider certain

resolutions as ordinary businesses of the Annual General Meeting In addition to this

Shareholders are requested to consider resolutions to in the AGM Notice relating to grant

of the general mandates to the Directors to issue and repurchase Shares which are proposed as

ordinary resolutions resolution in the AGM Notice relating to the adoption of new Chinese

name of the Company as special resolution and resolutions and 10 in the AGM Notice

relating to the adoption of the 2010 Share Option Scheme and termination of the Existing Share

Option Scheme as ordinary resolutions

Whether or not you are able to attend the Annual General Meeting you are

requested to complete the enclosed form of proxy and return the same to the Company at

Morning Post Centre 22 Dai Fat Street Tai Po Industrial Estate New Territories Hong

Kong in accordance with the instructions printed thereon The form of proxy is to be

received by the Company not later than 1100 a.m on Saturday 22 May 2010 Completion

and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at

the Annual General Meeting should you so wish

Rights to demand poil on the proposed resolutions at the Annual General Meeting are

set out in Appendix to this letter
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RECOMMENDATION

The Directors are of the opinion that all the proposed resolutions are in the best interest

of the Company and the Shareholders as whole and recommend Shareholders to vote in

favour of all the resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to adopt the

Audited Financial Statements and the Directors Report and Independent Auditors Report

ii to re-elect the retiring Directors iii to authorise the Board to fix Directors fee iv to

re-appoint Auditor to grant general mandate to issue Shares vi to grant general

mandate to repurchase Shares vii to grant general mandate to add repurchased Shares to

the share issue general mandate viii to approve the adoption of new Chinese name of the

Company ix to adopt the 2010 Share Option Scheme and to terminate the Existing Share

Option Scheme

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Enclosed with this circular is copy of the 2009 Annual Report of the Company

Shareholders are advised to have regard to the information contained in this Annual Report in

arriving at their decision as to voting at the Annual General Meeting

Yours faithfully

David Pang

Chairman

11
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SCMP Group Limited

SCMP
Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability

Stock Code 583

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of SCMP Group Limited will be

held at Island Ballroom Level Island Shangri-La Hotel Pacific Place Supreme Court

Road Hong Kong on Monday 24 May 2010 at 1100 a.m for the following purposes

To receive and consider the Audited Financial Statements and the Directors Report and

Independent Auditors Report for the year ended 31 December 2009

To re-elect the following retiring Directors

Mr Wong Kai Man as Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Roberto Ongpin as Non-executive Director

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean as Non-executive Director

Dr Fred Hu Zu Liu as Independent Non-executive Director

To authorise the Board to fix Directors fee

To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as Auditor and authorise the Board to fix their

remuneration

As special business to consider and if thought fit pass the following resolution as an

ordinary resolution

THAT

subject to paragraph below the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant

Period as hereinafter defined of all the powers of the Company to allot issue and

deal with additional Shares or securities convertible into such Shares or options or

warrants or similar rights to subscribe for any Shares and to make or grant offers

agreements and options which would or might require Shares to be allotted and

issued be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved

the approval in paragraph above shall authorise the Directors to make or grant

offers agreements and options during the Relevant Period which would or might

require Shares to be allotted and issued during and/or after the end of the Relevant

Period

For identflcation purpose only

12
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the aggregate nominal amount of Shares allotted or agreed conditionally or

unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors pursuant to the approval in

paragraphs and above otherwise than pursuant to or in consequence of

Rights Issue as hereinafter defined or

ii the exercise of the conversion rights under the terms of any securities which

are convertible into Shares or

iii any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the

grant or issue to officers and/or employees of the Company and/or any of its

subsidiaries of Shares or rights to acquire Shares or

iv the exercise of rights of subscription under the terms of any warrants issued by

the Company or

any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of Shares

in lieu of the whole or part
of dividend on Shares in accordance with the

Bye-Laws of the Company

shall not exceed 20 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital

of the Company in issue at the date of the passing of this resolution and

for the purpose of this resolution

Relevant Period means the period from the passing of this resolution until the

earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company following

the passing of this resolution and

ii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of

the Company is required by the Bye-Laws of the Company or any applicable

law to be held and

iii the date on which the authority set out in this resolution is revoked or varied

by an ordinary resolution of the members of the Company in general meeting

Rights Issue means an offer of Shares or an offer of warrants options or other

securities giving rights to subscribe for Shares open for period fixed by the

Directors to holders of Shares on the Register of Members of the Company on

fixed record date and where appropriate the holders of other equity securities of the

Company entitled to be offered therein in proportion to their then holdings of such

Shares or other equity securities subject to such exclusions or other arrangements

as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional

13
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entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of or

the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in any

territory outside Hong Kong

As special business to consider and if thought fit pass the following resolution as an

ordinary resolution

THAT

subject to paragraph below the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant

Period as hereinafter defined of all powers of the Company to repurchase its

Shares subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and/or requirements of

the Listing Rules be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved

the aggregate nominal amount of Shares which may be repurchased by the Company

pursuant to the approval in paragraph above during the Relevant Period should

not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of Shares in issue at the

date of the passing of this resolution and the said approval shall be limited

accordingly and

for the purpose of this resolution Relevant Period means the period from the

passing of this resolution until the earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company following

the passing of this resolution and

ii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of

the Company is required by the Bye-Laws of the Company or any applicable

law to be held and

iii the date on which the authority set out in this resolution is revoked or varied

by an ordinary resolution of the members of the Company in general meeting

As special business to consider and if thought fit pass with or without amendments the

following resolution as an ordinary resolution

THAT subject to the passing of the resolutions and above the general mandate

granted to the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to allot issue and deal

with additional Shares pursuant to resolution above be and is hereby extended by the

addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of Shares

repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to resolution above

provided that such amount of Shares so repurchased shall not exceed 10 per cent of the

aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of the

passing of this resolution

14
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As special business to consider and if thought fit pass the following resolution as

special resolution

THAT be adopted as the new Chinese name of the Company

for identification purpose only and THAT such Chinese name be filed and/or registered

with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong under Part XI of the Companies

Ordinance Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong and the Directors be and are hereby

authorised to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents and deeds as

they may in their absolute discretion deem fit and necessary to effect and implement

such adoption of the new Chinese name of the Company

As special business to consider and if thought fit pass with or without amendments the

following resolution as an ordinary resolution

THAT subject to and conditional upon The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited the

Stock Exchange granting the listing of and permission to deal in the ordinary shares

of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company or of such other nominal amount as may

result from sub-division consolidation or reduction of the share capital of the Company

from time to time the Shares or any part thereof to be issued pursuant to the exercise

of any options that may be granted under the share option scheme of the Company the

2010 Share Option Scheme the terms of which are contained in the document marked

produced to the meeting and for the purpose of identification signed by the Chairman

of the meeting the 2010 Share Option Scheme be and is hereby approved and adopted as

the new share option scheme of the Company and the directors of the Company be and

are hereby authorised to do all such acts and to enter into all such transactions

arrangements and agreements as may be necessary or expedient in order to give full effect

to the 2010 Share Option Scheme notwithstanding that they or any of them may be

interested in the same including without limitation to

administer the 2010 Share Option Scheme under which options will be granted to

participants eligible under the 2010 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for Shares

modify and/or amend the 2010 Share Option Scheme from time to time provided that

such modification and/or amendment is/are effected in accordance with the

provisions of the 2010 Share Option Scheme relating to modification and/or

amendment and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange

issue and allot from time to time such number of Shares in the capital of the

Company as may be required to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options

granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme provided that the total number of

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the

2010 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company

shall not exceed ten 10 per cent of the relevant class of the issued share capital

of the Company as at the date of passing this resolution the Scheme Mandate
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Limit with the acknowledgement that the Company may seek an approval from its

shareholders in general meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit from time to

time but provided always that the maximum number of Shares which may be issued

upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the

2010 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company

shall not in aggregate exceed thirty 30 per cent of the issued share capital of the

Company from time to time and

make application at the appropriate time or times to the Stock Exchange and any

other stock exchanges upon which the issued Shares may be listed at the relevant

time for the listing of and permission to deal in any Shares or any part thereof that

may hereafter from time to time be issued and allotted pursuant to the exercise of

options granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme

10 As special business to consider and if thought fit pass with or without amendments the

following resolution as an ordinary resolution

THAT subject to and conditional upon the passing of the resolution above of which

this resolution forms part and the condition referred to therein being satisfied or fulfilled

the existing share option scheme adopted by the Company on 25 May 2006 the Existing

Share Option Scheme be and is hereby terminated with effect from the conclusion of

this meeting such that thereafter no further options shall be offered but the options which

had been granted if any during the life of the Existing Share Option Scheme shall

continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue and in all

other respects the provisions of the Existing Share Option Scheme shall remain in full

force and effect

By Order of the Board

Vera Leung

Company Secretary

Hong Kong 16 April 2010

As at the date hereof the Board comprises

Non-executive Directors

Dr David Pang Chairman Mr Roberto Ongpin Deputy Chairman Tan Sri Dr Khoo

Kay Peng and Mr Kuok Khoon Ean

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Hon Ronald Arculli Dr Fred Hu Zu Liu Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po and

Mr Wong Kai Man

Executive Director

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong
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Notes

member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to appoint proxy or proxies to attend

and vote in his or her stead and any such member who is holder of two or more shares in the Company is

entitled to appoint more than one proxy to attend and vote in his or her stead proxy need not be member

of the Company

The instrument appointing proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly

authorised in writing or if the appointor is corporation either under seal or under the hand of an officer or

attorney duly authorised

Where there are joint registered holders of any share any one of such persons may vote at the above meeting

either personally or by proxy in respect of such share as if he were solely entitled thereto but if more than

one of such joint holders be present at the meeting personally or by proxy that one of the said persons so

present whose name stands first on the register of members of the Company in respect of such share shall alone

be entitled to vote in respect thereof Several executors or administrators of deceased member in whose name

any share stands will for this purpose be deemed joint holders thereof

To be valid the form of proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority if any under which it

is signed or notarially certified copy thereof must be lodged at Morning Post Centre 22 Dai Fat Street Tai

Po Industrial Estate New Territories Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours

before the time appointed for the holding of the above meeting Completion and deposit of the form of proxy

will not preclude member from attending and voting in person at the above meeting if the member so wishes

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday 17 May 2010 to Thursday 20 May 2010

both dates inclusive during which period no transfer of shares will be effected All transfers accompanied by

the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Companys Hong Kong Branch Share Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited of Room no 1712-1716 17th Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queens Road East Hong Kong not later than 430 p.m on Friday 14 May 2010 so as to qualify for

attending the above meeting

Members of the Company are advised to read the circular to shareholders dated 16 April 2010 which contains

information concerning the resolutions to be proposed in this notice
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This explanatory statement relates to resolution proposed to be passed at the Annual

General Meeting which is an ordinary resolution to grant the Directors general mandate to

repurchase Shares through the Stock Exchange It contains all the information required

pursuant to Rule l0.06lb of the Listing Rules to be given to the Shareholders to enable

them to make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against such ordinary resolution

SHARE REPURCHASE PROPOSAL

Under the Listing Rules all the Shares proposed to be repurchased by the Company shall

be fully paid up All proposed repurchase of shares by company with primary listing on the

Stock Exchange must be approved in advance by an ordinary resolution either by way of

general mandate or by specific approval of specific transaction

As at the Latest Practicable Date the share capital of the Company in issue comprised

1560945596 Shares Assuming no Shares are issued or repurchased before the Annual

General Meeting and the ordinary resolution authorising the Directors to repurchase Shares is

passed at the Annual General Meeting up to 156094559 Shares representing 10 per cent of

the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of the resolution may

be repurchased by the Company during the period from the date of the passing of the resolution

until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company or the expiration of the

period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by the

Bye-Laws of the Company or any applicable law to be held or the revocation or variation of

the resolution by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting whichever is

the earliest

REASONS FOR REPURCHASE

The Directors believe that it is in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders

to have general authority from Shareholders to enable the Directors to repurchase Shares in

the market Such repurchase may depending on market conditions and funding arrangements

at the time lead to an enhancement of the net asset value of the Company and its assets and/or

its earnings per Share and will only be made when the Directors believe that such repurchase

will benefit the Company and the Shareholders

FUNDING OF REPURCHASE

Under the Listing Rules repurchases of Shares by the Company must be funded out of

funds legally available for the purpose The Company may only apply funds legally available

for such purpose in accordance with its Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws and the

applicable laws of Hong Kong and Bermuda
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It is presently proposed that any repurchase of Shares would be paid out of capital paid

up on the repurchased Shares the profits of the Company which would otherwise be available

for dividend the Companys share premium account and/or its contributed surplus account

In addition on the basis of the consolidated financial position of the Company as at

31 December 2009 being the date to which the latest published audited financial statements

of the Company have been made up the Directors consider that the exercise in full of the share

repurchase mandate might have material adverse impact on the working capital position of

the Company as compared with its position as at 31 December 2009 No repurchase would be

made in circumstances that might have material adverse impact on the working capital or

gearing position of the Company as compared with the position disclosed in the latest

published audited financial statements unless the Directors considered that such repurchases

were in the best interests of the Company notwithstanding such material adverse impact

GENERAL

None of the Directors nor to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable

enquiries any of their associates as defined in the Listing Rules has any present intention in

the event that the resolution to grant the Directors general mandate to repurchase Shares is

approved by Shareholders to sell any Shares to the Company

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that so far as the same may be

applicable they will exercise the power of the Company to make repurchases pursuant to the

share repurchase mandate in accordance with the Listing Rules and the applicable laws of

Bermuda

If as result of the exercise of the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the share

repurchase mandate Shareholders proportionate interest in the voting rights of the Company

increases such increase will be treated as an acquisition and may give rise to an obligation to

make mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code

As at the Latest Practicable Date Kerry Group Limited through its subsidiaries and

controlled corporations was interested in 1155061308 Shares which comprise both the

interests in 930061308 Shares and the interests in 225000000 Shares from equity

derivatives representing approximately 74.00 per cent of the total share capital of the

Company in issue In the event of the Directors exercising in full the power to repurchase

Shares under the mandate Kerry Group Limited would assuming that there is no change in

relevant facts and circumstances hold approximately 82.22 per cent of the total share capital

of the Company in issue assuming the said derivative interests in 225000000 Shares have

become fully vested Such increase would not give rise to an obligation to make mandatory

offer under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code but would reduce the number of Shares held by the

public to less than 25% The Directors have no present intention to repurchase Shares to such

an extent which will result in the amount of Shares held by public being reduced to less than

25% of the total issued share capital of the Company
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Save as aforesaid the Directors are not aware of any consequence that would arise under

the Takeovers Code and the Hong Kong Code on Share Repurchases in the event of the exercise

of the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the share repurchase mandate

No connected person as defined in the Listing Rules has notified the Company that he

has
present

intention to sell Shares to the Company or has undertaken not to do so in the

event that the Company is authorised to make repurchases of the Shares

SHARE REPURCHASES MADE BY THE COMPANY

The Company has made no repurchase of its Shares whether on the Stock Exchange or

otherwise in the past
six months prior to the Latest Practicable Date

SHARE PRICE

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have traded on the Stock Exchange in

each of the 12 months prior to the printing of this explanatory statement were as follows

Highest Lowest

Year Month Traded Price Traded Price

HK$ HK$

2009 April 1.16 0.98

May 1.45 1.00

June 1.46 1.23

July
1.38 1.20

August 1.35 1.23

September 1.31 1.20

October 1.45 1.26

November 1.48 1.34

December 1.66 1.30

2010 January 1.77 1.41

February 1.60 1.45

March 1.60 1.31

April up to Latest Practicable Date 1.68 1.39
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TO BE RE-ELECTED

Biographies of and interests in Shares held by Directors proposed to be re-elected at the

Annual General Meeting

Mr Wong Kai Man

Mr Wong Kai Man BBS JP aged 59 an Independent Non-executive Director joined the

Board in April 2007 Mr Wong is an accountant with 32 years of audit initial public offer and

computer audit experience He was member of the Growth Enterprise Market Listing

Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 1999 to 2003 He retired as an

audit partner from PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong on 30 June 2005 and is currently the

director of two charity foundations Victor and William Fung Foundation Ltd and Li Fung

1906 Foundation Limited and an Honorary Associate Professor of the School of Business of

the University of Hong Kong He is currently an independent non-executive director of China

Construction Bank Corporation listed in Hong Kong and Shanghai Shangri-La Asia Limited

listed in Hong Kong and Singapore and SUNeVision Holdings Ltd listed in Hong Kong He

is non-executive director of the Securities and Futures Commission In addition he serves in

number of government committees and the board of certain non-governmental organisations

Mr Wong obtained his Bachelor of Science in Physics from the University of Hong Kong and

Master of Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and is fellow

of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants United Kingdom and fellow of the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

As at the Latest Practicable Date Mr Wong did not have any interest in any Shares within

the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance The Company has given letter of

appointment to Mr Wong pursuant to which Mr Wong is appointed for term commencing on

28 May 2007 the date of his latest re-election as Director of the Company and ending at the

conclusion of the Annual General Meeting In 2009 Mr Wong was entitled to Directors fee

of HK$100000 and Directors emolument of HK$105754 for serving on the Audit Committee

HK$100000 Remuneration Committee HK$2877 and Nomination Committee HK$2877
which were fixed by the Board of Directors pursuant to the authority granted by the

Shareholders at the Companys annual general meeting In 2010 it is expected that Mr Wong

will be entitled to Directors fee of HK$100000 and Directors emolument of HK$200000

for serving on the Audit Committee HK$100000 Remuneration Committee HK$50000

and Nomination Committee HK$50000 which does not include any bonus payment based

on the Companys emolument scale for its Non-executive Directors in 2009 The remuneration

is determined with reference to directors remunerations paid by other companies in Hong

Kong which are of comparable size and business nature Under Bye-Law 99 of the Company

Mr Wong will be subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election at the Companys

annual general meeting every three years

Other than the aforesaid Mr Wong does not have any relationship with any Directors

senior management substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company there

is no other information to be disclosed under rule 13.5 12 of the Listing Rules and there is no

other matter that needs to be brought to the attention of Shareholders
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Mr Roberto Ongpin

Mr Roberto Ongpin aged 73 Non-executive Director joined the Board in October

1993 and was appointed Deputy Chairman in the same year He is Non-executive Director of

Shangri-La Asia Limited listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited He is also the

Chairman of PhilWeb Corporation ISM Communications Corporation and Atok-Big Wedge

Co Inc and Director of San Miguel Corporation Petron Corporation and Araneta Properties

Inc all of which are listed companies on the Philippines Stock Exchange Inc He is also

Director of Forum Energy PLC listed company on the London Stock Exchange In addition

he is also Chairman of the following companies Acentic GmbH Eastern Telecommunications

Philippines Inc ETPI Alphaland Corporation and Developing Countries Investment Corp

He was director of E2-Capital Holdings Limited presently known as ClAM Group

Limited listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited until June 2008 Prior to 1979

Mr Ongpin was the Chairman and Managing Partner of the SGV Group the largest accounting

and consulting firm in Asia He was the Minister of Trade and Industry of the Republic of the

Philippines from 1979 to 1986 He has an MBA from Harvard University and is Certified

Public Accountant Philippines

As at the Latest Practicable Date Mr Ongpin did not have any interest in any Shares

within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance The Company has given letter

of appointment to Mr Ongpin pursuant to which Mr Ongpin is appointed for term

commencing on 26 May 2008 the date of his latest re-election as Director of the Company

and ending at the conclusion of the Companys annual general meeting in 2011 In 2009

Mr Ongpin was entitled to Directors fee of HK$100000 which was fixed by the Board of

Directors pursuant to the authority granted by the Shareholders at the Companys annual

general meeting In 2010 it is expected that Mr Ongpin will be entitled to Directors fee of

HK$100000 which does not include any bonus payment based on the Companys emolument

scale for its Non-executive Directors in 2009 The remuneration is determined with reference

to directors remunerations paid by other companies in Hong Kong which are of comparable

size and business nature Under Bye-Law 99 of the Company Mr Ongpin will be subject to

retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election at the Companys annual general meeting

every three years

Other than the aforesaid Mr Ongpin does not have any relationship with any Directors

senior management substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company there

is no other information to be disclosed under rule 13.5 12 of the Listing Rules and there is no

other matter that needs to be brought to the attention of Shareholders
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Mr Kuok Khoon Ean

Mr Kuok Khoon Ean aged 54 joined the Board in October 1993 and was appointed

Chairman of the Company in January 1998 Mr Kuok became an Executive Director in January

2000 and assumed the role of Executive Chairman in August 2000 until his re-designation as

Non-executive Director in January 2009 He is director of Kerry Group Limited the ultimate

holding company of the Company and Kerry Holdings Limited substantial shareholder of

the Company Mr Kuok is Chairman of Shangri-La Asia Limited listed in Hong Kong and

Singapore He is also director of Shangri-La Hotel Public Company Limited and The Post

Publishing Public Company Limited both listed in Thailand and Wilmar International

Limited listed in Singapore Mr Kuok is also an independent non-executive director of The

Bank of East Asia Limited listed in Hong Kong He is graduate in Economics from

Nottingham University UK

As at the Latest Practicable Date Mr Kuok had deemed corporate interests in 340000

Shares 51973807 shares of Kerry Group Limited and 1283082 shares of Kerry Properties

Limited an associated corporation of the Company within the meaning of the Securities and

Futures Ordinance all of which are held through Allerlon Limited company wholly owned

by Mr Kuok and his spouse Due to Mr Kuoks re-designation as Non-executive Director his

contract for services as Executive Chairman of the Company was terminated with effect from

January 2009 The Company has given letter of appointment to Mr Kuok pursuant to which

Mr Kuok is appointed as Non-executive Director for term commencing on January 2009

and ending at the conclusion of the Companys annual general meeting in 2011 In 2009

Mr Kuok was entitled to Directors fee of HK$100000 and Directors emolument of

HK$50000 for serving on the Remuneration Committee which were fixed by the Board of

Directors pursuant to the authority granted by the Shareholders at the Companys annual

general meeting In 2010 it is expected that Mr Kuok will be entitled to Directors fee of

HK$100000 and Directors emolument of HK$50000 for serving on the Remuneration

Committee which does not include any bonus payment based on the Companys emolument

scale for its Non-executive Directors in 2009 The remuneration is determined with reference

to directors remunerations paid by other companies in Hong Kong which are of comparable

size and business nature Under Bye-Law 99 of the Company Mr Kuok will be subject to

retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election at the Companys annual general meeting

every three years

Mr Kuok is the brother of Ms Kuok Hui Kwong the Managing Director and Chief

Executive Officer of the Company Other than the aforesaid Mr Kuok does not have any

relationship with any Directors senior management substantial shareholders or controlling

shareholders of the Company there is no other information to be disclosed under rule 13.5 12

of the Listing Rules and there is no other matter that needs to be brought to the attention of

Shareholders
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Dr Fred Hu Zu Liu

Dr Fred Hu Zu Liu aged 47 an Independent Non-executive Director joined the Board

in March 2010 Dr Hu is Chairman of Greater China at Goldman Sachs Before joining

Goldman Sachs in 1997 Dr Hu was staff member at the International Monetary Fund

IMF in Washington D.C where he was engaged in macroeconomic research and policy

consultations for number of member country governments including China Dr Hu has

advised the Chinese government on financial reform pension reform and macroeconomic

policies and has worked closely with Chinas leading companies including Bank of China

Bank of Communications China Development Bank ICBC Ping An and ZTE on business

strategy capital raising and cross-border merger and acquisitions At Goldman Sachs he has

led several of the worlds largest and most significant transactions and has been instrumental

in building the firms franchise in the region Dr Hu is member of the Strategic Development

Committee chaired by the Chief Executive of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

member of the Advisory Committee for the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission and

is also member of the Asia Pacific Council of the Nature Conservancy He also sits on the

advisory board for China Huarong Asset Management Company Shanghai Pudong

Development Bank and the Harvard China Fund Dr Hu has served since 1996 as co-director

and professor at the National Center for Economic Research NCER at Tsinghua University

where he teaches graduate course in international finance and macroeconomics Dr Hu has

published widely on economics and financial markets He is member of the editorial board

for several academic journals including the International Economic Review and is columnist

for Caijing Chinas leading financial and business magazine Dr Hu earned an MS in

Engineering Science from Tsinghua University and an MA and PhD in Economics from

Harvard University

As at the Latest Practicable Date Dr Hu did not have any interest in any Shares within

the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance The Company has given letter of

appointment to Dr Hu pursuant to which Dr Hu is appointed for term commencing on

23 March 2010 and ending at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting He will be entitled

to receive Directors fee of HK$100000 per annum and Directors emolument of HK$50000

per annum for serving on the Strategy Committee or such sum of directors fee to be fixed by

the Board of Directors pursuant to the authority granted by the Shareholders at the Companys

annual general meeting The remuneration is determined with reference to directors

remunerations paid by other companies in Hong Kong which are of comparable size and

business nature Under Bye-Law 99 of the Company Dr Hu will be subject to retirement by

rotation and eligible for re-election at the Companys annual general meeting every three years

Other than the aforesaid Dr Hu does not have any relationship with any Directors senior

management substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company there is no

other information to be disclosed under rule 13.5 12 of the Listing Rules and there is no other

matter that needs to be brought to the attention of Shareholders
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This appendix includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the

purpose of giving information with regard to the Group The Directors collectively and

individually accepts full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this

appendix and confirm having made all reasonable enquiries that to the best of their knowledge

and belief there are no other facts the omission of which would make any statement contained

in this appendix misleading

SUMMARY OF THE 2010 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is summary of the principal terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme to

be submitted to Shareholders for adoption at the Annual General Meeting Reference to

paragraphs are to paragraphs of this Appendix

Purpose of the 2010 Share Option Scheme

The 2010 Share Option Scheme is to

motivate the Eligible Persons to optimise their future contributions to the Group

and/or

ii reward the Eligible Persons for their past contributions attract and retain or

otherwise maintain ongoing relationships with Eligible Persons who are significant

to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance growth

or success of the Group and additionally in the case of Executives enable the Group

to attract and retain individuals with experience and ability and/or to reward them

for their past contributions

Participants and basis of determining eligibility

The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Persons to the grant of any Options shall be

determined by the Directors from time to time on the basis of their contribution to the

development and the growth of the Group

For the avoidance of doubt only the grant of any options by the Company for the

subscription of Shares to any person who falls within the definition of Eligible Persons shall

not by itself unless the Directors otherwise determine be construed as grant of Options

under the 2010 Share Option Scheme

Grant of Options

Subject to the terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme the Board shall be entitled

at any time within period of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date to offer

the grant of any Option to any Eligible Person as the Board may in its absolute

discretion select and on acceptance of the offer grant such part of the Option as

accepted to the Eligible Person
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ii Subject to the provisions of the 2010 Share Option Scheme the Board may in its

absolute discretion when offering the
grant

of an Option impose any conditions

restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set forth in the 2010

Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit including without prejudice to the

generality to the foregoing continuing eligibility criteria conditions restrictions or

limitations relating to the achievement of performance operating or financial targets

by the Company and/or the Grantee the satisfactory performance or maintenance by

the Grantee of certain conditions or obligations or the time or period when the right

to exercise the Option in respect of all or some of the Option Shares shall vest The

Board may in its absolute discretion impose the time or period when the right to

exercise an Option in respect of all or some of the Option Shares shall vest under

the 2010 Share Option Scheme The 2010 Share Option Scheme however does not

stipulate any minimum period for which an Option must be held before it can be

exercised

Subscription Price

The Subscription Price in respect of any particular Option shall be such price as the

Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of the relevant

Option but the Subscription Price shall not be less than whichever is the highest of

the nominal value of Share the closing price of the Shares as stated in the

Stock Exchanges daily quotations sheet on the Offer Date and the average of

the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchanges daily quotations

sheet for the five Business Days immediately preceding the Offer Date

ii The Subscription Price shall also be subject to adjustment in accordance with

paragraph 15 of this Appendix

Exercise of Options

An Option shall be personal to the Grantee and shall not be assignable and no

Grantee shall in any way sell transfer charge mortgage encumber or create any

interest in favour of any third party over or in relation to any Option or purport to

do so Any breach of the foregoing shall entitle the Company to cancel any

outstanding Option or part thereof granted to such Grantee without any

compensation

ii An offer of grant of an Option may be accepted by an Eligible Person within period

determined by the Directors from time to time nominal consideration of HK$1.00

is payable on acceptance of the grant of an Option

iii An Option may be exercised at any time during the Option Period in accordance

with the terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme
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Rights on ceasing to be an Eligible Person

If the Board in its absolute discretion at any time determines that Grantee has ceased

to be an Eligible Person or ii Grantee has failed to or no longer satisfies or complies with

such criteria or terms and conditions that may be attached to the grant of the Option or which

were the basis on which the Option was granted the Option to the extent not already

exercised shall lapse on the date on which the Grantee is notified thereof in the case of

or on the date on which the Grantee has failed to or no longer satisfies or complies with such

criteria or terms and conditions as aforesaid in the case of iiand not be exercisable unless

the Board otherwise determines in which event the Option or such remaining part thereof

shall be exercisable within such period as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine

following the date of such notification or the date of such failure/non-satisfaction/non

compliance In the case of resolution of the Board resolving that the Grantees Option has

lapsed pursuant to this paragraph shall be final and conclusive

Rights on death/ceasing employment

If the Grantee being an individual dies or becomes permanently disabled before

exercising an Option or exercising it in full he or his legal representatives may

exercise the Option up to the Grantees entitlement to the extent not already

exercised within period of 12 months following his death or permanent disability

or such longer period as the Board may determine

ii In the event of the Grantee ceasing to be an Executive by reason of his retirement

pursuant to such retirement scheme applicable to the Group at the relevant time his

Option to the extent not exercised shall be exercisable until the expiry of the

relevant Option Period

iii In the event of the Grantee ceasing to be an Executive by reason of his transfer of

employment to an Affiliate Company his Option to the extent not exercised shall

be exercisable until the expiry of the relevant Option Period unless the Board in its

absolute discretion otherwise determines in which event the Option or such

remaining part thereof shall be exercisable within such period as the Board has

determined

iv If Grantee being an executive director of the Company ceases to be an Executive

but remains non-executive director his Option to the extent not already exercised

shall be exercisable until the expiry of the relevant Option Period unless the Board

in its absolute discretion otherwise determines in which event the Option or such

remaining part thereof shall be exercisable within such period as the Board has

determined or if Grantee being non-executive director of the Company ceases

to be director by reason of Non-Executive Director Retirement his Option to the

extent not exercised shall be exercisable until the expiry of the relevant Option

Period unless the Board in its absolute discretion otherwise determines in which

event the Option or such remaining part thereof shall be exercisable within such

period as the Board has determined
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Rights on takeover or scheme of arrangement

If general offer whether by way of takeover offer or scheme of arrangement or

otherwise in like manner is made to all the holders of Shares or all such holders other than

the offeror and/or any person controlled by the offeror and/or any person acting in association

or concert with the offeror and such offer becomes or is declared unconditional in the case

of takeover offer or is approved by the requisite majorities at the relevant meetings of the

Shareholders in the case of scheme of arrangement the Grantee shall be entitled to exercise

the Option to the extent not already exercised at any time in the case of takeover offer

within one month after the date on which the offer becomes or is declared unconditional or in

the case of scheme of arrangement prior to such time and date as shall be notified by the

Company

Rights on winding-up

In the event of an effective resolution being passed for the voluntary winding-up of the

Company and if the Grantee immediately prior to such event had any subsisting Option which

had not been fully exercised the Grantee may by notice in writing to the Company within one

month after the date of such resolution elect to be treated as if the Option had been exercised

immediately before the passing of such resolution either to its full extent or to the extent

specified in such notice and shall accordingly be entitled to receive out of the assets available

in the liquidation pan passu with the holders of Shares such sum as would have been received

in respect of the Shares the subject of such election reduced by an amount equal to the

Subscription Price which would otherwise have been payable in respect thereof

10 Allotment

The Shares to be allotted upon the exercise of an Option will be subject to all the

provisions of the memorandum and bye-laws of the Company and the laws of Bermuda in force

from time to time and shall rank pan passu in all
respects

with the then existing fully-paid

Shares in issue on the Allotment Date and accordingly shall entitle the holders to participate

in all dividends or other distributions paid or made on or after the Allotment Date other than

any dividend or other distributions previously declared or recommended or resolved to be paid

or made if the record date therefor shall be before the Allotment Date Subject as aforesaid no

Grantee shall enjoy any of the rights of shareholder by virtue of the grant of an Option

pursuant to the 2010 Share Option Scheme

11 Lapse of Options

An Option shall lapse automatically and not be exercisable to the extent not already

exercised on the earliest of the occurrence of any of the following events unless otherwise

relaxed or waived conditionally or unconditionally by the Board

the expiry of the Option Period

ii the expiry of any of the periods referred to in paragraphs to of this Appendix
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iii subject to the provisions of the 2010 Share Option Scheme the date of

commencement of the winding-up of the Company

iv there is an unsatisfied judgment order or award outstanding against the Grantee or

the Board has reason to believe that the Grantee is unable to pay or to have no

reasonable prospect of being able to pay his/its debts within the meaning of the

Bankruptcy Ordinance

there are circumstances which entitle any person to take any action appoint any

person commence proceedings or obtain any order of the type mentioned in the

2010 Share Option Scheme or

vi bankruptcy order has been made against any director or shareholder of the Grantee

being corporation in any jurisdiction

No compensation shall be payable upon the lapse of any Option provided that the Board

shall be entitled in its discretion to pay such compensation to the Grantee in such manner as

it may consider appropriate in any particular case

12 Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all Options

to be granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme may not when aggregated with

Shares to be issued upon exercise of options to be granted under any Other Share

Option Scheme in aggregate exceed such number of Shares as shall represent 10 per

cent of the Shares in issue as at the Adoption Date the Scheme Mandate Limit

provided that the Company may at any time as the Board may think fit seek approval

from the Shareholders to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit save that the maximum

number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all Options to be granted

under the 2010 Share Option Scheme when aggregated with Shares to be issued

upon exercise of options to be granted under any Other Share Option Scheme shall

not exceed 10 per cent of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval by the

Shareholders in general meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit Options

previously granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme and any Other Share

Option Scheme including those outstanding cancelled and lapsed in accordance

with the terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme or any Other Share Option Scheme

or exercised Options or exercised options under any Other Share Option Scheme

shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit as

refreshed In addition the Company may seek separate approval from the

Shareholders in general meeting for granting Options beyond the Scheme Mandate

Limit provided that the Options in excess of the Scheme Mandate Limit are granted

only to the Eligible Persons specifically identified by the Company before such

approval is sought and for whom specific approval is obtained

For the avoidance of doubt Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all

Options granted under the Existing Share Option Scheme and outstanding as at the

Adoption Date shall not be included in the calculation of the Scheme Mandate Limit

as at the Adoption Date
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ii Notwithstanding paragraph 12i above the maximum number of Shares which

may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be

exercised under the 2010 Share Option Scheme and all outstanding options granted

and yet to be exercised under any Other Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 30

per cent of the Shares in issue from time to time

iii The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the

Options granted to any one Eligible Person including exercised and outstanding

Options in any 12-month period shall not exceed per cent of the Shares in issue

from time to time Where any further grant of Options to such an Eligible Person

would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all Options

granted and to be granted to such Eligible Person including exercised cancelled

and outstanding Options in the 12-month period up to and including the date of

such further grant representing in aggregate over per cent of the Shares in issue

such further grant must be separately approved by the Shareholders in general

meeting with such Eligible Person and his Associates abstaining from voting The

applicable requirements of Rule 17.034 of the Listing Rules shall be complied

with

iv The maximum number of Shares referred to in paragraphs 12i to 12iii above

shall be subject to adjustment in accordance with paragraph 15 but shall not in any

event exceed the limits imposed by the Listing Rules

13 Maximum number per Grantee who is connected person

Each grant of Options to director or chief executive of the Company or any of their

respective Associates under the 2010 Share Option Scheme shall be approved by the

independent non-executive directors of the Company excluding an independent non-executive

director who is the proposed Grantee Where grant of Options to an independent

non-executive director of the Company or any of his Associates would result in the Shares

issued and to be issued upon exercise of all Options already granted and to be granted

including Options exercised cancelled and outstanding to such person in the 12-month period

up to and including the date of grant

representing in aggregate over 0.1 per cent of the Shares in issue and

ii having an aggregate value based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in the

Stock Exchanges daily quotations sheet at the date of each grant in excess of HK$5

million

such further grant of Options must be approved by the Shareholders All connected persons of

the Company as defined in the Listing Rules shall abstain from voting at such general

meeting except that any connected person may vote against the relevant resolution at the

general meeting provided that his or her intention to do so has been stated in the circular to be

sent to the Shareholders
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14 Cancellation of Options

The Board shall be entitled for the following causes to cancel any Option in whole or in

part by giving notice in writing to the Grantee stating that such Option is thereby cancelled

with effect from the date specified in such notice the Cancellation Date

the Grantee commits or permits or attempts to commit or permit breach of

paragraph 5i of this Appendix or any terms or conditions attached to the grant of

the Option

ii the Grantee makes written request to the Board for the Option to be cancelled or

iii if the Grantee has in the opinion of the Board conducted himself in any manner

whatsoever to the detriment of or prejudicial to the interests of the Company or

subsidiary

The Option shall be deemed to have been cancelled with effect from the Cancellation Date

in respect of any part of the Option which has not been exercised as at the Cancellation Date

No compensation shall be payable upon any such cancellation provided that the Board shall

be entitled in its discretion to pay such compensation to the Grantee in such manner as it may

consider appropriate in any particular case Where the Company cancels an Option held by

Grantee and issues new options to the same Grantee the issue of such new options may only

be made under share option scheme with available unissued options excluding the cancelled

Option within the limits set out in paragraph 12 of this Appendix

15 Effects of changes in capital structure

In the event of any change in the capital structure of the Company while any Option may
become or remains exercisable whether by way of capitalisation of profits or reserves right

issue consolidation subdivision or reduction of the share capital of the Company the Board

may if it considers the same to be appropriate direct that adjustments be made to

the number of Shares subject to outstanding Options

ii the Subscription Price per Share of each outstanding Option and/or

iii the number of Shares subject to the 2010 Share Option Scheme

Where the Board determines that adjustments are appropriate other than an adjustment

arising from capitalisation issue the Auditors or the independent financial adviser appointed

by the Board as the Board may select shall certify in writing to the Board that any such

adjustments are in their opinion fair and reasonable provided that

the aggregate percentage of the issued share capital of the Company available for the

grant of Options shall remain as nearly as possible the same as it was before such

change but shall not be greater than the maximum number prescribed by the Listing

Rules from time to time
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ii any such adjustments shall be made on the basis that the aggregate Subscription

Price payable by Grantee on the full exercise of any Option shall remain as nearly

as possible the same as but shall not be greater than it was before such event

iii no such adjustments shall be made the effect of which would be to enable Share

to be issued less than its nominal value and

iv any such adjustments shall as nearly as practicable be made on the basis that the

proportion of the issued share capital of the Company for which any Grantee is

entitled to subscribe pursuant to the Options held by him shall remain the same as

but shall not be greater than that to which he was previously entitled

For the avoidance of doubt only the issue of securities as consideration in transaction

shall not be regarded as circumstance requiring any adjustment

16 Alteration of the 2010 Share Option Scheme

Terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme can be changed by resolution of the Board

without the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting except for the following

any material alteration to its terms and conditions or any change to the terms of

Options granted except where the alterations take effect under the existing terms of

the 2010 Share Option Scheme

ii any alteration to the provisions of the 2010 Share Option Scheme in relation to the

matters set out in Rule 17.03 of the Listing Rules to the advantage of Grantees and

iii any alteration to this paragraph 16

provided always that the amended terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme shall comply with

the applicable requirements of the Listing Rules

17 Period of the 2010 Share Option Scheme/Termination

The 2010 Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for period of 10 years

commencing on the Adoption Date However the Shareholders in general meeting may by

resolution at any time terminate the 2010 Share Option Scheme Upon the expiry or termination

of the 2010 Share Option Scheme as aforesaid no further Options shall be offered but in all

other respects the provisions of the 2010 Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and

effect All Options granted prior to such expiry or termination as the case may be and not then

exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable subject to and in accordance with the 2010

Share Option Scheme
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18 Conditions of the 2010 Share Option Scheme

The 2010 Share Option Scheme shall come into effect on the Adoption Date upon the

fulfilment of the following conditions the passing of resolution as set out in the AGM

Notice by the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and ii the Stock Exchange

granting approval for the listing of and permission to deal in the Shares in the Company to

be issued and allotted pursuant to the exercise of the Options in accordance with the terms and

conditions of the 2010 Share Option Scheme

19 Administration of the 2010 Share Option Scheme

The 2010 Share Option Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the Board whose

decision on all matters arising in relation to the 2010 Share Option Scheme or its interpretation

or effect shall save as otherwise provided in the 2010 Share Option Scheme be final and

binding on all parties The Board may delegate any or all of its powers in relation to the 2010

Share Option Scheme to any of its committees

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Upon the grant of any Option the Board will consider factors such as the Subscription

Price the Option Period the vesting period performance targets if any and other conditions

which the Board has the discretion to prescribe to enable the purpose of the 2010 Share Option

Scheme to be served

None of the Directors are appointed as trustees of the 2010 Share Option Scheme or have

direct or indirect interest in the trustees of the 2010 Share Option Scheme

The Board considers it inappropriate to value all the Options that can be granted under

the 2010 Share Option Scheme on the assumption that they were granted on the Latest

Practicable Date This is because number of factors critical for determining such valuation

cannot be reasonably determined These factors include without limitation the Subscription

Price the Option Period the vesting period and the other terms and conditions of the grant

particularly those conditions which may be contingent in nature or other continuing eligibility

criteria which the Board has the discretion to prescribe upon the grant of an Option

Accordingly any valuation of the Options based on these speculative assumptions would not

be meaningful and may be misleading to Shareholders
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APPENDIX RIGHT TO DEMAND POLL

Bye-Law 70 of the Bye-Laws sets out the procedures by which Shareholders may demand

poll

At any general meeting resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on

show of hands unless poll is demanded before or on the declaration of the results of the

show of hands or on the withdrawal of any other demand for poll poil may be demanded

by

the chairman of the meeting

ii at least three Shareholders present in person or by duly authorised corporate

representative or by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting

iii any Shareholder or Shareholders present in person or by duly authorised corporate

representative or by proxy and representing not less than one-tenth of the total

voting rights of all the Shareholders having the right to vote at the meeting or

iv any Shareholder or Shareholders present in person or by duly authorised corporate

representative or by proxy and holding shares in the Company conferring right to

vote at the meeting being shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal

to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the shares conferring that

right

Unless poll be so demanded and the demand is not withdrawn declaration by the

chairman of the meeting that resolution has on show of hands been carried or carried

unanimously or by particular majority or lost and an entry to that effect in the book

containing the minutes of the proceedings of the Company shall be conclusive evidence of the

fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour or against such

resolution
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SCMP Group Limited

SCMP1J
11 111 it 51

nsk 51131

ICE ANNUAL GENERAL MEE

Notice is hereb gA en that the Annual General Meeting of SC v1P Group Limited ill be held at

Island Ballroom evel Island Shangri4 Hotel Pacific Place Supreme Court Rot hong

Kong on Monday 24 May 201 at 11 00 am foi the following purposes

To receive and consider the Audited hnancial Statements and the Directors Report arid

Independent And itors Report for the year ended 31 December 2009

Fo ec1ee th0 Ihllovving rLtiring Dnetor

Mr Vcong Kai Man as Independent Non evecutise Director

Mr Roberto Ongpin as Nomexeeutive Dncctoi

Mi Kuok Kitoon Fan as Nonexccutive Director

Dr ied Tin 7u iu as Independent Noncecuti Director

lo authorise the Boatd to fix Dii eciors fee

lo ie appoint PiicewaterhouseCoopcis as Auditoi and authorise the Boaid to fix then

cinuncration

As special business to considci and if thought fit pass the following resolution as an

ordinary resolution

iuIAF

subject to paiagiaph below the exercise by the Diiectois during the Relevant

Period as heieinafiei defined of all the pon ers of the Company to allot issue and

deal with additional Shares or securities convertible into such Shares oi options or

arrants similar rights to subsci ibe fbi an Shai es and to make or gi ant offei

agi cements and options which ould oi might require Shai es to be allotted and

issued he and is heieby generally and unconditionally appiosed

the approval in pai agraph aho\ shall authorise the Directors to make or grant

offeis agreements and options during the Relevant Peiiod which would oi might

aSs iFlflOl isernsiit s42j A1\l \oici



require Shares to be allotted and issued during and/or after the end of the Relevant

Period

the aggregate nominal amount of Shares allotted or agreed conditionally or

unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors pursuant to the approval in

paragraphs and above otherwise than pursuant to or in consequence of

Rights Issue as hereinafter defined or

ii the exercise of the conversion rights under the terms of any securities which

are convertible into Shares or

iii any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being adopted for the

grant or issue to officers and/or employees of the Company and/or any of its

subsidiaries of Shares or rights to acquire Shares or

iv the exercise of rights of subscription under the terms of any warrants issued

by the Company or

any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of

Shares in lieu of the whole or part of dividend on Shares in accordance

with the Bye-Laws of the Company

shall not exceed 20 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital

of the Company in issue at the date of the passing of this resolution and

for the purpose of this resolution

Relevant Period means the period from the passing of this resolution until the

earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company

following the passing of this resolution and

ii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of

the Company is required by the Bye-Laws of the Company or any applicable

law to be held and

iii the date on which the authority set out in this resolution is revoked or varied

by an ordinary resolution of the members of the Company in general

meeting

Rights Issue means an offer of Shares or an offer of warrants options or other

securities giving rights to subscribe for Shares open for period fixed by the

Directors to holders of Shares on the Register of Members of the Company on

fixed record date and where appropriate the holders of other equity securities of

the Company entitled to be offered therein in proportion to their then holdings of

such Shares or other equity securities subject to such exclusions or other

arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to

fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the

laws of or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock

exchange in any territory outside Hong Kong

CoSec\announcement\e-l 604201 0-AGM Notice



As special business to consider and if thought fit pass the following resolution as an

ordinary resolution

THAT

subject to paragraph below the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant

Period as hereinafter defined of all powers of the Company to repurchase its

Shares subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and/or requirements

of the Listing Rules be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved

the aggregate nominal amount of Shares which may be repurchased by the

Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph above during the Relevant

Period should not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of Shares

in issue at the date of the passing of this resolution and the said approval shall be

limited accordingly and

for the purpose of this resolution Relevant Period means the period from the

passing of this resolution until the earliest of

the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company following

the passing of this resolution and

ii the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of

the Company is required by the Bye-Laws of the Company or any applicable

law to be held and

iii the date on which the authority set out in this resolution is revoked or varied

by an ordinary resolution of the members of the Company in general

meeting

As special business to consider and if thought fit pass with or without amendments the

following resolution as an ordinary resolution

THAT subject to the passing of the resolutions and above the general mandate

granted to the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to allot issue and deal

with additional Shares pursuant to resolution above be and is hereby extended by the

addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of Shares

repurchased by the Company under the authority granted pursuant to resolution above

provided that such amount of Shares so repurchased shall not exceed 10 per cent of the

aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of the

passing of this resolution

As special business to consider and if thought fit pass the following resolution as

special resolution

THAT be adopted as the new Chinese name of the Company

for identification purpose only and THAT such Chinese name be filed and/or registered

with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong under Part XI of the Companies

Ordinance Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong and the Directors be and are hereby

authorised to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents and deeds as

they may in their absolute discretion deem fit and necessary to effect and implement

such adoption of the new Chinese name of the Company

CoSec\announcement\e-1 604201 0-AGM Notice



As special business to consider and if thought fit pass with or without amendments the

following resolution as an ordinary resolution

THAT subject to and conditional upon The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited the

Stock Exchange granting the listing of and permission to deal in the ordinary shares of

HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company or of such other nominal amount as may

result from sub-division consolidation or reduction of the share capital of the Company

from time to time the Shares or any part thereof to be issued pursuant to the exercise

of any options that may be granted under the share option scheme of the Company the

2010 Share Option Scheme the terms of which are contained in the document marked

produced to the meeting and for the purpose of identification signed by the Chairman

of the meeting the 2010 Share Option Scheme be and is hereby approved and adopted as

the new share option scheme of the Company and the directors of the Company be and

are hereby authorised to do all such acts and to enter into all such transactions

arrangements and agreements as may be necessary or expedient in order to give full effect

to the 2010 Share Option Scheme notwithstanding that they or any of them may be

interested in the same including without limitation to

administer the 2010 Share Option Scheme under which options will be granted to

participants eligible under the 2010 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for Shares

modify and/or amend the 2010 Share Option Scheme from time to time provided

that such modification and/or amendment is/are effected in accordance with the

provisions of the 2010 Share Option Scheme relating to modification and/or

amendment and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on the Stock Exchange

issue and allot from time to time such number of Shares in the capital of the

Company as may be required to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options

granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme provided that the total number of

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the

2010 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed ten 10 per cent of the relevant class of the issued share capital of

the Company as at the date of passing this resolution the Scheme Mandate Limit
with the acknowledgement that the Company may seek an approval from its

shareholders in general meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit from time to

time but provided always that the maximum number of Shares which may be issued

upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the

2010 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed thirty 30 per cent of the issued share capital of the

Company from time to time and

make application at the appropriate time or times to the Stock Exchange and any

other stock exchanges upon which the issued Shares may be listed at the relevant

time for the listing of and permission to deal in any Shares or any part thereof that

may hereafter from time to time be issued and alloned pursuant to the exercise of

options granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme

10 As special business to consider and if thought fit pass with or without amendments the

following resolution as an ordinary resolution

THAT subject to and conditional upon the passing of the resolution above of which

this resolution forms
part

and the condition referred to therein being satisfied or fulfilled
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the existing share option scheme adopted by the Company on 25 May 2006 the Existing

Share Option Scheme be and is hereby terminated with effect from the conclusion of

this meeting such that thereafter no further options shall be offered but the options which

had been granted if any during the life of the Existing Share Option Scheme shall

continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue and in all

other respects the provisions of the Existing Share Option Scheme shall remain in full

force and effect

By Order of the Board

Vera Leung

Company Secretary

Hong Kong 16 April 2010

As at the date hereof the Board comprises

Non-executive Directors

Dr David Pang Chairman Mr Roberto Ongpin Deputy Chairman Tan Sri Dr Khoo

Kay Peng and Mr Kuok Khoon Ean

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Hon Ronald Arculli Dr Fred Hu Zu Liu Dr The Hon Sir David Li Kwok Po and

Mr Wong Kai Man

Executive Director

Ms Kuok Hui Kwong

Notes

member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to appoint proxy or proxies to attend and

vote in his or her stead and any such member who is holder of two or more shares in the Company is entitled

to appoint more than one proxy to attend and vote in his or her stead proxy need not be member of the

Company

The instrument appointing proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly

authorised in writing or if the appointor is corporation either under seal or under the hand of an officer or

attorney duly authorised

Where there are joint registered holders of any share any one of such persons may vote at the above meeting

either personally or by proxy in respectof such share as if he were solely entitled thereto but if more than one

of such joint holders be present at the meeting personally or by proxy that one of the said persons so present

whose name stands first on the register of members of the Company in respect of such share shall alone be

entitled to vote in respect thereof Several executors or administrators of deceased member in whose name

any share stands will for this
purpose be deemed joint holders thereof

To be valid the form of proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority if any under which it is

signed or notarially certified
copy

thereof must be lodged at Morning Post Centre 22 Dai Fat Street Tai Po

Industrial Estate New Territories Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours

before the time appointed for the holding of the above meeting Completion and deposit of the form of
proxy

will not preclude member from attending and voting in person at the above meeting if the member so wishes

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday 17 May 2010 to Thursday 20 May 2010

both dates inclusive during which period no transfer of shares will be effected All transfers accompanied by the

relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Companys Hong Kong Branch Share Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited of Room no 1712-1716 17th Floor Hopewell Centre
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183 Queens Road East I-long Kong not later than 430 p.m on Friday 14 May 2010 so as to qualify for

attending the above meeting

Members of the Company are advised to read the circular to shareholders dated 16 April 2010 which contains

information concerning the resolutions to be proposed in this notice

For identification purpose only
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SCM Group Limited
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Closure of Register of Members

NYI ICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Register of Members of SCMP Group Limited

the Company Wi be closed fi om Monday May 201110 hUrsday 20 May

2010 both days incluswe All transfers of shares accompanied by the reles ant share

ceitificates must he lodged with the Companys Hong Kong hi anch share registrars

Cornputershare hong Kong Investot Ser\ ices imited of Room no 712 171

Floor lopewell Centre 83 Queen Road Last long Kong for registi ation not

later than on Friday 14 May 2010 so as to qualify for attending and 01mg

at the annual genei al meeting of the Company to he held on Monday 24 May 2010

By ft dci ol the Board

SCMP Group Limited

Vera LEUNG
rnipanv Sc re/ui

hong Kong 16 April 010

As ut//ic i/u/c hcico/ i/ic Boui/ corn isc

WOlOcc ut/sc Directors

Dr David Pang Chaiiman Mr Roheilo Ongpmn Deputy Chairman Tan Sri

Dr Khoo Ka\ Peng and Mr Kuok Khoon Fan

Independent Non ca cdiii ic Dii cd1or

The Hon Ronald Arculli Dr Fred Hu Zn in Dr ftc Hon Sir Da\id Li Kv5ok Po

and Mr Wong Kai Man

cc u/lie Dii ci 101

Ms Kuok Hum Kong
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